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Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd. is a leading marineife" {ia/iﬁﬁ/‘\&' 2B R 7IE£F‘.7I

theme park developer and operator in China. As at 31 DecembBr. 738 ¥ = A ] 7 55 7 £ Mﬁ @?jr 3

2021, there were 10 theme parks operating under the brand . 2 _21@% zlﬁ .

name of “Haichang” and one theme park under construction m{x = :;;?E]HE!EE' E’]ZE%‘Z\* : .
] “”'\_IW ﬁiﬂfeﬁ’“léﬁiﬁﬁ :

experience encompassing leisure, entertainment, dining, shopping & Fﬁ?_ﬁ@_ﬁ\? £ R ﬁ;ve \ o

and accommodation in our theme parks together with auxiliary g L BER — ﬁxmlwm%%nm

commercial facilities. Meanwhile, we continue to deliver our = .i%,f"’-»_@ \ ﬁﬂf’ﬁ%%ﬂ?ﬂ% N8 X

products and solutions of oceanic culture and capability across 1t B Ixiﬁg =]

the country, in order to allow.more consumers to enjoy our

China. We offer visitors a comprehensive tourism and leisure

wide range of interesting and creative oceanic culture-based
tourism and leisure products. Our goal is to become a company
helping people to have fun to the fullest py 'c_zreating a place filled
with “dream, love, joy”, where We can 'continu'e Eo offer people
unique and distinctive oceanic culture-based tourism and leisure

products and experience. Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd.

has successfully li Main Board of the Hong Kong

Stock Exchange ar 014.
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I FIEBE FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20176 20184 2019% 2020% 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT
Results &
Revenue WA 1,680,221 1,790,157 2,801,980 1,168,222 2,460,200
Gross profit/(loss) £F/(18) 909,661 873,939 1,285,393 (129,255) 721,265
EBITDA REHE - BHE -
WEREEN
&R/ (B1]) 681,446 668,088 1,208,712 (429,470) 2,170,811
Profit/(loss) before tax BRRAIEF/(B8) 407,159 195,938 175,349 (1,517,525) 1,197,169
Income tax (expense)/credit e (), e (115,616) (155,926) (144,156) 39,071 (362,931)
Profit/(loss) for the year FnEF/(B8) 291,543 40,012 31,193 (1,478,454) 834,238
Attributable to: BER:
Owner of the parent HAREEBA 279,792 39,558 25,080 (1,451,637 844,851
Non-controlling interests RS 11,751 454 6,113 (26,817) (10,613)
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BEE 12,131,841 16,107,730 16,871,151 16,419,488 11,717,352
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 1,305,108 1,921,089 2,484,468 2,408,110 3,206,658
Short-term interest-bearing A ERITR
bank and other borrowings HifEE 1,775,257 2,439,796 2,471,365 2,769,547 1,925,907
Long-term interest-bearing REHERITR
bank and other borrowings Hinfg g 2,957,133 5,540,858 6,035,532 6,426,162 3,268,061
Shareholders’ equity R 4,422,934 4,466,833 4,478,681 3,000,325 3,830,469

2021 FEHRE BEHFAREZERBRAT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT E£FE#H&E

On behalf of the board (the “"Board”) of the directors (the
“Directors”) of Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
am pleased to present to shareholders the review of our annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2021 and our prospect.

2021 was a critical year for the Group's strategic transformation.
Over the past year, we made positive and decisive changes
including, among other things, the injection of new blood to
the Board and the management, the significant improvement
of the Group’s liquidity, the expansion and innovation of
our business scope, and the enhancement of the Company's
product competitiveness and digital capability. These outcomes
reflected our relentless efforts and aggressive exploration against
headwinds. They also proved that we have had an excellent
and trustworthy team, and substantiated the resilience and
sustainability of our business model.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

In 2021, China saw signs of gradual containment of the COVID
pandemic and recovery of domestic tourism spending. Under this
background, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
RMB2,460.2 million for 2021, representing a year-on-year increase
of 110.6%. In particular, revenue from theme park operation
amounted to approximately RMB1,824.2 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 60.8% and a recovery to 66.8% of that
in the same period of 2019. Profit attributable to owners of the
parent for 2021 was approximately RMB844.9 million.

THEME PARK OPERATION SEGMENT

Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park (the “Shanghai Park”)
achieved a significant rebound in revenue to approximately
RMB597.8 million in 2021, representing a year-on-year growth
of 34.1%, with an increase of the number of park visitors to
2,280,000 from 1,780,000 in 2020. In tandem with focusing
on the enhancement of visitors’ experience and product
competitiveness for the Shanghai Park, in 2021, we commenced
the construction of its phase Il project, which will comprise a
marine-themed hotel, a modern hot spring hotel, an aquarium
and a commercial street. Upon completion of construction works,
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the phase Il project will fully unleash the development potential
of the existing park site. We are also proactively seeking the
development of phase Ill project of the Shanghai Park which, once
completed, will together with the existing park and the phase I
project, form the oriental oceanic leisure and vacation sector in
Lingang New Area of Shanghai. The Shanghai Park is expected to
substantially enhance its overall capacity and extend visitors’ stay
upon commencement of operation of the phase Il project. We
will adopt cluster-based development approach in strengthening
our presence in Shanghai, with a geographical coverage of the
Yangtze River Delta region, and the Shanghai Park will become
the core asset under Haichang’s culture-based tourism and leisure
ecosystem.

Sanya Haichang Fantasy Town (the “Sanya Project”)
registered a revenue of approximately RMB64.5 million in 2021,
representing a year-on-year increase of 71.6% and a recovery to
64.9% of that in the same period of 2019. With its strategically
unique location in Haitang Bay of Sanya which is a renowned
tourists’ resort destination, the Sanya Project has already
developed a very strong brand image in Hainan. In 2021, the
Sanya Project became the only project in Hainan Province publicly
designated as one of the first national gathering spots for nightlife
culture and travel consumption by the Ministry of Culture and
Tourism. In the future, we will continue to develop our reserved
land parcels in Haitang Bay of Sanya for further enrichment of
product formats, as we are confident in its flexibility and the
future in tourism and hospitality.

The lifestyle hotel business mainly provides services for our
theme parks. We operate three ancillary hotels for our theme
parks respectively in Shanghai, Dalian and Yantai. We are
delighted to see that these lifestyle hotels can adequately cater
for the increasing demand for leisure and vacation hotels of
consumers. This is proven by our financial results. In 2021, overall
revenue from our hotel business achieved 102.1% of that in
2019, and revenue from the hotel in the Shanghai Park reached
117.8% of that in the same period of 2019. In particular, the
hotel in the Shanghai Park had an occupation rate of exceeding
90% during Chinese New Year holiday and was fully occupied in
the fourth and fifth day of the Chinese New Year in 2022. This
year, we will introduce the world’s first Ultraman-themed hotel
into the Shanghai Park. Upon completion of the phase Il project
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT E£E#H &

of the Shanghai Park, there will be a new hot spring hotel and
a marine-theme hotel. Together with Haichang Jingiao Penguin
Hotel which is located within a 15-minute driving distance from
the park, the three hotels, which provide a total of approximately
1,100 additional rooms, will form a cluster. The total guest rooms
under the management of the Shanghai Park will thereupon
reach approximately 1,600. In the future, we will further identify
opportunities for opening lifestyle hotels that integrate our marine
culture into IPs and hotels to offer high-quality lifestyle experience
to consumers.

Zhengzhou Haichang Ocean Park (the “Zhengzhou Project”)
is also under construction in full swing. Phase | of the Zhengzhou
Project is expected to meet all requirements for operation no later
than 2024. The Zhengzhou Project has a distinctive geographical
advantage for it is located in the Central Plains area with a
population of nearly 200 million. The Zhengzhou Project will
become another crucial milestone for the development of our
major oceanic theme parks.

TOURISM & LEISURE SERVICES AND
SOLUTIONS SEGMENT

Revenue from the tourism & leisure services and solutions
segment for 2021 grew by 54.6% year-on-year to approximately
RMB51.8 million. In 2021, we comprehensively fostered the
development of our tourism & leisure services and solutions
business, namely Operation as a Service (OaaS). We leverage on
our strengths in providing the full-process of mature culture-
based tourism and leisure services and solutions covering solution
design, construction engineering management, operation services,
brand output, etc, to deliver our oceanic culture to culture-based
tourism and leisure projects in different places, with targets
including aquariums, major marine-centered projects, especially
marine-themed resort projects, marine culture-themed lifestyle
hotel, commercial projects, and ice & snow theme parks. We have
highly replicable chain boutique projects, lifestyle hotel and resort
projects and customised major theme park projects under this
business segment. We will become a promoter for urban living to
create corporate value in multiple respects.

HAICHANG OCEAN PARK HOLDINGS LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

B — HATA B 75 AR 1R 22 5 37 18 R SRB 5 A
RS BREERRE IS ERREN
BECBEBBEETLRER  =5A/E
HETEHILM1N00MERE - BR - &
BREEEERRRERZEDNT1,600
B o RRHEMGHE —FIKERT B
JEEMHEE - FBFECEIPES - B
BIEHEE  THABEERESREN
R A ER -

BMEBERFARE ([HMMIER |) IETE
BEERP - BMNIEE —HEF BN
2024 A E S Rt - BMNIEB RAE
SR BETRWEA2EAD - EMN
BEEBRARRMEEFRIREETER
BEN S - EEZ B2 -

SR AR 35 B2 8 R T3 SR AR

SR AR 75 B R R J7 SRR BRTE 2021 FF A9 UK
ARLIER54.6% @+ EEHAREKS1.8
BETT 20219 » B2 ##E R AR
BRBALRFEE (BELRS) - BB
REKAN T RET  BEEIER
BERY - MEE LS 2N RK
BARTS R REE D - 8 F b
FEMHXIKIER - HIEMNHREIE
BEHHEFEE - BEEFHARRIER -
FRIZEFERREIEE - UEFEEA
ZOMAEERIVEE « MEIEE - kS
LE - ZMEEBEEBRREANESEA]
BRENEHEBRER  BEEFR
BIEERIER - ML REEXBEAEIE
B BZMEKARMEETNREAE %
FHEAEARIMEE -



In 2021, the Group was in the course of negotiation for a
number of agreements and secured six new agreements for this
business segment. Haichang Ocean Park also entered into nine
strategic cooperation agreements with major industry high-profile
companies in 2021, and is expected to provide tourism & leisure
services and solutions to those partners in the future.

It is worth noting that for the boutique chain aquarium project
that we are establishing presence nationwide, we continued to
increase the number of visitors through consolidation and curation
of operating small boutique aquariums and further enhance the
value, traffic and customers’ experience of boutique aquariums
through integration of sales system, introduction of IP derivatives
and leveraging on the cost advantage as a conglomerate and
under the scale-up development. We strongly believe that every
city deserves to have one Haichang boutique aquarium.

IP OPERATION AND NEW MARKETING
STRATEGY

We are characterised by ocean. We have an extensive range of
marine animal species and a professional team of marine life
conservation. Oceanic cultural IPs are a soft power we have
developed over the past two decades, and are embedded in
the full spectrum from our product design, service ideology to
customer interaction which have created a distinctive oceanic
IP and brand influence. Our base of consumption scenarios has
expanded from marine-life theme parks and lifestyle hotels to
include scenic areas, commercial properties and other on-ground
entertainment and consumption scenarios. In the course of
implementation, we witnessed that the integration between our
marine-life theme and surrounding consumption scenarios within
close distance drove natural interaction that generated forceful
consumption power. For example, although the hotel supply in
China is high, the demand for marine-themed lifestyle hotels
remains strong. This is an inspiration and experience we gained
from the operation of our marine-themed hotels. We are now
concentrating on promoting the integration between consumption
and entertainment scenarios with our oceanic offerings to
diversify our consumption scenarios.
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While operating our oceanic IPs, we also set sight on the
business potential of interactive cooperation with internationally
renowned IPs. We will continue to provide a diverse range of
premium international IPs for our increasing number of on-
ground entertainment and consumption scenarios with focus on
novel consumption scenarios. For instance, we have successfully
introduced IP licensing of Ultraman Series into the Shanghai Park
under which the world’s first Ultraman-themed hotel, themed
restaurant, performance theatre and other theme offerings will
soon be launched in the Shanghai Park. The Shanghai Park will
also develop limited edition of Ultraman merchandises, parades
and other activities. The cooperation on Ultraman series serves as
an important layout for our IP strategy which allows our distinctive
marine culture to realise organic integration with Ultraman series,
thereby enriching the product offerings and enhancing the playing
enjoyment of visitors of the Shanghai Park.

We will establish new IP marketing geographical coverage
and scale in the market segment we are familiar with. We will
successively enter into cooperation with owners of globally
influential IPs to integrate those IPs into our theme parks, scenic
areas, lifestyle hotels, commercial properties and other on-ground
consumption and entertainment scenarios, and translate the
unique cohesiveness and backflow effect of those IPs into private
traffic and eventually build a new roadmap for marketing with
moats of IP consumption scenarios, private traffic, IP merchandise
output and supply chain business.

OUTLOOK FOR 2022

Entering into 2022, we are still facing the challenges arising
from COVID pandemic prevention and control and the
weak consumption sentiment. In spite of this, our strategic
transformation over the last year is beginning to bear fruit. With
the development of our value regeneration strategy, we are
confident that we will overcome hurdles and obstacles to grow.
The theme park operation segment is our fundamental business
which creates robust traffic. The tourism & leisure services and
solutions segment is the foundation for our effective expansion
which provides us unlimited consumption scenarios. The marine
culture-based theme and other IP commercialisation provides us

HAICHANG OCEAN PARK HOLDINGS LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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with premium consumption offerings. We believe a resonating
relationship can be built among consumption scenarios,
consumption offerings and traffic. As we now have a broad base
of fans, we will further promote the co-existence of our traffic
with those from other cooperation resources. We look forward
to delivering better performance in 2022 for value creation to
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to convey my heartfelt
appreciation to all our staff members for their contribution and
devotion. | would also like to express my sincere gratitude to our
visitors, consumers and all business associates for the continued
support. Our goal is to become a company helping people to have
fun to the fullest by creating a place filled with “dream, love,

joy"!

Yours sincerely,
Qu Naijie
Chairman
25 March 2022
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading marine-life theme park developer and
operator in China. As at 31 December 2021, there were 10
theme parks operating under the brand name of “Haichang” and
one theme park under construction in China. We offer visitors
a comprehensive tourism and leisure experience encompassing
leisure, entertainment, dining, shopping and accommodation
in our theme parks together with auxiliary commercial facilities.
Meanwhile, we continue to deliver our products and solutions
of oceanic culture and capability across the country, in order to
allow more consumers to enjoy our wide range of interesting and
creative oceanic culture-based tourism and leisure products. Our
goal is to become a company helping people to have fun to the
fullest by creating a place filled with “dream, love, joy”, where
we can continue to offer people unique and distinctive oceanic
culture-based tourism and leisure products and experience.

In 2021, as China saw signs of gradual containment of the
COVID pandemic and recovery of domestic tourism spending, our
business significantly improved compared with 2020. However,
due to repeatedly confirmed cases in certain areas, strict public
health measures and corresponding travel restrictions remained
in place nationwide, which still had significant impacts on our
business. The Group’s revenue increased from RMB1,168.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB2,460.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, representing a
year-on-year increase of 110.6%. In particular, revenue generated
from park operation increased from RMB1,134.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB1,824.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, representing a year-on-year increase
of 60.8%. Gross profit made a positive turnaround from the loss
of RMB129.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to a
profit of RMB721.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
Our EBITDA turned positive to a profit of RMB2,170.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 from the loss of RMB429.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2020. Compared with the
net loss of RMB1,478.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, we recorded a net profit of RMB834.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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EEE R KRS MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended
31 December
HZE12A31BLLEE

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Revenue by business BEBEE DA

Park operation NEEE 1,824,162 1,134,713
Ticket sales P E 1,161,227 635,264
In-park spendings ER5E 480,227 321,362
Rental income HE WA 75,972 85,907
Income from hotel operations B YA 106,736 92,180

Income from tourism & leisure services SR AR TS M AR5 2RI A
and solutions 51,810 33,509
Property sales Y S E 584,228 -
Total HEt 2,460,200 1,168,222

Note: In-park spendings include revenue from sales of food and
beverages, sales of merchandises, and in-park recreation income

Park operation

As at 31 December 2021, there were 10 theme parks operating
under the brand name of “Haichang” and one theme park under
construction in China. We own and operate six theme parks and
have one theme park under construction. On 23 December 2021,
we completed the transfer of 100% equity interest in the theme
parks of the Group in Wuhan, Chengdu, Tianjin and Qingdao. For
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
18 October 2021 and 23 December 2021 published on the Stock
Exchange.
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EEE R KRS MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The table below sets forth our existing and disposed theme parks

TRERTRAREH LA EERE

=

Year of

Park Theme Location opening  Site area Scenic rating
G| £ g BERE (tEE =BT
Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park Polar ocean and Shanghai 2018 Approximately 297,000 square metres 4A

(the “Shanghai Park’) amusement facilities
TEBEEERE ([ LERE)) B8 R R i) 2018 #2978 F 4A
Sanya Haichang Fantasy Town Immersive cultural Sanya 2019 Approximately 98,000 square metres  To be

(the “Sanya Project’) and recreational determined

complex

—HBEBEF AR ((Z58A ) MEAXREAE =% 2019 #1988 F ¥
Zhengzhou Haichang Ocean Park Polar ocean and Zhengzhou Under  Approximately 425,000 square metres To be

(the “Zhengzhou Project’) amusement facilities construction determined
BMEEEFRE ([BMNER]) B8 LR ) R N45ET i
Dalian Haichang Discoveryland Amusement facilities Dalian 2006 Approximately 71,000 square metres  5A

Theme Park
REEERRTETELE BERE AiE 2006 A71ET 5A
Dalian Laohutan Ocean Park Polar ocean Dalian 2002 Approximately 38,000 square metres  5A
REELREETLE ki Nched AiE 2002 #1388 5A
Chongaing Haichang Caribbean Water Park ~ Water park Chongging 2009  Approximately 65,000 square metres  4A
ERBEMBLEKER K4 BF 2009 #1658 T 4A
Yantai Haichang Ocean Park Polar ocean Yantai 2011 Approximately 32,000 square metres ~ 4A
E&EE8FAE Lbioyedes E& 2011 #1328 4A

Below are the disposed theme parks
AT RN EELNE

Chengdu Haichang Polar Ocean Park Polar ocean Chengdu 2010 Approximately 49,000 square metres ~ 4A
IS Rz hey N g g 2010  #H498F 4A
Tianjin Haichang Polar Ocean Park Polar ocean Tianjin 2010 Approximately 49,000 square metres ~ 4A
XEFERMTENE Libicpched RE 2010 #1498 4A
Qingdao Haichang Polar Ocean Park Polar ocean Qingdao 2006 Approximately 45,000 square metres  4A
E58ERMET AR ki ycyed 55 2006 #1455F 4A
Wuhan Haichang Polar Ocean Park Polar ocean Wuhan 2011 Approximately 43,000 square metres ~ 4A
RESEHET R E b opedes HE 2011 H438F 4A

NEEBEBZMNWABREZEZ2020F12 A 31
BILFEENARBIABMTEETERES
HZE2021F12A31HIEFEMNARE

1,824.2B8 870 RALERE60.8% & Ki&
F|2019F R HAM66.8% °

Revenue from park operation increased from RMB1,134.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB1,824.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, representing a year-on-year
increase of 60.8% and a recovery to 66.8% of that in the same
period of 2019.

2021 EWRE BEELBERERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEstia R o

In 2021, the total number of ticket buyers and park visitors was
6,593 thousand and 9,899 thousand, representing an increase of
22.5% and 18.9% from the same period of 2020 and recovered
to 50.2% and 60.0% of that in the same period of 2019,
respectively. In respect solely of the Shanghai Park, the number
of ticket buyers and park visitors increased by 37.6% and 27.8%
from the same period of 2020 and recovered to 51.1% and
65.1% of that in the same period of 2019, respectively.

In 2021, driven by the recovery from COVID-19 pandemic and the
stronger tourists’ demand for short-haul travel, the Shanghai Park
once recovered its turnover to 80.3% of that in the same period
of 2019 during the first half of 2021. Unfortunately, the repeat of
the pandemic in the primary peak season of the Shanghai Park
in the second half of 2021 took a toll on the tourists’ desire to
travel. The Shanghai Park performed below expectations during
the period, which led to a revenue recovery of the Shanghai Park
of only 63.3% from 2019 on an annual basis. We are looking
forward to operating the Shanghai Park under a more normalised
operating environment.

During 2021, the Shanghai Park was further upgraded in different
aspects with aims to provide enriched contents and enhanced
experience to visitors. Those upgrades included the launch of
scuba diving activity, the presentation of lighting shows and
artists performances at night, the host of carnivals, the upgrading
and renovation of amusement facilities, and the enhancement
of animal-interactive experience through integration of ocean
science. It also launched a number of underwater performances,
hosted a wide range of activities such as whale-themed
food street, food market at Dishui Lake and robotic gourmet
carnival, and offered products such as firework dining packages
and mermaid-themed live dining shows at the Whale Shark
Restaurant.

Having opened only for less than 4 years, the Shanghai Park was
rated as the Best Theme Park in China for 2021 by the Institute
for Theme Park Studies in China, the Most Popular Attraction
2021 by Ctrip, and a Must-Visit Shanghai Attraction on the Must-
Visit List by Meituan x Dianpian, for its exquisitely interesting polar
ocean and entertaining facilities and experience offerings. With
the successive openings of recreational venues, including the
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Shanghai Astronomy Museum, in the proximity of the Shanghai
Park, and the increasing popularity of urban leisure and holiday
travel, we sought to develop an international ocean-themed
tourism and holiday resort by further building an urban holiday
resort complex in the vicinity. In this regard, we commenced the
construction work for phase Il of the Shanghai Park last year.
Neighbouring with the existing Shanghai Park, the phase Il project
will comprise an ocean-themed hotel, a hot spring hotel, an
aquarium and a commercial street. We expect that the opening
of the phase Il project will further increase the accommodation
capacity and prolong visitors’ staying time for their greater
enjoyment.

In 2021, revenue of our Sanya Project increased by 71.6%
from that of 2020. However, due to the continual impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on travel, its revenue recovered to 64.9% of
that in the same period of 2019.

The Sanya Project is located in Haitang Bay, a renowned tourists’
resort destination. We have developed an immersive oceanic
cultural and recreational complex in the park which includes
an internet-famous city landmark, namely the Eye of Sanya
which is an 88-metre tall Ferris wheel, and a variety of artists
performances, carnivals, amusement facilities, diving activities
and theme restaurants. The Sanya Project is all-inclusive vacation
destination for nightlife, and seamlessly combine the Maritime
Silk Road culture, the Hainanese culture and ocean culture
which satisfies the comprehensive demand of visitors for leisure
and entertainment under an open business model focusing on
the four major business formats, namely amusement, catering,
entertainment and shopping. Being the sole cultural tourism
project in Hainan Province, the Sanya Project has been short-
listed as one of the first national gathering spot for nightlife
culture and travel consumption. We are confident in the resilience
and the future in tourism and hospitality of Sanya, in particular
of Haitang Bay, for its position as a natural tourism and vacation
destination and that it is correct and meaningful for us to establish
our presence there. In the future, we will continue to make use of
the remaining vacant site to further develop an immersive cultural,
recreational and commercial complex, thereby making the Sanya
Project a well-known resort destination.

# MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE Bt Rk 2

Hotels

Currently, the Group’s hotel business mainly provides services
for our theme parks. In the course of our ocean-themed hotel
operation, we noted that lifestyle hotels adequately cater
increasing demand for holiday hotels of consumers. This can be
proved by our financial results. Revenue from our overall hotel
business for 2021 rebounded to 102.1% of that in 2019. For
the Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park Resort Hotel, the revenue
recovery reached to 117.8% of that in the same period of 2019.

We were thus inspired to reassess the potential of lifestyle hotels
under the current situation. In order to further increase the
accommodation capacity and prolong visitors’ staying time of the
Shanghai Park, we focused our effort on increasing hotel supply
in the neighbourhood of the Shanghai Park. Specifically, our
existing hotels will be renovated to increase the number of rooms
by approximately 100, and our resort hotel and ocean-themed
hotel under phase Il project and our penguin-themed hotel
under construction near the Shanghai Park will together provide
an addition of approximately 1,100 rooms. We will also further
identify opportunities for opening lifestyle hotels that integrate with
our oceanic culture. We find it a fascinating style for vacation.

18 HAICHANG OCEAN PARK HOLDINGS LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE Bt Rk 2

Pandemic measures

We adopted a number of measures to minimise the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic on our business, ensure the health
and safety of our customers and staff, and facilitate business
resumption. These measures included without limiting to:

Disinfecting main venues, facilities, visitors’ area and office
area for multiple times every day;

- Strictly performing body temperature measurement on
visitors at park entrances using our high-tech infrared
thermal imagers to reduce the risk of pandemic spread;

- Stringently formulating emergency response plan for
pandemic prevention and control, and regularly conducting
comprehensive emergency exercises at company level;

- Providing health caring and monitoring on the health of our
employees for pandemic prevention;

- Enforcing strict control on the safety of cold-chain feeds for
ocean animals, and arranging regular nucleic acid tests for
contacting staff;

- Setting up customer care programme to provide

rescheduling and cancellation services according to relevant
requirements.

HAICHANG OCEAN PARK HOLDINGS LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Tourism & leisure services and solutions (OaaS)

In 2021, we comprehensively fostered the development of
our tourism & leisure services and solutions business, namely
Operation as a Service (OaaS). We leveraged on our strengths in
providing the full-process of mature cultural tourism and leisure
services and solutions covering solution design, construction work
management, operation services, brand output, etc, to deliver
our oceanic capacity and culture to cultural tourism projects in
different places, with targets including aquariums, major ocean-
centered projects, especially ocean-themed resort projects,
oceanic culture-themed lifestyle hotel and commercial projects,
and snow parks.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue
from tourism & leisure services and solutions business increased
by 54.6% from the same period of 2020, primarily attributable to
the recovery of market demand for the business amid improved
pandemic situation.

In 2021, the Group was in the course of negotiation for a number
of agreements for this business segment. The Group secured six
new agreements with a total contract value of over RMB50 million,
for which the Group realised a revenue of approximately RMB21
million in 2021. Also in 2021, Haichang Ocean Park entered
into nine strategic cooperation agreements with major industry
high-profile companies, and is expected to provide tourism &
leisure services and solutions to those partners in the future.
Many companies have expressed their interests in cooperating
with us, and we are negotiating to secure contracts with over
10 companies for cooperation on construction consulting and
operation services.
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Property development and sales

In 2021, the Group realised a revenue of approximately
RMB584.2 million from property development and sales segment.
A substantial part of the revenue was generated from sales of
ancillary residential properties in the neighbourhood of our parks,
which were ancillary property developments for our parks. As at
31 December 2021, the Group had properties held for sales with
a total carrying value of RMB44.3 million, all of them are expected
to be sold in the future. In addition, the Group is cooperating with
those disposed parks to assist their future sale of those properties
held for sales of the disposed parks with a total carrying value
of RMB114.9 million for additional source of income. Currently,
the Group still holds certain properties for development. Apart
from the above, the Group had investment properties with a

total carrying value of approximately RMB802.8 million as at 31
December 2021. The Group will decide how to deal with those
properties according to its business plan.
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OUTLOOK

Our goal is to become a company helping people to have fun to
the fullest by creating a place filled with “dream, love, joy”, where
we can continue to offer people unique and distinctive oceanic
culture-based tourism and leisure products and experience.

We will continue to expand our theme park assets. Efforts
have been made to accelerate the phase Il construction of
the Shanghai Park, which is expected to further increase the
accommodation capacity and prolong visitors’ staying time
of the Shanghai Park. Zhengzhou Haichang Ocean Park (the
“Zhengzhou Project”) will meet all requirements for operation by
2024. We will then work on the planning for further development
and expansion of other parks, including the Sanya Project.

We will continue to upgrade our theme parks and provide visitors
with more interesting and creative products and contents, in order
to strengthen our product competitiveness and enhance visitors’
experience. In particular, new elements will be introduced into
our parks through formulating new IP strategies and introducing
famous IP. We will seek to increase our IP operation capability for
external output of our IP derivatives in the future.

We will continue to foster the development of our tourism &
leisure services and solutions business. With the aim of offering
refreshing experience to consumers, we will deliver our oceanic
capability and culture to cultural tourism projects in different
places, with targets including aquariums, major ocean-centered
projects, especially ocean-themed resort projects, oceanic
culture-themed lifestyle hotel and commercial projects, and snow
parks.

It is our expectation to further improve our management of
working capital, increase our capital utilisation efficiency and
optimise our capital structure. We are expanding the phase |l
development of the Shanghai Park through asset-light approach,
under which our partner is responsible for providing facilities and
we are responsible for providing operation services. Improved
capital utilisation efficiency has been achieved under such
business model. We will further explore possibilities of business
expansion and improvement of capital utilisation efficiency
through the adoption of asset-light model.
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We are also taking active steps to explore new realms that
are beneficial to cultural tourism. With the idea of integrating
technology into the ocean world, we have recently unveiled the
world’s first-ever bionic whale shark in Shanghai Park. The bionic
whale shark can highly simulate all movements of the real ones,
which enrich visitors’ experience. In the future, this bionic whale
shark will be installed with different sensors for monitoring water
quality, photo-shooting, video-recording and other functions. We
have previously tried to release ocean NFT digital blind boxes
of Haichang’s unique IPs with the theme of ocean. This debut
marked the starting point of Haichang’s connection with the
metaverse and our latest masterpiece to proactively link up with
the Generation Z. Our intention is to convey our brand proposition
of “dream, love, joy” to all visitors through art pieces with novel
digital equity.
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EERTTUABFRIE  UNWEBERBIPS
NBEBAENFTEFES - &R/
KEBEREITTHENERYY B2
BIZZWKHRINE - FEE[HSZA
FeAREINMELTR  BBHFMNUTF
RSBmO - BEGIAER
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS OF THE

GROUP IN 2021

Award/Recognition
B®IE BB

Awarding institution/Organiser

R Ve i)

2021 FANEEEERIE

Awardee

ERER

Must-visit Shanghai Attraction on the Must-Visit List
W FRUITRE
Must-stay on the Must-Stay List

WIS

Most Popular Cultural Tourism Brand of Ctrip 2021
2021 BIRIRAT — BRI B Xk

Most Popular Attraction 2021

0N EEEXBIRY

Ctrip Reputation List - Most Popular Hotel 2021

BROBE 2021 5ZB0RE

Best Strategic Cooperative Scenic Area in China’s Tourism
Industry of the Year

FEREEFEREEBEERE

Favourite Family Hotel

RTEEBE
Pearl List of Caibeike 2021 - Family Landmark Attraction
01 FEVARVUE - R HERE

Pearl List of Caibeike 2021 - Theme Amusement Park Hotel

01 FER ARV G — TRLBERE
Tianjing Internet-Famous Check-in Spot

[EPIBALIT R )
Yantai Demonstration Gathering Spot for Night Economy
[EeTREALETEZER ]
Best Theme Park Operator for China Theme
Park Development Summit Forum 2021
1 EEHETRAERER LRI TR ERTELT
Best Theme Park in China 2021
2021 R EREFRLE
Top 20 China Tourism Groups

o B s 2 B 2098

Excellent Business Case on ESG Performance
in China’s Cultural Tourism Industry

RERITERITH S RAEAFLCER

Meituan x Dianping
EExKRE

Meituan x Dianping

EExARET
Ctrip

BR2IRTT
Ctrip

BRIRIT
Ctrip

BRRIRTT
Ctrip

BRI
Fliggy x Alibaba

RE<MEBRE
Caibeike
PER
Caibeike

A EJ'L
FER

Tianjin Municipal Bureau of Culture and
Tourism, Tianjin Haihe Media Group
REMXCAIRE R - REEAEESL

Yantai Municipal Bureau of Commerce

BamABR

Institute for Theme Park Studies in China

PEIERETER

Institute for Theme Park Studies in China

hEIBERERER

China Tourism Academy, China Tourism

Association
HRElRER R - PRIREHES

China Association of Amusement Parks

and Attractions
REEERELR R

HAICHANG OCEAN PARK HOLDINGS LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park
HEEEEFRE
Shanghai Haichang Ocean
Park Resort Hotel
HEBERFRRERBE
Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park
HEBEEFRE
Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park
LEEEEFAR
Shanghai Haichang Ocean
Park Resort Hotel
HEBERFRRERBE
Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park

HEBEEENE
Shanghai Haichang Ocean

Park Resort Hotel
LEEEEFRREREE
Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park
HEBERELR
Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park
HEBEEFNE
Tianjin Haichang Polar Ocean Park

REBEMM G AE

Yantai Haichang Fisherman’s Wharf
BaEERAIGE

Haichang Ocean Park

BERFLE

Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park
HEBEEENE

Haichang Ocean Park

BERFLE
Haichang Ocean Park

BEEELE
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Award/Recognition

%5/ REB mEE A

Awarding institution/Organiser

Awardee

ERER

Ferris Award - CAAPA Quality
Cultural Tourism Project on the
List of Influential Quality of
China’s Cultural Tourism
Enterprise 2021

and Attractions

BRI - 2021 RENROETE N
hE B 5B SUHRIE B CAAPA

National Brand of the Year 2021 Mobile Video
2021 FEBIR mAg IR EE
ESG

Not only being a leading marine-life theme park developer and
operator in China, Haichang Ocean Park is also a pioneer in
conservation of ocean and polar animals, and one of the key
ocean conservancy organisations. Haichang Ocean Park has
been actively fulfilling its responsibilities in conservation of ocean
and polar animals.

Haichang Ocean Park has the world-class venues for keeping and
breeding animals in the world. Our animal nursery is designed
to completely mimic the nature and equipped with the most
internationally advanced life-supporting systems for animals. We
operate our animal raising facilities in full and strict compliance
with national standards and provide them with the most premium
living space.

We have a professional animal conservation team consisting of
nearly 1,000 members, who play an active role in the species
protection and rescue operations nationwide. Over more than a
decade, Haichang Ocean Park has successfully bred over 1,000
rare polar ocean animals of over 20 species. We rank first and
has an internationally-leading position in terms of the diversity and
number of species bred.

China Association of Amusement Parks

TEEEREXERE

Shanghai Haichang Ocean
Park, Sanya Haichang
Fantasy Town, Dalian
Haichang Discoveryland
Theme Park, Chongaing
Haichang Caribbean Water
Park, Tianjin Haichang
Polar Ocean Park and
Qingdao Haichang Polar
Ocean Park

HEaEEFRAE
ZHREBRASFIR
AEBEFRTHTBERE
ERBEMPLAKER -
XEBEHMEFLER
FEEBERNETAE

Haichang Ocean Park

BEEFAE

ESG

BEEBFRAEARPEBLENEBEFIER
B EmEELR RS BREFRIR
WAEMREBRNEEE  BEERD
BEEYMEB L — - BEEBFRABREE
ARBWEYMRE T HERMETEE
£

BEBFLAERAERA-RNEARES
5 HAMAEYABSE T2 RHEE
RRFLE KEBRRRTENEYE
ERE - Y EE KRG T 2 1% B K
EMRERBHNT  REVRERKES
HYAETFZEfE

BMERI1,000 ANEXERE B -
BERLESPESHHYEREERET
e +8FR  BEBFLABRKNNEE
2082 1& 1,000 2 & XA 2 18 1% 0 )8 JF &)
Y BEYELRBERRNE —  BEEE
513 o
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As at 31 December 2021,
of over 300 animals during the year,

Haichang Ocean Park bred a total
including over 40 large
animals of 11 species, 250 sea turtles of 2 species, over 40 pets
and large fishes of 8 species. We succeeded in the first indoor
breeding of green sea turtles and red sea turtles in China and
we were honoured to be highly acclaimed by the Ministry of
Agriculture and Rural Affairs for such achievements. In 2020, we
were designated by the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs
as a “national base for conservation and breeding of sea turtle
species”.

To cooperate with China’'s local competent authorities and
animal protection organisations, Haichang Ocean Park takes
active participation in rescue operations for aquatic wildlife
relief. We conducted a total of 13 wildlife rescue operations in
cooperation with competent authorities during the year, in which
over 20 rare aquatic wild animals were rescued. We also took
active participation in the Yangtze finless porpoise protection
programme organised by the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural
Affairs by making multiple visits to finless porpoise reserves to
conduct health examination for finless porpoises and ex-situ
conservation study with the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural
Affairs. In April 2021, our animal conversation and medical team
went to the Yangtze finless porpoise ex-situ reserves to assist
the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs for porpoise health
examination and transportation between reserves. During the
period from March to December 2021, our team took part in
rescue operations and saved 3 pantropical spotted dolphins,
1 dwarf sperm whale, 1 Omura’s whale, 1 Fraser’s dolphin, 3
green sea turtles and 2 hawksbill turtles. In July 2021, our team
participated in an urgent operation in Taizhou and Ningbo to
rescue melon-headed whales and rough-toothed dolphins which
were stranded in the wild. After stationing there for 10 days, a
number of whales and dolphins were rescued and released.

Over the years, Haichang Ocean Park has made consistent
efforts in fulfilling its responsibility of polar and ocean animal
protection and science education, and has committed to creating
a better living environment for animals and helping people better
understand ocean animals. In this regard, we have commenced
science education in our national, provincial and municipal

science education bases located in our marine-life theme parks.

HAICHANG OCEAN PARK HOLDINGS LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Currently, Haichang Ocean Park has 15 titles of national science
education bases (including five “Polar Science Education Bases”
granted by the Polar Inspection Office of China (#F Bl = £ A
%)) and 13 provincial bases for science education and research-
based study. Our achievements in public science education are
as follows:

- Set up an animal conservation foundation to promote
development of charitable activities for ocean animal
conservation;

- Issued the “Haichang Awards”, an award for aquatic wildlife
protection, for years, in recognition of those scientific
research institutions, companies and people who care about
social welfare for their outstanding contribution to aquatic
wildlife protection;

- Joined species conservation alliances to give support and
security to rare aquatic wildlife conservation and protection;

- Organised and participated in science education activities
by making full use of the national, provincial and municipal
science education bases located in our marine-life theme
parks;

- Undertook the opening ceremony of the National Popular
Science Promotion Month for the Ministry of Agriculture and
Rural Affairs and launched science education programmes
in animal protection;

- Attended or undertook the annual popular science meetings
held by the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs and
promotion activities for science education in conservation of
international endangered species;

- Entered into cooperation on the promotion of conservation
and breeding of Chinese aquatic wildlife species and
conservation and science education of Yangtze porpoise
Species;

In addition, Haichang Ocean Park has also practiced social
responsibility in social welfare. Since 2015, Haichang Ocean
Park has promoted the Month of Caring the Families with Autism

BRATEESFREREG15EBRER
EHEEMME  HPhlhEKimE
EMAERTORE RO EHREE
#] o 13{EE RBEHE RFREM o A
TREMERDFHE I E T MAAR

- KRIEYRELAZEDS S HESE
HEMREAREETENER

— RBRMKEHFETMRERGSHE]
ZF  REEKEFEDMRES
E R BB #E -
MEBLRTEAL

- MAYREBREBRR  SPWHKEH
EEYRE RERESIFRE

- RAVNBETESFEIEAEIRHA
R B TARAMEHEEMED
B2 MM ERE LR

— ABEEENNMEEEARDE
RUBEEYRE RS EHE T
e :

~ SMAFEHBERNBHEER
ERERDBREN S HED

- FHERPBEKEFEDYRE  ZF
ERETIBYERE M EEEA
BAE-

o BEBFABRDMERBITEATA
e ET - BEBFAEB20154F
EHBFIRAINBEREREE A |TE
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Patients in every April. During the month, families with autism
patients are offered free visit to our parks. It is a social caring
activity we have initiated for six consecutive years to show our
love to autism patients. To date, we have received thousands of
families with autism patients.

DIGITALISATION

As the traditional industries in China have just started to digitalise,
we opted to embrace the digital transformation with positive
attitude. The Group is still in the early stage of digitalisation
and we believe there is ample potential in this area. With the
digitalisation, we are able to achieve accurate marketing, refined
operation, and enhancement of users’ operation and experience.

Digital management allows us to monitor the operation of
our parks in real-time for better implementation of refined
management and operation. We are now strengthening our ability
in digital marketing in order to access to our potential visitors in
a more accurate manner. Providing digital services also upgrades
the in-park experience of our visitors. Our digital products
including holographic light shows and MR phantom imaging, have
enriched visitors’ experience. We are also in the attempt of further
exploring the forefront of digitalisation. Recently, we have tried
to release ocean NFT digital blind boxes of Haichang’s unique
IPs with the theme of ocean. This debut marked the starting
point of Haichang’s connection with the metaverse and our latest
masterpiece to proactively link up with the Generation Z. We
hope to convey our brand proposition of “dream, love, joy” to all
visitors through art pieces with novel digital equity.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded
a turnover of approximately RMB2,460.2 million (2020:
approximately RMB1,168.2 million), representing an increase of
approximately 110.6% when compared with last year. During
2021, our park operation business, which remains our principal
business, was still significantly affected by the recurrence of the
COVID-19 pandemic, the strict public health measures and the
corresponding travel restrictions in different regions. Meanwhile,
the growth was partly contributed by our property sales in 2021,
which was attributable to the completion of property sales in
respect of certain particular projects during the year.

HAICHANG OCEAN PARK HOLDINGS LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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As at 31 December

BZ12H831H
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARMTFT % ARMTFT %
Revenue by Business WEBEI DA
Park operation NEEE 1,824,162 74.1% 1,134,713 97.1%
Tourism & leisure services SR ARTS R R R T 5
and solutions 51,810 2.1% 33,509 2.9%
Property sales MEIHE 584,228 23.8% - -
Total F 2,460,200 100.0% 1,168,222 100.0%

Revenue generated from the Group’s park operation segment
increased by approximately 60.8% from approximately
RMB1,134.7 million in 2020 to approximately RMB1,824.2 million
in 2021, primarily attributable to the increase in the number of
ticket buyers and the number of visitors amid improved pandemic
situation.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue generated from
the Group’s tourism & leisure services and solutions increased to
approximately RMB51.8 million in 2021, primarily attributable to
the recovery of market demand for the business amid improved
pandemic situation.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue generated from
the Group’s property sales segment amounted to approximately
RMB584.2 million, primarily attributable to the completion of
property sales in respect of certain particular projects during the
year. No revenue was recorded from this segment in 2020.

REAAEBAEEED AW AH2020
FHOAREAAB4.7TEHE T BEY
60.8% E£2021 FH AR 1,824.28H 8
T FEHREBHE  BEAZKA
B AZUEAPTE ©

HZE2021F12A31HILFE - A&H
NIRRT M BRR T R D EIE R E2021F
MARKES1.8BET TEBRRNEBY
B MigmEREBNTREIRERM
o

HZE2021F12A31BILFE - KEBY
EHEDBRANARKESS42EHETT
FEHRAFERIEETKEEIHEEFT
B 2020F 9 B o
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Cost of Sales

As at 31 December

BZ12A31H
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARMTFTT % ARMFT %
Cost of Sales by Business WETEE D ISR
Park operation NEEL 1,422,861 81.8% 1,275,988 98.3%
Tourism & leisure services SR AR TS I R R T 5
and solutions 29,527 1.7% 21,489 1.7%
Property sales Y E 286,547 16.5% - -
Total et 1,738,935 100.0% 1,297,477 100.0%

The Group’s cost of sales increased by approximately 34.0%
from approximately RMB1,297.5 million in 2020 to approximately
RMB1,738.9 million in 2021, primarily attributable to the increase
of costs of property sales and the increased operating cost upon

business resumption of our parks.

Gross Profit/(Loss)

HERAEMEAE
PSSR DNATER o

£/, (18)

@
ey

As at 31 December

AEBREEKRNH2020FH AR
1,297.56B&7T * EINAI34.0%FE20214F
PANREEA1 738908 EL TEENYE

PRAE A T & =&

BZ12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARMFT % ARETFIT %
Gross Profit/(Loss) by REBESWERN,(18)
Business
Park operation NEEE 401,301 55.6% (141,275) 109.3%
Tourism & leisure services SR AR TS I Rk T 5
and solutions 22,283 3.1% 12,020 -9.3%
Property sales MFIEE 297,681 41.3% - -
Total et 721,265 100.0% (129,255) 100.0%

HAICHANG OCEAN PARK HOLDINGS LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s overall gross
profit was approximately RMB721.3 million (2020: gross loss of
approximately RMB129.3 million), resulting in an overall gross
profit margin of approximately 29.3% (2020: gross loss margin of
approximately 11.1%).

Gross profit of the Group’s park operation segment was
approximately RMB401.3 million (2020: gross loss of
approximately RMB141.3 million) for the year ended 31 December
2021. Such positive turnaround was primarily attributable to the
significant increase in park revenue.

Gross profit of the Group’s tourism & leisure services and
solutions segment was approximately RMB22.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Gross profit of the Group’s property sales segment was
approximately RMB297.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Other Income and Gains

The Group’s other income and gains increased by approximately
961.6% from approximately RMB251.7 million in 2020 to
approximately RMB2,672.1 million in 2021, primarily attributable
to the completion of the disposal of equity interests in four
theme park projects with an investment gain of approximately
RMB2,473.8 million.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses increased by
approximately 33.4% from approximately RMB169.0 million
in 2020 to approximately RMB225.4 million in 2021,
attributable to the increase in sales and marketing activities

primarily

which was in line with the significant revenue recovery of our park
operation segment during the year.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately
69.7% from approximately RMB676.2 million in 2020 to
approximately RMB1,147.6 million in 2021, primarily attributable
to the impairment loss of approximately RMB571.3 million on
certain long-term assets as the pandemic impact that affects the
park operation and adjustments to business development plan
has not yet been entirely eliminated.

# MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HZE2021F12A31BIEFE - AEEH
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(Z2021F12 AB1 B ILEE » REEY
BRDIBHEFNBARE207.7EHE

H AW A K W a8
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Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by approximately 18.2%
from approximately RMB598.7 million in 2020 to approximately
RMB489.9 million in 2021, primarily attributable to the decrease
in total bank loans of the Group.

Income Tax (Expense)/Credit

The Group recorded an income tax credit of approximately
RMB39.10 million in 2020 and income tax expense of
approximately RMB362.9 million in 2021. Such change was
primarily attributable to the income tax arising from the disposal
of equity interests in four theme park projects and the income tax
and land appreciation tax arising from property sales. The income
tax arising from the disposal of equity interests in parks was
RMB241.5 million.

Profit/(Loss) for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group realised a profit for
the year of approximately RMB834.2 million (2020: loss of
approximately RMB1,478.5 million) with a net profit margin of
approximately 33.9% (2020: net loss margin of approximately
126.6%). For the same period, profit attributable to owners of the
parent amounted to approximately RMB844.9 million (2020: loss
attributable to owners of the parent: approximately RMB1,451.6
million).

Capital Expenditure

Our major capital expenditure was primarily incurred for
park renovation and facility upgrade. We funded our capital
expenditure from our internal resources, bank borrowings and
leases. For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, the
Group’s capital expenditure amounted to RMB219.8 million and
RMB204.2 million, respectively.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had current assets
of approximately RMB3,597.9 million (2020: approximately
RMB3,768.6 million). As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
cash and bank deposits of approximately RMB3,206.7 million
(2020: approximately RMB2,408.1 million).
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Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately RMB3,830.5 million (2020: approximately
RMB3,000.3 million). As at 31 December 2021, total interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB5,194.0 million (2020: approximately
RMB9,195.7 million). As at 31 December 2021, total lease
liabilities of the Group amounted to approximately RMB60.4
million (2020: total approximately RMB53.7 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a net gearing ratio of
approximately 53.5% (as at 31 December 2020: approximately
228.0%). The net liabilities of the Group included interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities, less cash and
cash equivalents. The decrease in the net gearing ratio as at
31 December 2021 was primarily attributable to the significant
decrease in interest-bearing debts during the year.

QOur liquidity as at 31 December 2021 improved because of the
following measure taken on top of our usual business operations:

— On 23 December 2021, the transfer of 100% equity interest
in the Group’s theme park projects in Wuhan, Chengdu,
Tianjin and Qingdao was completed. For details, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 18 October
2021 and 23 December 2021 published on the Stock
Exchange. Upon completion, the Company had a net gain
on investment of approximately RMB2,232.4 million.

As indicated by the above figures, the Group has maintained
stable financial resources to meet its future commitments and
future investments for expansion. The Board believes that the
existing financial resources will be sufficient to execute future
expansion plans of the Group and the Group will be able to obtain
additional financing on favourable terms as and when necessary.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The share capital of the Company comprised only ordinary shares
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

HAREE

W=

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Guarantees in respect of the mortgage RAEEMFEERERIZIEREE
facilities granted to purchasers of the B HELR
Group’s properties - 191,840

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group mainly operates in China. Other than bank deposits
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group is not exposed
to any material risk related to fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates. The Directors do not expect any material adverse effect
on the operation of the Group arising from any fluctuation in the
exchange rate of RMB.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had capital
commitments of approximately RMB620.1 million (2020:
RMB632.9 million), which shall be funded through a variety of
means, including cash generated from operations, bank financing
etc..

STAFF POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of approximately
4,192 full-time employees (2020: 4,282 full-time employees). The
Group offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration,
retirement scheme and benefit packages to its employees.
Discretionary bonus is offered to the Group’s staff depending
on their work performance. The Group and its employees are
required to make contributions to social insurance schemes as
well as the pension insurance and unemployment insurance at the
rates specified in relevant laws and regulations.

The Group sets its emolument policy with reference to the

prevailing market conditions and individual performance and
experience.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

On 13 October 2021, the Company entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with some of the subsidiaries of
the Company as vendor and Aquaman Hong Kong Limited as
purchaser in relation to the disposal of 100% equity interests in
each of Wuhan Park, Chengdu Park, Qingdao Park and Tianjin
Park (the “Dalian Disposal’) and 66% of equity interest in
Zhengzhou Haichang Ocean Park Tourism Development Co., Ltd.
(the “Zhengzhou Disposal”) for a total consideration of RMB6.53
billion. The Dalian Disposal was completed on 23 December 2021
while the Zhengzhou Disposal has not satisfied the conditions for
completion up to date of this annual report. Save as disclosed
in this annual report, during the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group did not have any other significant investments, material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group did not have other plans for material
investments or capital assets.

FHSERIRE - MEAT - B
ERNRREELENERLEE
g3

R2021F10A13H » ARARIEEETF
M@ R ({EAZE ) kAquaman Hong
Kong Limited (tfERBE ) 51— A K
HEEWmZE  UARMK65.3EITHER
BEHERNERAE KEBAE - E52E
R 2ABESANE100%MKHE ([ KREH
EBE]) BMNEEBFRABRKRERRE
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KBEBHEEFHEDN2021F12H23H5%
K mMEBEEAFREHL  BINHES
BAIREDZENEM - BRARFIRATH R
YN HE2021F12A31BILFER -
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A BEARNEECENERKEX
HE o
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EETEl
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R HERERRSE

Haichang Ocean Park regards its Environment, Social and
Governance (ESG) initiatives as a pillar in support of a long-term,
healthy and sustainable development of the Company. We have
been leading other industry players by actively commencing social
responsibility activities as well as vigorously promoting animal
welfare, conservation and rescue. We also focus on protecting
ecological environment, implementing green and low-carbon
operation, safeguarding legal rights and interests of employees,
supporting poverty alleviation and pandemic precaution, caring for
autistic children and bringing health and joy to the disadvantaged.
In 2021, Haichang Ocean Park strengthened the daily ESG
management and implemented ESG projects so as to constantly
improve the ESG performance.

The Group published its first environmental, social and governance
(ESG) report in 2016, and this is our sixth ESG report, which
covers the ESG performance of the Group for the period from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2021, and some of the content
relates to the period outside such time frame.

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD

The purpose of the statement is to explain the Board’s governance
on the work relating to environment, social and governance and
its supervisory responsibility on those work.

Haichang Ocean Park Holding Co., Ltd. is well aware of the
importance of sound corporate governance, risk management
procedures and management on environment, social and
governance which is indispensable to the Company’s sustainable
development. The Group is dedicated to establishing a
comprehensive ESG governing mechanism for better ESG
management, striving for the goal of becoming a “World-class,
top-notch in China, innovative and practical” think tank for the
research and development of cultural tourism, pursuing green
development for harmony between environment and society as
well as stable environmental, social and corporate values in the
long term.
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The Group has implemented an ESG management system
under which the Board serves as the ultimate responsible party
to determine the ESG strategic plan, objectives, information
disclosure and material matters of the Company. The Board is
supported by its ESG Information Working Group comprising
relevant core departments which, under the guidance of the
Board, exercise decision-making in ESG governance, management
and relevant matters and daily works. As the executing unit of
the work relating to ESG, the ESG Information Working Group is
in charge of acting on specific work arranged by ESG Committee
of Directors. The Group, assisted by the coordination of the ESG
Information Working Group, has arranged regular discussions
on the risks and opportunities in the environmental, social and
governance aspects of the Company based on external macro
environment and development strategy of the Group and the
management of key issues would be counted in the annual
strategic work relating to sustainable development.

In the year 2021, in view of the internal and external
environment, the Group regarded park safety, customer services
and guarantees of employees’ interests as important parts of
ESG management. Park safety was identified as an issue of
high materiality by Haichang Ocean Group and was integrated
into the safety risks management system to enhance the safety
management of the park and responses to various emergencies.
The Group also emphasized the importance of customer services
and focused on improving customer services during the reporting
year and further strengthened resource integration and mutual
empowerment in leisure consumption. The Group also took active
steps to safeguard the interests of employees, and guaranteed the
safety and health of employees through multiple measures while
continuously introducing core talents through intensified efforts.
The ESG Information Working Group of the Group will regularly
assess the progress of the above objectives and report to the ESG
Committee of Directors to ensure the accomplishment of ESG
strategic goals.

The report disclosed the details of the progress and effect of
ESG work of Haichang Ocean Park Holding Ltd. in 2021 and was
reviewed and approved by the Board on 25 March 2022.
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ESG MANAGEMENT

Haichang Ocean Park has leveraged on its cross-divisional
ESG operational structure to clarify the working mechanism
and working route of the functional department in a
coordinated way and supported the sustainable work to be
conducted in a more professional, standard and institutional
manner. The Group has set up a ESG Information Working
Group comprising the Group's core departments such as the
Human Resources and Administration Department, Design
Management Department, Marketing Centre, Operation
Support Centre, Haichang Cultural Tourism Research
Institute, Costs and Procurement Department, and Capital
and Finance Department. The Group’s ESG Information
Working Group is responsible for organising and formulating
ESG action plans, collecting and collating qualitative and
quantitative ESG information, arranging the preparation
and preliminary review of ESG reports and coordinating the
presentation of ESG reports to the Board. ESG information
management officers are designated in each department
and project company to regularly collect, report and review
ESG information and ensure that the data and information
are comprehensive and accurate.

In 2021, the Group set out to refine and improve the ESG
governance structure in a bid to introduce and develop a
management system for ESG decision-making. We will set
up the ESG Taskforce in the future, which will be responsible
for executing all ESG-related resolutions of the Board,
regularly communicating with the relevant stakeholders to
understand their concerns, identifying significant ESG risks
and opportunities presenting to the Group at every stage,
and reporting to the Board and the management on a timely
basis.
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1.1 Stakeholders’ Engagement

Haichang Ocean Park has maintained the positive

mutual communication with both internal and external

stakeholders through continuous improvement in the

communication channels to gain better understanding
of the opinions and suggestions of the stakeholders,
and will collect and reply in a timely manner and

regard those as the driving force of advancing the

optimization the Group’s management, thus pushing

forward the sustainable development of the Group.

1.1 FIZiEE LS H
EEEFLARRBTE &)
R - BRI EFIZEERES
167455 T8 1 ) B 1) 02 3 B 175 4
EIE RN T BB S E
RMEz  HElE - REE
B OSHEAEE T R
B BLEEMBESN U8
HEDEAHERR -

Stakeholders Concerns Communication Channels
MRS BEFR BERE
Customers Quality services Hotline
Personal safety Complaint mechanism
Smooth communication channels Customer feedback
Privacy protection Satisfaction survey
P BE R ARES
AFRE R
GREnERRE BERE
BRLRE MEBERE

Shareholders and
investors

BRRMEEE

Earnings returns

Compliant operation

Information disclosure

Corporate governance

Involvement in decision-making process
5 [ 5

AREE

FRRE

rEER

DERFIRFF

Shareholders’ general meeting
Annual report

Group announcement

Special report

Roadshow and seminar
BRRREAE

FERE

SERE

HEER

BOE - g
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Stakeholders
FMBEEES

Concerns

BERR

Communication Channels

BERE

Government and

Paying taxes by law

Paying taxes proactively

regulatory Risk management Publishing reports regularly
authorities Social responsibility Providing employment opportunities

Information disclosure Inspecting recreation facilities regularly
Driving local economic development Receiving government representatives
Employment promotion
Operation safety

BT e E i HOEMTH FEA
g B MRS
HEaE R E R
EERE RS BRI
TEEMLERR BT R
TR
REEE

Staff Legal rights and interests Employees’ representative conference
Occupational health Periodic physical examination
Remuneration and benefits Professional training
Career development Organising staff activities
Staff care

BT AEER BIREZKRE
BxiE T Bk
FME A BRI
BEER BB TR
BETI@R

Suppliers Openness and fairness Open tendering
Honesty and trustworthiness Equal consultation
Performance of contracts Periodic evaluation

e YNNI UNEELEL
HETE TEHE
BREL T HIFE

Industry associations

Peer interaction

Compliance with standards
Reaching consensus
GELE)

EREE

VS

Formulation of industrial standards
Participation in industrial forums
Inspection and mutual visits
HIETTRIGE

SLER{THRIE

ZRE
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Stakeholders Concerns Communication Channels
MEAEEG BEHFR BERE
Social organisations  Animal protection Saving wildlife

Energy conservation
Waste disposal
Green office

Promoting animal protection
Replacing with energy-conservation lightings
Installing energy-conservation equipment

B BYRE KB EF £ B
ENRIEEIR SEHYRE
BEEVRE PHRERE R
REHRA LR E AL R 1
Community Supporting community and charity services Staff volunteer activities
Caring for special groups Charity donation
Caring for autistic children
N BRSUNFYN BIERMEED
BESRE R HERE
BEAMERE

Response to ESG Reporting Principles

Materiality: Haichang Ocean Park aimed to enhance

the specificity of reporting, further identify ESG issues

and assess their materiality in accordance with the ESG

Guide of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange to ensure the

comprehensiveness and accuracy of the information

disclosure in the report and high connectivity between

the issues and the stakeholders.

In 2021, Haichang Ocean Park has based on the clear

implementation of ESG and information disclosure

and taken into account the Group’s development

history and future development trend, invited eight

stakeholders including customers, shareholders and

investors, government and regulatory authorities,

employees, suppliers, industrial organisations, social

organisations and the community to take part in

a questionnaire survey to determine the real and

effective priority of the ESG issues.
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In this survey, the stakeholders were asked to
assess the materiality of 14 ESG issues under three
key aspects, namely social issues, economic issues,
environmental issues, and a total of 246 valid
responses were received. The Group concentrated
on the suggestions and concerns about the Group’s
environment, social and governance issues through
questionnaire to further understand the issues on
sustainable development that are concerns of internal
and external stakeholders. Based on the identifications
and assessment on those issues, the Group will
determine the disclosure degree and boundary of
material issues to ensure the comprehensiveness and
compliancy of the information disclosure. Set out
below were the main factors taken into account in
such assessment:

° Values, policies, strategies, operating management
system, and long-term and short-term objectives
of the Company.

o Relevant laws, regulations, international treaties
or voluntary agreements which have strategic
implications on the Company and its stakeholders.

o Judgment results of the materiality of environmental,
social and governance information disclosure by
peers and competitors.

o Requirements and expectations clearly specified
by stakeholders.

o Opinions from the management members and
management teams.

The Group has summarized and analysed the issues in
view of their materiality to stakeholders and Haichang
Ocean Park and arranged the issues into matrix as an
important reference of future strategy forming, target
setting and ongoing information disclosure.
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Degree of materiality to stakeholders
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THE MATRIX OF THE MATERIAL ISSUES OF
THE HAICHANG OCEAN PARK IN 2021
BEBEAE2021 FESGE KM HREFEME

Issues of medium materiality Issues of high materiality

TEEEMEE EEEEMNSE
Park safety °®
HEERz®
Customer
services
BEIR%
Protection of the /e
Energy and resources interests of employee
conservation B TREmiRE
X REIRE IR X

Regional economic

@ development
Occupational f [R o AR R B B

health and safety
BRRERZE Environmental
compliance
Emission Green supply chain REEH
45 ¢ (4 E 4
@ reduction & senmn Animal welfare
IR Social and public ©® HmiEH
charity and welfare
A=/
Responses to

@ climate change o Anti-corruption
FEH RS REFEH

Issues of low materiality

BEEERMHRE

Degree of materiality to the sustainable development of Haichang Ocean Park

HEESI A ESEARREEN

Economic ® Environmental Social
® om o ® e
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Quantitative principle: Haichang Ocean Park regularly
compiled statistics on the indicators of key quantified
disclosures of all “Environmental” areas and certain
“Social” areas stated in the ESG Reporting Guide.
Such statistics were collected during the year for the
preparation of this final report for public disclosure.
Details of the quantified ESG data are set out in
different sections of this report.

Consistency: The information disclosed in the report
were summarized based on the collective information
gathering procedure and working mechanism set up
by the Group to ensure consistency and comparability.
The Group completed major acquisitions during
the year, and such information related to Qingdao
Haichang Polar Ocean Park, Chengdu Haichang Polar
Ocean Park, Wuhan Haichang Polar Ocean Park and
Tianjin Haichang Polar Ocean Park covered the time
range from 1 January 2021 to 23 December 2021.
There was no change in other reporting range.
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ENHANCING SUSTAINABLE OPERATION

The year of 2021 marked the inception of the 14th Five Year
Plan. Digital transformation has become the new impetus of
the reform in cultural tourism along with the normalization
of COVID prevention and control, dual circulation and
the demand for high-quality development of the industry.
Confronted with the unique and unprecedented business
layout in tourism, Haichang Ocean Park has actively adopted
a dual driver strategy that seeks to achieve an optimal mix
of asset-light and asset-heavy business to build operation
and explore new structure. Haichang has leveraged on
its rich experience in culture and recreation, its operating
and managing ability in all industry chain and advantages
in talent, technology and sales to enhance the resource
integration and mutual empowerment in the leisure
consumption industry. Haichang continued to enhance its
advantages in scene, content, space, visitors and platforms
to extend the time value and space value of theme parks.
Haichang has established leisure recreational platform with
oceanic features and actively built up digitalized full-chain
cultural tourism circle of Haichang Ocean Park and pushed
the high-quality sustainable development of the corporate.

The year of 2021 was also an important year in the development
history of Haichang, representing the beginning of our
modernization. We remained true to our original aspirations
and embraced reform, optimized the Group's strategy
layout, continued to improve the asset structure, upgraded
the optimization and innovation of the products and services
which includes creating new festivals, pioneering to build the
theme park “epoch-making year for night-time economy”,
introducing customized products to high-end customers,
bringing in digitalized measures and creating ocean culture
IP while staying persistent to compliant operation and
safequarding park safety. During the reporting period,
Haichang Cultural Tourism Research Institute spearheaded in
signing and implementing of strategic agreement between
Haichang Group and some international IPs including
Xinchuanghua Group and Visit Finland, enriching and
supplementing the existing content and matrix of Haichang
Group which further enhanced the sustainability of the
content of Haichang which plays a significant part in the
sustainable development of the corporate.
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Major Awards

EEXE
Name of Award Awarded Entities Awarding Institutions
RIEEW BRE{ yEEg 1
Annual National Brand for 2021 Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd. Mobile Video
2021 FE B R mhg BERFRERRARLA HREH

Top 20 Tourism Group in China
o B i S B 2058

The Model Cultural Tourism Corporate on
Social Responsibility in 2021
2021 B ERERME

Recommended Project of Integrated
Development of Cultural Tourism in
Yangtze River Delta
AN B ERERBER

Model Application Work of Integrated
Platform of Cultural Creation and Science
and Technology Services
AR RS SR T AR E

JERI{E

The 5th “CTCAS Pioneer Award”

- the Annual Culture and Tourism Group
with Special Contribution to “Pandemic
Prevention” award
FLEEERIFER]FR

BEREE %

Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd.
BEEFRERRAERLA

Haichang Ocean Park
Holdings Ltd.
BERFRERRERDA

Haichang Ocean Park
Holdings Ltd.
BEEFRERRARLA

Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd.
BEEFAEERERAR

Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd.
BEEFRERRARLA
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and Tourism Association
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China Culture & Tourism Tendency
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The 10th Four Treasures of
the Study Cultural Tourism Festival
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China Information Technology University

THEEMEAS

Beijing Trip Vivid Culture
Communication Co., Ltd.
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Name of Award

RELR

Major Awards
EEXRE

Awarded Entities

BREW

Awarding Institutions

BB

National Demonstration Application Unit of
Key R&D Program Project Service Value and
Cultural Communication Evaluation Theory
and Technology
Bl M EE R RGEER
XA ERET AR R AR
FER &L

Outstanding Corporate Case on Performing
Social Responsibility by China Cultural
Tourism Business
hENIRITRBITHEAEEES

BERA

2021 Summit Forum on the Development of
China Theme Park Best Carrier of
Theme Park
2021 FEHFEFEARERRE

BEE[TRARREEERE]

National AAAAA Level Tourist Attraction
EIRAMAAR RS &

Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd.
BEBFAEERERAR

Haichang (China) Investment Co., Ltd.

B8 (FE) REBRAF

Haichang (China) Investment
Co., Ltd.
BE (PE)REBRAR

Dalian Haichang Discoveryland
Theme Park
AEBEERTHTELE

China Information Technology University

THEEMEAS

CAAPA
FEEEREXRGE

Institute for Theme Park Studies in China
HEEEARFRR

NTAQRAC
rEREREEBSRATTEZE

8>
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Name of Award

RELR

Major Awards
EEXE

Awarded Entities

BREW

Awarding Institutions

BB

National AAAAA Level Tourist Attraction
BXAAARR 5 &

National Base for Marine Education
2EEFEEHEER

National Science Popularisation and
Education Hub
2EREHEEN

Polar Science Education Centre

B EHE Eib

Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park
LR AR
Chongaing Haichang Caribbean
Water Park
BEREENPLEKER
Yantai Haichang Fishermen’s Wharf
BaEERABE
Qingdao Haichang Polar Ocean Park
EEEEENEF R E
Chengdu Haichang Polar Ocean Park
NG BBt g NE
Wuhan Haichang Polar Ocean Park
REBEMMN G AE

NTAQRAC
rERERREESRANERAE

o Publicity and Education Centre of
Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park

NIRRT State Oceanic Administration
LEEEEFAR

BXEFREBHETL

Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park
+TEBEEFNE
Qingdao Haichang Polar Ocean Park
BE58EmINEENE

PER SRS

Qingdao Haichang Polar Ocean Park
EE8EREEAR
Chengdu Haichang Polar Ocean Park
RS e ¥ N E
Wuhan Haichang Polar Ocean Park
REaamMET A

PRC Polar Exploration Administration
BXEFREMERRLE
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Major Awards

EEXRE
Name of Award Awarded Entities Awarding Institutions
RIEEW BREQ yEEg 1

Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park
+HEBEEFRE
Dalian Haichang Discoveryland
Theme Park
REFERRIBTELE
Sanya Haichang Fantasy Town

Ferris Award - 2021 China Cultural Tourism
Enterprise Influence Quality List

. . . ZDBEEEETRE CAAPA
Quality Cultural Tourism Project CAAPA Ch/ E.? ;_|/. A .
ke ongaing Haichan # Bife
B 2021 PENHRALHEN onaang o el
Caribbean Water Park

& B E SUHRIE B CAAPA X .
RRBAEERAC EESSNYLEKER

Qingdao Haichang Polar Ocean Park
5882 EF AR

Tianjin Haichang Polar Ocean Park
REFEEMETLE

China Culture & Tourism Tendency Leaders

Best Theme Park in China in 2021 Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park Award. NEW LVJIE
N e o e ward,
021 P EEETEAR LBBEEENE

SRR - RS

Ctrip Reputation List -

5021 Most Ponular Hotel Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park Ctrip

ost Popular Hote e e e P
s LEEERFRE BERRIT

BIROREIE — 2001 HEEE e 8

2021 Ctrip - Most Popular Cultural o ,
Tourism Brand Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park Ctrip
ourism Bran
e s HEEESFRE BRRIRTT

2021 BI2IRIT — BEBI TR e

Top 10 Intellectual Attraction Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park Tencent Advertisement x Pincheng Tourism

EZZRTOP10 LEBERFRE BRES xmiEikeE
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2.1 Compliant Operation

Compliance management is significant to the operation
and development of the corporate. Operating in
accordance with the laws and regulations is crucial to
realise the sustainable development and the basis for
the steady development of corporates in the social and
economic development. Haichang Ocean Park strictly
complied with the Company Law of People’s Republic
of China, the Securities Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Anti-corruption and Bribery Law of
the People’s Republic of China and attached great
importance to the compliant management and risk
control of the corporate and persistent to compliant
operation and business ethics to push the healthy
development of the whole industry through action.

Haichang Ocean Park was dedicated to creating
a justified, transparent, open and clean business
cooperate environment and forbidding any corruption
and cheating behaviours. We have established the
Supervisory and Monitoring Department which is
responsible for identifying fraud and risks. To further
implement risk prevention, Haichang has set up
dedicated lines and email for complaints delivery to
encourage employees to report any improper and
illegal behaviours. The charged person will receive
serious penalty once the reporting is confirmed and
the reporting person will also be granted appropriate
awards. During the reporting period, Haichang Ocean
Group was not aware of any major illegal or improper
events or any litigation relating to corruption.
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The supervision and audit department of Haichang
Ocean Park was entrusted to handle the following
complaints relating to the misconducts of employees

(1) Accept any form of bribery or other undue
benefits including kickback, bribery, and gifts,
banquets, travel and other improper benefits for
personal interests or lead to infringement of the
Company's interests;

(2) Implement bribery or introduce bribery out of
improper purposes;

(3) Embezzlement, theft, misappropriation of funds,
misappropriation of assets of the Company,
favouritism which is detrimental to the interests
of the Company, and other illegal behaviours or
misconducts;

(4) Collude with some suppliers to rig in bid
invitation;

(5) Collude with some distributors on bad debts;

(6) Abuse power and use the position convenience
for undue personal interests or interests for
interest-related persons or others;

(7) Leak confidential businesses or technologies;

(8) Conduct connected transactions or breach the
terms of conflict of interest; and

(9) Breach management rules or other behaviours or

other corruption that would cause damage to the
Company's economy or result in operational risks.

EVRIN L
T R A TR R

(1) RBEAFZESIIBEEAF
Mz R ZHEEREIA
KEMAERHERER
MFEREE A - RE - 12
o BB B IREF

TIEHFa% -

@) ATEER B KB
HNAEBRETTR

@) BRI AR PRE
T RIERBEEALNA
FEEEEENRNRFE
RERITR

(4) EREHEEHOEETER
HBIEETTAR

(6) HERLRBEEHAEETHE
RETR

6) EMBE FRBGE
[EC - FEREASUM
ANFERAEE M

(7) REATNEELEIMW

9 ERARZEEEME
HBEABZLEN &
HEARFEZERBRDN
TR EMBRERT
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We also responded to the mobilisation of integrity
construction, carried out anti-corruption trainings and
corporate integrity promotion to improve the level of
corporate compliance. During the reporting period,
1,949 management staff and employees participated in
anti-corruption training.

BT ERBREREA 18
BRERRER  RESHEBEE
il - ZEARRREERK
EEIE THRACEAR
KF - MERA - BEBFR
BE2HERBHFINERTE
BERE T ANREUET,949 NIR

Employees Management
BT EEE
The number of people participating 2NRERE
in anti-corruption training (person) A (AR) 1,823 126
The hours of anti-corruption 2NRER
training (hour) HIlR& (NE) 3,192.50 210.50

At the same time, the Company formulated Intellectual
Property Management System in accordance with
the requirements of the country’s relevant laws and
regulations to protect the Company’s intellectual
property rights, enhance the intellectual property
management and improve the level of creation,
utilization, management and protection of intelligent
properties. Intellectual property rights referred to in
the system are those rights mentioned in relevant laws,
such as the Patents Law, the Copyright Law, the Trade
Marks Law, and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law, and
include patents right, trademarks right and copyright.

Over the past two decades, Haichang Ocean Park has
fully displayed its rich experience in the operation
and management of Ocean Park and its insights on
cultural tourism and accumulated edged product
and technologies of the industry. Haichang has had
mature all-process cultural tourism leisure services and
the ability to work out projects after nearly six years
of light-asset expansion and deployment. With the
initiation of the second-stage of Shanghai Haichang
Ocean Park, the Oriental Ocean and Shanghai Jingiao
Haichang Penguin Resort Hotel, the light-asset
deployment of Haichang Ocean Park has staged in a
new strategic development phrase. Haichang Ocean
Park will continue to form the core asset of Haichang
cultural tourism, establish the Haichang ocean-
themed resort group in New Shanghai Lingang Xinpian
Zone and promote Haichang light-asset regional
development and accelerate the strategic expansion
nationwide.
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2.2 Ensuring Safety in Park

Safety is the cornerstone of the corporate’s operation and
harmony. Haichang has given top priority to maintaining
park safety on operation. By consistently upholding the
three major principles, namely “consistent adoption of
safety management”, “level-by-level decomposition of
safety responsibility” and “formalization of procedures
and standardization”, we built up the SHE (Safety, Health,
Environment) management system and strived to form a
comprehensive management mechanism for park safety
and raised employees’ safety awareness through safety
training and emergency drills and further consolidated
the foundation of the overall safety management of
Haichang Ocean Group to guarantee the safety of
tourists, employees and animals. In 2021, Haichang
Ocean Park invested a total of RMB8.6677 million in
safety. As of 31 December 2021, the Group did not
record any case of death at work for the last three
years. During the reporting period, the number of days
lost for injury at work was 1,719 days.

Optimization of Management System

Haichang Ocean Park developed the Safety Management
Measures and the Operation Safety Management
System of Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd. to
standardize the management of amusement facilities
and the responsive measures for contingent events in
the parks. Meanwhile, the Group continued to improve
the overall structure and took the responsibility
of existing safety supervisory department into the
operation management department of all project
companies and formulated Working System of the
Safety Management Committee and requested all
project companies to establish Safety Management
Committee in accordance with relevant requirements
of the Work Safety Law to ensure the consistency
and continuity of the safety of project to the greatest
extent. On 1 September 2021, the revised Work Safety
Law was officially adopted and implemented which
clearly referred the primary responsible person of
safety management as the main responsible person
of production and operation units. Furthermore, the
Group also instructed production and operation entities
to implement an accountability system on safety
production and dual system of safety risk classification
and control and potential risk investigation for the
construction of standardized and high-quality safety
production.
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Haichang Ocean Park implemented long-term,
routinised and diversified pandemic prevention and
control given the grave challenges brought by the
pandemic outbreak and ongoing development. During
the reporting period, the Group released relevant
requirements and announcements on safety and
pandemic prevention and control including Directions
on Safety Operation by Operating Companies During
Mid-Autumn Festival and National Day, Directions on
Key Work of Safety by Project Companies Before 2021
Peak Seasons, Directions on Pandemic Prevention and
Control During Peak Operating Seasons, Pandemic
Prevention and Control During Off-Season. All project
companies of Haichang Ocean stayed poise and made
active response on the work relating to pandemic
prevention and control including personnel check,
project management, visitor restriction on holidays,
provision of supplies and daily disinfection and
efficiently completed the prevention and control work.

The Group immediately communicated with subsidiaries
located in cities haunted by the prolonged pandemic
and required them to ensure the storage of supplies
which could satisfy the demand for at least a week and
conducted emergency drills for over 40 times and daily
disinfection for at least twice a day. As of the reporting
period, no employee was infected of the coronavirus or
there was any negative news due to the loosening of
control and prevention measures.
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Safety surveys and inspections

Haichang Ocean Park has been adhering to the policy
of “"placing safety first, prevention as core, and
implementing comprehensive management”, and firmly
built a concept of safety development, laid a solid
foundation, refined responsibilities, enhanced onsite
supervision, deepened the potential hazard mitigation,
and further improved the SHE (Safety, Health,
Environment) system. We promoted safety inspections
in the way of regime, standards and regulations
to continuously improve the enterprise-level safety
operation.

In order to better consolidate the foundation of the
overall safety of Haichang Ocean Park, in March, the
Group required the project companies to communicate
with the local emergency management authorities,
to grasp and understand the local government
safety management policies, and to conduct surveys
of assessment unit about “Safety Production
Standardization” (Level 3). Among them, Shanghai
Haichang Ocean Park, Dalian Haichang Discoveryland
Theme Park and Chongging Haichang Ocean Park will
obtain certificates after the assessment in June 2022.

In addition, Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park and
Dalian Discoveryland Theme Park engaged third-
party companies to conduct a safety production
standardization assessment based on their overall
situations. Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park has
innovated the dual prevention mechanism of “risk
control and potential hazard mitigation”, and other
Haichang Ocean Parks have completed their own risk
source identification and achieved certain results. In the
future, after finishing the overall dual prevention work,
Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park will be a cornerstone to
help the rest of Haichang Ocean Parks to conduct dual
prevention mechanism in existing project to further
reduce the safety risk of the Group.
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Case: Dalian Discoveryland Theme Park Safety Inspection Work Conduction

RO KEBERRIBATECER2RETIERRE

In order to step up its efforts in self-inspection of the safety of the park, Dalian Haichang Discoveryland
Theme Park regarded safety inspection as the most essential part of the PDCA cycle, and the focus was
on staff safe behaviour and safety environment with various potential hazard and problems mitigation
and discovery in time and supervision on regulation and delegation. The Company checked various
equipment completeness, timely discovered obsolete equipment, organised to replace 6 aging fire
hoses, maintained 1,048 fire extinguishers and installed 26 hanging automatic fire extinguishers in the
key positions such as battery car charging shed and performing arts theatre maintenance workshop;
completed annal check and audit of 60 valves and 83 pressure gauges; monitored the equipment
operation and maintain department to complete the fire protection facility maintenance work in every
month.

RE—FSNMAREERZEZNERNE  RESEXRITEHFBELERLEREERPDCARRN —HEE
RED BHERABRRTRNEBRZEMELYA  KEFENERZHEL2BENME @ WEEEUCE
E o RRIERHERERBRBTHE  RERRZER(CRE  ABEREETKFE6E - BRMAZS
1,048 WHEBMBEXRBEN BEBISHCEFMZTEHI UMK 26 ABHA BEHANESR  THO60ME
Z2RMBIER N KN FEER  BERBEEDBTNT ABIREERIE -

Dalian Haichang Discoveryland Theme Park onsite safety inspection
NEFERBR IR FERE TR RERIS
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Case: Chengdu Haichang Polar Ocean Park upgraded the safety system, actively promoted the mitigation of potential hazard

=0 KEBEBRMEFAEARLZERLS  BRETREHER

Chengdu Haichang Polar Ocean Park proactively aligned the inspection work of relevant government
departments and actively upgrades the safety system. In order to enhance the check and management
of the key positions, park upgraded the drive capacity of 214 security monitoring points, set patrol
management on the phone, and adjusted the unreasonable monitoring points. Meanwhile, potential
hazard mitigation covered the daily safety management, and the park conducted 90 daily potential
hazards, 12 monthly safety comprehensive inspections, and 6 special security inspections, 70 various
safety inspections aligning the government functional departments and daily onsite safety inspections.
As at the date hereof, 526 potential hazards mitigated were completely rectified with the representatives
and within the rectification period to form a closed cycle.

PEE ERMEF AEBBRES BAEESFIRETLE  BERARBELZ R - AMNEERBLAMKE
HER ERSEEE2I4ESERUERETESAR  UTREFERKETY  FAEERISBEEEY
iz - ARKEEHFERETIEMARTLEER  WRABREHEOR ABRREEFEAaRE12X  BIA
TERBE6X BERNBESIISELZERETORNUAEBEHRETESKE - H1FB A AFFEHEE526
B BE2HBELNTE  FIEREEREENECTARENNR  BRTEREBEUNESR  WKEARERE -

Chengdu Haichang Polar Ocean Park onsite safety inspection
B ER G B it R e e E RS
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Emergency Drills

To ensure implementation of safety management
work, Haichang Ocean Park put in place the Safety
Management and Control Standards for Park
Operations (Safety Measures for Tourists and Visitors)
and the Emergency Plan of Park Operation Safety to
guarantee the personal safety of park visitors and staff.
Against the backdrop of pandemic control, Haichang
Ocean Park conducted emergency drills for various

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT B15 - @R ERHE
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scenarios, such as riots, drowning, extreme weather R BRERUE - BK - BEKR

conditions, during the reporting period, a total of RE o REHPR - EEKFH

171 emergency drills were conducted, with 10,904 REZER1715 > REAES

participants in total and a participant rate of 99%. HEH10,904 A - BEXSE
99% -

Case: Emergency Drills of Dalian Haichang Discoveryland Theme Park Safety Inspection Work -

Ef KEBERRIHTEAERZRER

During the reporting period, Dalian Haichang Discoveryland Theme Park carried out 6 emergency
drills including fire emergency evacuation drills, mega facilities emergency rescue drills, mini world fire
emergency escape and evacuation drills, completed training programs the during the training of the
emergency drills, and also organised emergency rescue drills of park facilities failure on a monthly basis.
HRERAN  REFEBXREIRTIELBERRE TEE BN EBSBRBURMR - REBLER R SRIBEER - KR
MBI R EZOREZEREE - WERBELXRHBIF X TEH RHEZERRE - ANSEAR
BT — IR B[R B SR R SRUR R AR -

Dalian Haichang Discoveryland Theme Park onsite emergency drills
NEBEER TR FEREESIRRE IS
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Case: Qingdao Haichang Polar Ocean Park enhancement the capabilities of drills, pre-control, prevention: -

=p| EEBEBMEFNAEEER  FE BEEIE-SHER

During the reporting period, Qingdao Haichang Polar Ocean Park carried out emergency plans in
accordance with local situation and organised 12 various drills for the year to further inspect and
complete the emergency plans, enhance the practicality and feasibility of plans, improve emergency
handling abilities and proficiency of emergency rescue staff and also strengthened the promotion
emergency knowledge to the front-line staff.

HREHAN SEEEBRMEBFAEACEMARESBRERIE  2FAEBZHERI2K  E—F
BRI TERR  ERSEENEAUEMATREENRE - iR TESRIEABRSEEREE - AMREE
N RRIERTH - RABNESHNHEE -

Qingdao Haichang Polar Ocean Park onsite emergency dill
5588 EIEF AR ESRRE S
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Safety Training and Activities

Safety training is the fundamental of safety operation
as well as the defence line of safety management
philosophy and technology of Haichang Ocean Park. In
order to improve the safety awareness and literacy, the
Group organised the safety training to overall staff in
aspect of fire safety, public security, road safety, staff
safety, property security, management of hazardous
sources, and pandemic prevention and control. It is
required that a group-wide training exercise on safety
knowledge be organised at least on an annual basis
and a project company-wide training exercise on
safety knowledge for all employees be conducted on a
quarterly basis, and monitoring and inspection must be
implemented regularly to ensure the implementation
of safety training plans. Various project companies
in accordance with work arrangement of the Group
conducted “law on safety in production” one-month
training for all staff members to ensure that everyone
knows, understands and respects laws.

In 2021, in order to proactively respond to the Group's
requirement of safety operation culture construction,
various project companies carried out a number of
safety training projects, with a total of 883 safety
training sessions and 20,142 participants. It conducted
more than 100 safety training with more than 2,000
participates in total of Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park,
Dalian Haichang Discoveryland Theme Park, Chongging
Haichang Caribbean Water Park and Wuhan Haichang
Polar Ocean Park.
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Case: Chengdu Haichang Ocean Park safety training

RO © KEEEBMEF RER2EI

During the reporting period, in order to safeguard the company safety operation, Chengdu Haichang
Ocean Park conducted 25 safety trainings combining online and offline learning which included new “law
on safety in production” and related knowledge of prevention and treatments of occupational diseases,
fire safety, food safety, pandemic prevention as well as contingent events emergency handling.

BERAAN - KEBEZREFRAEBR/RERFLL2ES  FRIFER LR TREHFFIHT25R - AT
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Chengdu Haichang Polar Ocean Park safety training
PR ER G B i) F A B 2555
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2.3

Food Safety

Food safety is the most basic legal liability of Haichang
Ocean Park, the Group rigorously complies with the
Food Quality and Safety Law and the Food Hygiene
law, and based on its own situations, constantly
refines and updates the internal policy regimes such
as Manual on Workflow Management of the Park
Catering Department, Catering Development Plan
and Management of Research and Development of
New Products striving to build a high standard food
safeguarding system as well as actively promote
park food services standers. Under the background
of pandemic prevention and control, the Group
has formulated and continuously improved to
developing safe and reliable eateries for tourists and
visitors by sterilizing cold-chain food in the parks
including key management, control and registration
in documentation, enhancement of nucleic acid
testing of personnel working in the cold chain, goods
and materials, and improvement of cold chain food
procurement management to ensure the traceability of
cold chain food safety.

Improving Service Experience

Haichang Ocean Park adheres the ideology of
“customers first forever”, and provides customer
oriented and truly valuable services based on the actual
needs from customers. The Group has formulated the
Operation Service Standards of Haichang Ocean Park,
implemented quality operation special program, and
pushed ahead with the services management based
on regime, standards and regulations. Meanwhile, the
Group refines various services equipment, perfects
complaint handling mechanism and strives to improve
the quality of park operation and services.

HAICHANG OCEAN PARK HOLDINGS LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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As for the quality of park operation, the Group has
rigorously complied with the Law on Protection of the
Rights and Interests of Consumers, the Tourism Law,
and the Insurance Law, and actively pushed ahead
with the promotion of the Proposal for Operating
Performance Appraisal of Haichang Ocean Park and
the Operation Service Standards to motivate staff
members and improve the standard of operation
management of various projects. In order to further
enhance the Group's reputation and establish a good
corporate image of Haichang Ocean Park, the Group
set out the “Regulation of Rectifications of negative
Online Comments” for the negative online comments,
formulated the rectification requirements and
standards, and promoted precise improvement in the
quality of customer service.

As for the satisfaction of customers, the Group
always fulfils the obligations of honestly operating
in accordance with the law, consciously improve the
honest operation behaviour, accepting consumer
evaluation opinions with humility, respecting and
protecting consumers’ right to supervise, using honesty
and trustworthiness to build a brand image to win the
trust and recognition of consumers. The Group refers
to the “Civil Code”, "Advertising Law”, “Product
Quality Law”, “Food Quality and Safety Law”, "Price
Law"” and public liability insurance (clauses) and
other laws and regulations, adheres to the principles
of “objectivity, fairness, initiative, efficiency, and
handling according to regulations”, creates diversified
channels for smooth complaints, refined the types of
complaints, and continuously improve the complaint
handling mechanism of Haichang Ocean Park. During
the reporting period, Haichang Ocean Park operated
efficiently and smoothly, with no safety accidents or
major complaints during the peak period, and the
official customer service telephone service satisfaction
reached 99.5%, far exceeding the industry average.
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Multi-channel complaint handling mechanism of Haichang Ocean Park:
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The receiver will be the direct responsible manager or secretary manager of
department;

When it happens, customers will be taken to an independent reception
understand the situation and follow up for quickly evacuate the site.

BWARSMERRERE 8K
BAR - AUREEERS - BEATIBUSRE T RISAWRERRE -

The complaint hotline and the switchboard announced to the outside world will
answer the complaints received, apologize to the customers, appease the custom-
ers' emotions, understand the reasons, and leave the accurate contact information
for a return visit;

Complaint case will be transferred to the responsible department for processing,
follow up the return visit after the event, and feed back to the customer service
center to import the complaint summary.

SO AT F SR ROWEIREINRRRI - R ABR - REFANE
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Complaints arising from unpleasant experiences of tourists in the park will be
handled by the customer service center;

Question-and-answer, talk, and response complains will be handled by the
customer service center first, and then fed back to the responsible department;
service attitude and related professional complaints will be resolved together with
the responsible department.

PR R AR R BRI SR A REF B R R LRIE
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For non-inquiry incidents received by the Group’s 4006016699 phone call, it will
be classified by the customer service center after receiving and non-tourist
problems will be transferred to relevant functional departments of the Company
for processing;

Tourist-related problems will be dealt with after returning to the customers to
understand the situation with a treatment plan to discuss countermeasures and
then transferred to other departments for return visits and feedback.

£ [B4006016699 8 SEE UM IERT MBI BRI - BIRT LBWRBETHHE -
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Complaints can be handled by hotline of 12345 Citizen Hotline, Market Supervision
Administration, 12315 Consumer Protection Committee, Management Committee
Urban Transportation Center, Tourism Advisory Hotline;

The customer service center will complete the feedback in time and the official seal
will be affixed to the written document in a unified format to the relevant
higher-level supervision department. In the process of handling, it needs to be
dealt with the responsible department.
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Furthermore, Haichang Ocean Park actively improved
the customer experience through putting in a great
deal of effort to improve the equipment, enhance the
awareness of the services staff, conduct diversified
services, increase interaction with visitors etc. In
2021, the Group added PDA handheld ticket checking
equipment at the entrances and exits to increase
the rate of tourists entering the park and reduce the
waiting time of tourists outside the park. At the same
time, it offered new tourist service centre to improve
customer demand services and deal with tourist
problems in a timely and effective manner. In terms
of human caring, the park provides free WIFI, free
wheelchairs, guided tour app service, stroller lending,
self-service lockers, pet storage and other services for
all visitors. It also sets up baby-sitting rooms to provide
a place to nurse and rest for visitors in need of care,
as well as baby-sitting rooms in each toilet to provide
space for babies to change clothes and washing.
All Haichang Ocean staff have been committed
to providing visitors with comfortable and caring
hospitality services based on the concept of “Seven
Senses of Service”.
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Case: Chongging Haichang Caribbean Water Park activities enrichment for raising the fun of game

Rp EEBENPHLBAEREERRTED @ RABTBKME

Based on the service concept of “people-oriented”, Chongging Haichang Caribbean Water Park
provided convenient services for tourists who need help according to different customer groups, such
as helping children to dry their hair, helping to take things, temporary babysitting, to improve the
overall play experience of tourists. While vigorously improving service awareness and service facilities,
Chongqing Haichang also actively carried out various themed activities, such as “Trendy Fun Festival of
Technology and Food”, “Catching Money Party”, “Watermelon Sniper Competition”, to provide tourists
with interesting activities as well as promote happy experiences share from the tourists and enhanced
the promotion for the Company.
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Chongqing Haichang Caribbean Water Park funny activities
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Wuhan Haichang Polar Ocean Park offered new instructing interaction and .
updated and reformed recreational environment to comfortable c

Rf RESEBRMEFAERMBREDRE - ARIXEFEERRSR

Wuhan Haichang Polar Ocean Park equipment staff made good use of venue features and animal habits
to offer new instructing interaction at close quarters which provided better experiences for tourists
and onsite active atmosphere. To further improve the comfort of recreational environment, during the
reporting period, Wuhan Haichang completed the upgrading of certain toilets, offered ventilation system,
related supporting facilities and items, thus improving the image of the whole park.

REGSEGHEGF A RBERAEZHIFASEFCNDME N RS HHHAERENERLIIIRE - T
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Wuhan Haichang Ocean Polar Park upgraded the recreational services and facilities of the park
BEE & @8 A B I A5 R e T RS KRR i
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Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park and Dalian Haichang Discoveryland Theme Park
restarted the evening performance .

Rf: EBBERFAERAESERRIBTECEERRS

During the Labour Day, Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park and Dalian Haichang Discoveryland Theme Park
restarted the evening performing arts shows included the fireworks water curtain light and shadow show,
flying man on water, water curtain laser, drone phalanx in aspect of water, land and air to jointly light up
the night sky. The purposes of tourists transferred from the single “tourism” in the past to a composite
product structure such as “cultural tourism + leisure + vacation + IP”. Resort hotels such as Shanghai
Haichang Ocean Park Resort Hotel and Discoveryland Resort Hotel were “hard to find one room”, and
“living in Haichang Ocean Park” became a high-profile new seaside holiday experience. In terms of
customer group, nearly half of the tourists were from other provinces and cities, and the proportion of
cross-provincial travel in this year’s tourism market was constantly increased; nearly 70% of the tourists
were the post-80s and post-90s customers, and the amount number of Gen Z young tourists was
growing rapidly. During the middle long vacation, nearly 10,000 staff members in Haichang gave up their
vacations and ensured high quotas to be on duty, bringing comfortable and caring services to tourists.
H—HE - E8EERFARNMAKESERRIHFIBRABEERRKYS  BIEKEAFS - KERA - KE
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Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park and Dalian Haichang Discoveryland Theme Park onsite activities
LEEEEFABINESERR IR IEREETHRS
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In the future, Haichang Ocean Park will constantly take
advantage of its brand capabilities as well as operation
capabilities advantages, reinforce the resources
integrity and mutual empowerment of recreational and
shopping field, enhance the core-project development
of key area, promote the light asset business to enter
the multi-level strategies developing period and provide
diversity and high quality production and services for
China’s huge entertainment and leisure market.

Promoting Development of Innovations

The 14th Five-Year Plan proposes the development of
smart tourism, innovate tourism products system, and
improve tourism consumers’ experience. Smart tourism,
featured by digitalization, network and smart offerings,
are embracing new development opportunities.
Haichang Ocean Park actively regards innovation as
an important issue in corporate development thinking
and practice, and its subsidiary Haichang Culture and
Tourism Research Institute adheres to the development
concept of “profession-basic, continuous innovation,
proficient in practical operation, and operation-
oriented”, and committing to build a cultural and
tourism industry R&D think tank of “international
level, China's first-class, keen to innovate, and
proficient in practice”, starting from the top-level
design, to promote the Company’s product strategy to
continuously look forward and lead the future.
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Haichang Ocean Park three projects was listed in first batch of major tourism .
investment projects of Shanghai 14th Five-Year Plan .

6 BEBFAEET=ZNEERIALETHE | BHEXKEREEEB

On 28 September 2021, the Shanghai Tourism Investment Promotion Conference was held at the
Shanghai World Expo Museum. Deputy Secretary of the Municipal Party Committee and Mayor Gong
Zheng launched “100 billion” Shanghai and “14th Five-Year Plan” first batch of major tourism investment
projects and investment projects. The Oriental Ocean Project, the Jingiao Lingang Penguin Resort
Hotel Project and the work in headquarters office and commercial and cultural complex projects under
Haichang Ocean Park have all been included in the first batch of major tourism investment projects
in Shanghai’s “14th Five-Year Plan”. The launch of the three major projects of Haichang Ocean Park
fully reflects the brand strength and operational capability of Haichang Ocean Park, marking the official
launch of the light-asset strategy of Haichang Ocean Park.
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In the post-pandemic era, facing the fluctuating market
environment and the new demands of tourists in the
new era, Haichang Ocean Park has been exploring the
road of innovation and development. A batch of new
experiential products, including the “Haichang Night
Time"” product ecosystem, Internet celebrity trainers,
etc., opened new revenue paths; a batch of popular
variety shows such as “Running Man”, “Go Fighting”,
“Youth Perilous”, etc. were implanted, brought
abundant traffic to the scenic spot; cross-border
collaboration with booming brands such as AKOKO
and Uncle Tonga also gained a large number of fans
for Haichang Ocean Park. At the same time, Haichang
Ocean Park teamed up with Sanya government,
Caesars, Tencent, Ruili to start a new attempt to
transform and upgrade the cultural tourism industry,
and create a new consumption scenario of “cultural
tourism + e-sports IP”.
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Haichang national trend restless and exciting festival: “one park-two ways to ..
enjoy” theme park made good use of immersive live action role playing games .

RO BEEMBRRE  [—ErE-MEREZ| TELEETEURXBARK]

The inaugural national trend restless and exciting festival of Haichang Ocean Park was launched at
27 September 2021 with gentle autumn wind. Haichang Ocean Park innovated project exploration
combining with interest and demands of the younger generation with a topic of national trend and a
support of “restless and exciting” to upgrade the gameplay to enjoy national golden week. Haichang
initially introduced “one park, two ways to enjoy” — apart from such variety activities as poem group
reading, domestic products vendor, the show of Chinese-style cosplay, the first immersive free outdoor
live action role playing games the Sea of Misery will land on eight amusement parks of Haichang.
Meanwhile, Haichang Ocean Park cooperated with Baidu Map and realized interconnectivity among
online platforms to mobilize players nationwide for sailing.
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Haichang Ocean Park national trend exciting and restless festival poster
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Image: Haichang Ocean Park received the Most Popular

Based on the advantages on resources, in 2021,
Haichang Cultural Tourism Research Institute originally
created 14 innovative cultural and recreational
products including cultural tourism business, spring
vacationing, red wine, indoor & snow fairyland and IP
theme culture. Referring to Haichang's original cultural
tourism products, a strategic agreement between
top class cultural tourism carriers (including Overseas
Chinese Town), top class city developers and carriers
(including Jinmao, top international IP Ultraman) and
top OTA platforms like Ctrip.

Haichang was granted the Most Popular Cultural
Tourism Brand of Ctrip of the Year 2021, the Most
Popular Tourist Attraction of the Year 2021 (Shanghai
Haichang Ocean Park) and the Most Popular Hotel of
the Year 2021 at the Summit of Global Partners of
Ctrip Group.

Trip.com Geoup
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Image: Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park was recognized as the
Most Popular Hotel of the Year 2021 of the Reputation List of Ctrip
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In the future, Haichang Ocean Park will continue to
focus on raising the core competitiveness of products,
enhancing the development of core projects in key
areas and pushing the light-asset business towards
multi-tier strategic development stage, improve the
quality and content through resources introduction and
keep on innovating while improving the attractiveness
of the products. The continuous inherent power would
definitely push Haichang Ocean Park to provide service
to tourists and make contribution to the society with
higher quality, more international and diversified
comprehensive tourism theme products, and making
more contribution to the development of the cultural
tourism industry in China.

Strengthening Supply Chain Management

Supplier management is an integral part of the
Company’s sound operation. To govern the supplier
management system of the Group, achieve the
objective of selecting quality supplier, utilizing
quality supplier and selecting preferred supplier,
Haichang Ocean Park has formulated the Suppliers’
Management System 2.0 of the Group, which provides
detailed regulation on supplier classification, supplier
inspection, supplier management and the rights
and entitlements of each suppliers, and carried out
multi-dimension assessments evaluation to strictly
safeguard the quality of the supply chain. Meanwhile,
we promote the concept of green and low-carbon,
giving due consideration to environmental protection,
resource conservation, safety and health, recycling
and low-carbon promotion, and giving priority to
procurement and utilization of raw materials, products
and services that are conductive to environment
protection, such as energy, water and material
conservation. We continued to improve supplier
management, strengthened in-depth cooperation with
quality suppliers, established an efficient and stable
partnership with them, achieved rational allocation
of resources, and were committed to building win-
win cooperation with suppliers and assisting the long-
term high-quality and stable development of the
industry. During the reporting period, there were
1,569 suppliers of the Group in total, 1,566 of which
were domestic suppliers and the remaining three were
overseas suppliers.
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In 2021, in accordance with the Group's requirement
for optimizing the bidding and procurement
management system and for further strengthening
the management of the contract performance
process of suppliers, the costs and procurement
department of Haichang Ocean Park sorted out the
contract performance assessment matters related to
the operation of the park and worked with various
business departments to revise and improve the
assessment contents, assessment standards, assessment
scores and assessment periods, and formulated the
work instructions for supplier performance assessment,
which had been included in the annexes to the signed
contracts of suppliers starting from June 2021.
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Supplier Management System of Haichang Ocean Group:

BEBIEEHEEEERER

« The Requirements of Bid Invitation for Suppliers and Approval Process for Bid Invitation
were formulated to govern the management of suppliers and require suppliers to
provide documents regarding three major aspects, namely quality, environment and
occupational health

Anti-corruption Agreements were entered into with suppliers to regulate their conduct,
Bidding prevent corruptions from occurring during the course of bid invitation and procure-

requirements ment, and eliminate the acts of seeking illicit interests during the implementation of
BEER projects

- B (HEBREER) (BEFHRE) H ROEHEFREREIE  RHEE  BE -

BERRE=BREXY

- BEERRTE (REHHE) - ORUEDTR  DHLRSREPZEBMEMS - HER
BFRRBREDELEZERMAEENENTTR

» The scope of company inspection covers the qualification grade of the Company,
management model of the project department, mode of organization of labour and
technological capacity, etc.

Initial ° The scope of onsite project inspection covers the scale, complexity and quality of

construction, onsite safety and civilization level and progress control of projects, etc.

inspection
AIEAZE R

- BREAMEREE  AREEEFE  BEREEERN  HHESEN  BitHES
- HIRERSNEREE  ZERR  RTEE  RIEERR  REZEXHNR - Tizk
EiRHlEhE

. By formulating the Supplier Evaluation Criteria and the Supplier Evaluation Form, we
evaluate suppliers in terms of various aspects such as quality of work, safety and
civilization, and performance of contract with a view to gradually expanding the extent
of cooperation with suppliers

Subsequent « The aspect of safety and civilization covers the levels of safety and civilization at

assessment the construction sites of suppliers and the inspection of training and three-level
BHIEE education to workers

- BBHE (HERFERE) (HEFNER)  YHERIERE - R2XH  GFRE
HWETEREITIHE - ZFEERHERNAERE

o B2 XHAATHHERBIRSNRT XN - UEEETABBIIM=KHK
BRERMNESR
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ENHANCING ANIMAL MANAGEMENT

As the largest marine theme park operator in China,
Haichang Ocean Park has been upholding the objective of
“Establishing Friendly and Harmonious Relationship with
Mother Nature” for many years, and committed to animal
research and science protection, continuously strengthening
its core competitiveness, and actively advocating the concept
of animal protection. Haichang Ocean Park has the largest
number of marine animal resources in China and the
technical advantage of experience in animal management.
Over the years, Haichang Ocean Park has achieved
outstanding results in animal husbandry and management,
conservation research, and has been actively engaging in
industry research and studies to promote the development
of China’s marine creature conservation work and aquatic
wildlife protection public welfare.

3.1 Animal Management

Haichang Ocean Park conducted management and
protection for aquatic animal in strict compliance
with relevant national administrative requirements for
the industry, such as the Requirements for Aquatic
Mammal Husbandry Facilities, the Requirements for
Water Quality for Aquatic Mammal Husbandry in
Aquariums, the Requirements for the Classification
of Aquatic Mammal Domestication Techniques
in Aquariums, the Operational Standards for
Transportation of Cetaceans, and the Standards
for Pedigree Record-keeping of Aquatic Mammals
formulated by the National Aquatic Wildlife
Conservation Association under the Ministry of
Agriculture and Rural Affairs of the People’s Republic
of China (MOA). Based on such industry standards,
Haichang Ocean Park compiled more stringent internal
standards of execution, which are comprised of the
Standard Indicators of Biological Environment, the
Standards of Biological Nutrition, the Animal Feed
Quality Monitoring Standards and the Haichang Animal
Management Standards (HAMS), to further standardize
animal management.
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During the reporting period, the Group conducted
regular supervisions and inspections of all project
companies and offered advice on technological
rectification and guidance in order to organise and
standardize their management workflows and ensure
their strict compliance with administrative and
operational requirements, with a view to aligning
with the animal management practices with relevant
regime, standards and regulations, and guaranteeing
the maximum safety of the biological assets.

Haichang Ocean Group Animal Health
Management Work Specification :

@ Monitored pinnipeds body weight data in
throughout the year, with timely adjustment to
animal husbandry management plans based on
quantitative analysis of the data;

@ Monitored water temperature of the water
bodies of various biological venues in throughout
the year, and adjusted of biological husbandry
plans based on quantitative analysis of the
data, according to the water temperature and
biological status of the big data analysis could
be intuitive understanding of the most suitable
biological husbandry standards. Monitored water
temperature of the water bodies of various
biological venues in throughout the year, with
timely adjustment to various indicators based on
quantitative analysis of the data. Based on the big
data analysis on water temperature and biological
status, we could get an intuitive understanding of
the most suitable biological husbandry standards;

® Monitored of E. coli and coliform bacteria in
the water bodies of various biological venues in
throughout the year, with timely adjustment to
various indicators based on quantitative analysis
of the data;
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Monitored air quality of various biological venues
in throughout the year, and strengthened the
ventilation and air disinfection of Cetaceans
Aquarium and the human-dolphin interaction
square, and compiled statistics based on monthly
monitoring;

In addition to the monitoring of all biological
indicators, detailed contingency plans have been
formulated for biological emergencies, and
relevant trainings have been conducted on a
regular basis;

Established independent file for each creature
and recorded relevant records on husbandry,
training, medical treatment and breeding, so as
to improve documentation and traceability;

Worked closely with veterinarians to develop
specialized medical plans for specific conditions of
the organisms, and ensured strict implementation
of such plans. Prioritizing prevention, combining
prevention and cure.
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3.2 Animal Conservation

3.2 BMRE

The "14th Five-Year Plan” and the outline of the Long-
range Objective Through the Year 2035 clearly stated
that China will build a biodiversity protection network,
strengthen the protection of rare and endangered
national wildlife, guard the safety boundary of natural
ecology, and promote the overall improvement in
the quality of natural ecosystem. In response to the
national strategic philosophy about the development
of ecological civilization, Haichang Ocean Park has
been actively engaging in the conservation and rescue
of aquatic animals. While strictly complying with the
management requirements set by the state authorities
and the industry, such as the Requirements for
Belugas Husbandry and Breeding, the Requirements
for Spotted Seals Husbandry, the Requirements for
Turtle Husbandry and Rearing, and the Requirements
for Sea lions Husbandry and Breeding, and based
on the practical work needs of the Group, we have
optimized the standardized documents such as the
Collection of Biological Conservation Control Systems
and the Standardized Operation System of Biological
Conservation SOP, thereby effectively governing the
technological and management aspects of biological
conservation practices and further standardizing all
initiatives relating to biological conservation.

Animal Introduction and Acquisition

Haichang Ocean Park has nearly 1,000 professional
conservation talents, and has also introduced highly
sophisticated equipment from home and abroad to
create an experienced and skilled animal breeding,
medical and scientific research team, and has set
up breeding teams for penguins, cetaceans, polar
bears and pinnipeds according to different species.
During the reporting period, the Group continued
to protect endangered species and treat sick and
vulnerable animals by means of animal introduction,
environmental enrichment and medical treatments, etc.
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In 2021, the Group continued to invest in breeding
research and expanded its breeding results, breeding
a total of 336 animals, including 21 pinnipeds of five
species, 1 cetacean of one species, 11 penguins of
four species, 253 sea turtles of two species, 7 arctic
terrestrial animals of one species, 35 cute animals
of six species, 9 sharks and rays of two species. The
successful breeding of red sea turtles set a precedent
for the domestic aquarium, while the breeding of
green sea turtles also improved greatly on the basis of
last year, with over 200 successful hatchings, setting
a new record for the number of green sea turtles
bred indoors in an artificial environment in China.
The successful breeding of two species of the Grade
1 protected animals has been highly praised by the
Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs and local
animal protection organisations, laying the foundation
for the rescue of this endangered species and its
proliferation in the wild.
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Case: Chengdu Haichang Polar Ocean Park set new domestic record for green .
sea turtle breeding .

RO HEFBEREEFAEREREEABRHLE

In 2021, Chengdu Haichang Polar Ocean Park helped three green sea turtles lay eggs through insolation
fusion and the construction of breeding “greenhouse”, laying a total of 1,306 eggs, including 903
unfertilized eggs, 150 eggs that stopped developing during incubation, and final 253 hatchings, of
which 230 are currently alive, representing an average survival rate of 90.9%, which set a record for the
number of sea turtle breeding in China’s aquariums.

20214 - KWBEBMEBFAEBBERNRHAASRESAZ | B HEYIERERIENEE -
BEEE1,3061 - EFRRZIEEI0IM - B EAR B B (F 1E 15048 - &ML/ \E253% - BRIFE230
£ FHEEXRI.9%  BIEANEGFEEELEABMBINLH

el B i =
Newborn baby green sea turtle in Chengdu Haichang Polar Ocean Park
BRERE B Rt/ R A B EES
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Case: Yantai Haichang Fishermen’s Wharf successfully bred spotted eagle rays in bulk

RO ERBERARERYIBERERTE

After the successful breeding of spotted eagle rays for the first time in 2019, Yantai Haichang
Fishermen’s Wharf has been accumulating and summarizing experience in the areas of nutrition and
post-natal care for the conceived spotted eagle rays, the opening of baby rays, training and growth data
monitoring, and has continued to improve relevant conservation measures. During the reporting period,

7 spotted eagle rays were successfully bred and 6 of them survived.

BRBERATBREOI9OFERERRFHANE  UXPHTHEES  ERERE  PHEHROD  JIK &
E%M’fﬁk RAETETHER  AHKR YT TEERBRERER  RESHARDNEETERTFE I

HINFECRE °

spotted eagle rays in Yantai Haichang Fishermen’s Wharf

BB E R ATEER T4

Environmental Enrichment

Comfortable and healthy living environment is the
foundation for the long-term survival of aquatic
animals. The Group attached great importance to
the conditions of supporting facilities for animals in
the parks and actively took measures to improve the
layout. The Group implemented measures in terms of
living environment, nutrition and health care, as well
as medical treatment to improve the welfare of animals
and achieve sustainable development for animals in the
park.
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As far as environmental enrichment is concerned,

the Group issued the quantitative management tools (BRIMERIC(CER I A
such as the Environmental Enrichment Report Sheet, BYMC(ERBFH)SE2/LER
the Explanatory Notes on Environmental Enrichment TEA BEEBLENREERR
Actions and the Environmental Enrichment Journal, ZE . RIBERAEFHEI
and based on such tools as well as optimized B EEIRIEEEETTEA®E
environmental indicators, all project companies BORS AT  WEHE RN AIKIE
conducted comprehensive detection and analysis of BiETT BN - BRENSE
all animal living environments indicators throughout EYIHEEENKE - =R - BB
the year, and corrected some long-term unqualified EXEHFEMERT KEENR
projects. After the renovation, there were significant = BPREMAGE TR
improvements in water quality, air and lighting in all 2 o

biological venues, as well as notable enhancements in

animal health conditions.

Modify the sunshade outside Modify the sunshade outside Modify the clown fish tank
the polar bear display zones to the polar bear display zones to breeding system to create a real
reduce light difference between reduce light difference between sense of clown fish swarming

inside and outside inside and outside BuE/ NHRTERERS

B AL AR AR R [ S EDE RS WEEREN/NTRBET T#E T AERENDHRERRER

IR AINARZE W EMETERES

R v

New heating facilities are added Enhance the effectiveness of Indoor area for cute animals
to all cute animal areas to the whale shark tank aquatic renovated with spraying cooling
ensure the animals are living in system to safeguard the health facilities to keep small animals
warm conditions in winter of whale sharks cool in the summer
LEFHHHES RIS DUEIRE R TETH R L 4 A R A RAE 5 B8 = AR I EUE 2 R MR R R
RIS/ B YRR B RIB IR E KT REENEN B RBE
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Medical and Healthcare Treatment

Haichang Ocean Park is the industry leader in terms of
breeding and medical care of marine and polar animals
in China. The number animals kept by the Group ranks
the first among domestic peers. The Group has over
20 years of experience in the care of polar and marine
animals, a sound biological management system and
a professional animal care team of over 1,000 people,
most of whom have many years of nursing experience.
We have formulated a comprehensive system and
work procedure in terms of breeding animals: establish
separate file for animals, and regularly analyse data
to reflect trends and identify the existing problems
immediately; monitor the entire breeding process from
feed acquisition, inspection and storage to processing
and feeding; develop detailed disease prevention
measures for animals and continue to invest in
improving medical technology and facilities.

B-mode ultrasonic Gastroscopy for sea

inspection for belugas beasts
LERMBERE LEBRMEBRRE

L

Nebulizer therapy for dolphin Ray scratch care
BERMBLAE ARG ER
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The Shanghai Animal Research Centre the Shanghai
Animal Research Centre is the world’s premier medical
research centre which are equipped with the most
advanced facilities and devices in China, and has set up
animal surgical operation rooms, medical examination
and experiment rooms, water quality physical and
chemical analysis rooms, microbes experiment rooms,
molecular biology experiment rooms, ultra low
temperature freezer, central pharmacy, equipped with
more than 70 sets of equipment, comprising 50 types
of devices, including DR, endoscopy, colour ultrasound,
various blood analysis, environmental analysis and
molecular biology experiment rooms, etc. Its animal
examination and diagnosis function and the coverage
of environmental monitoring is in the leading position
in China. All 19 technical staff of the Centre have a
bachelor's degree or above, including one doctoral
student and six master’s students (including those who
are studying).

Animal Research

Haichang Ocean Park has been committed to animal
science research, and actively engaged in industrial
exchange while endeavouring to the field of animal
management, to improve its animal conservation and
aquatic animal rescue capabilities.
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Rescue dwarf physeter

In order to further play the role of an aquatic wildlife
protection base, Haichang Ocean Park was invited
by the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural Affairs,
the Chinese Academy of Fisheries, the Institute of
Hydrobiology of the Chinese Academy of Sciences
and other competent authorities to participate in
the “Yangtze River Finless Porpoise Protection Plan”,
and dispatched dozens of technicians including
veterinarians, trainers to participate in the protection
and health management of Yangtze finless porpoises
at relocation sites throughout the year, and have
been approved by the Aquatic Wildlife Conservation
Association of the Ministry of Agriculture and Rural
Affairs, the Yangtze River Basin Fisheries Supervision
and Administration Office and other institutions,
becoming one of the two domestic Yangtze finless
porpoise relocation sites and popular science
education bases, and making tangible contributions
to the protection and popular science education of
endangered and rare aquatic wild animals.

Through the coordination with local competent
authorities, various project companies actively
participated in the rescue of stranded, injured and
ill aquatic wildlife, rescuing more than ten cetaceans
and sea turtles in the waters of Sanya, Taizhou and
Ningbo, and rescuing dozens of Peponocephala electra,
Lagenodelphis hosei, pantropical spotted dolphins,
dwarf physeter macrocephalus, as well as more than
ten green sea turtles, red sea turtles, Eretmochelys

imbricata.

Rescue pantropical

macrocephalus spotted dolphins
RBN KB R B R R Bh B BT R G K
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In 2021, Haichang Ocean Park joined the following
industry associations and presided and participated in
the following major industry exchange events:

Institutional Deputy Chair of the aquarium special
committee under the Chinese Association of
Natural Science Museums

Institutional Deputy Chair of the Aquatic Wildlife
Conservation Association of the MOA

Institutional Deputy Chair of the National Spotted
Seal Conservation Alliance

Institutional Deputy Chair of the National Chinese
Sturgeon Conservation Alliance

Institutional Deputy Chair of the National Coral
Reef Conservation Alliance

Institutional Deputy Chair of the National Finless
Porpoise Conservation Alliance

Institutional member of the Education and
Conservation Centre of the Pacific Society of
China

Participant of the Conference of the Chinese
Sturgeon Conservation Alliance 2021

Participant of the Conference of the Coral Reef
Conservation Alliance 2021

Participant of the Cross-strait Forum on the
Development of Aquarium 2021
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PROTECTING ECOLOGICAL ENVIRONMENT

Haichang Ocean Park has actively responded to the national
strategic thought on environmental protection, focused on
improving the level of environmental management and has
been dedicated to building a harmonious home through
joint efforts. We protected marine ecosystem and improved
the quality of marine ecosystem by means of popular science
and conducting marine animal rescue activities. Haichang
Ocean Park continued to refine environmental management
system and implemented strictly, promoted the concept of
energy conservation and consumption reduction, reduced
environmental impact, and strived for green development.
At the same time, we attached great importance to tackling
climate change and contributing to the early realisation of
China’s “dual carbon” target.

4.1 Protecting Marine Ecosystem

In recent years, the marine ecosystem has become
extremely critical due to self-changes of the nature
and the unreasonable and over-intensive exploration
of marine biological resources by humans. In line with
the concept of “Establishing Friendly and Harmonious
Relationship with Mother Nature”, we utilized our
internal resources to educate the public about marine
protection. Meanwhile, we carried out marine animal
rescue activities to promote the healthy circulation of

marine ecosystem and protect biodiversity.

Public Science Education

Haichang Ocean Park is a tourism complex featuring
marine cultural characteristics, and a national base
for marine education. No matter from the aspects
of customer service or logistics or to the marine
environment protection, or the understanding and
application of marine popular science knowledge, are
indispensable skill to each employee. To enrich and
test the marine science knowledge of Haichang's staff,
we updated the knowledge base every spring, and
conducted the spring joint examination at the same
time, so as to continuously improve the employees’
awareness and capacity of science popularisation.
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On the premise of guaranteeing the professional
knowledge and skills of employees, we published
documents such as Example of Explanation of Science
Popularisation in Haichang Ocean Park and lllustration
of Common Polar Marine Life in the Aquarium, actively
cooperated with the government, media platforms and
other organisations to penetrate various aspects, so
that the public could learn more about marine relevant
knowledge and enhance the public awareness of
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marine creature conservation.

Case: Documentary on rescue and science popularisation

=6l RPHNEEELEA

“The Common Destiny of China’s Journey-Blue Rescue”, co-produced by CCTV-European Latin
American News Centre and Brazilian National Television, has now landed on Brazilian National Television
and Facebook. The documentary mainly focuses on the garbage plight faced by marine creatures and
rescue examples of marine creatures by biological experts in Haichang Ocean Park, as well as appealing
to and publicize the protection of marine creatures and enhance the awareness of environmental
protection, so as to spread the thought of protecting marine creatures to the public more widely and
attract more people to participate in this action.

HCCTV— BN EFBER OBMEEARRKERAHMa mEN(FRLETZ AR mEE e R BED
PR EMR S * Facebook : &b £ BIREG FEYEBRA N RAFNEGEFFA li%%%“&iﬁi%ﬁ’]
MHEFARTREEERESFEMERRRESR - AEEBRZHAARERRESFTEVNTEE  EF

ZHAZHEI|EEITEIFIR °

l - g -
nras spaw-
y | s ]

SETRROA. .

LT e
e

L} AdWraERal
wEEy LENNS
TET s URARES

T i THengen
ELLELTTCRT]
rEST

sal SaAEEd

FRENIHRYE ERRR

EEAELTE

E N, BEENEE
T ey

" avea e
“The Common Destiny of China’s Journey-Blue Rescue” was published on China Media Group Mobile
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Case: Public welfare protection for spotted seals

= BN DHRE

Together with Dalian Spotted Seals National Reserve Administration, Dalian Laohutan Polar Ocean
Park invited 20 children from Dalian National Défense Kids Journalists Team and their parents to
participate in the public welfare marine science popularisation of “Spotted Seals Protection Begins with
Understanding”, which kicked off the “Spotted Seals Protection Month” of Laohutan Polar Ocean Park.
RNEZFHGFRMEHS NENTNERRENREREER  BFEAERY N GLEEN20E/ NAKE
FEHRRAZINREFENEN THRALR ] - A8 FRIEES - NFE 72 RE8FRME [ HE5REA |
HIFE -

The scene of “Spotted Seals Protection Month” activity of Dalian National Défense Kids Journalists Group.
NERG/NGEEE [ BDEHRER | /EEIES

In light of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, HRFEEIENERE  BES

Haichang Ocean Park launched online science
popularisation program. In response to the doubts
of general public about breeding aquarium fish,
we developed a free consultation platform — “Dr.
Stephen’s Online Consultation” to help the public
to solve problems at any time while staying at
home. At the same time, we have joined hands with
the education industry to cooperate with schools
and enterprises, and through the construction of
science popularisation classes in schools, we have
spread knowledge about marine creatures to more
youngsters, and sow the seeds of awareness of marine
ecosystem protection at an early age, and shoulder the
responsibility of marine protection.
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Case: “Dr. Stephen’s Science Popularisation Class” in Chengdu Haichang Polar Ocean Park

=0 EEBEBEEFLOEBELRERE]

Chengdu Haichang Polar Ocean Park launched the activity of “Dr. Stephen’s Science Popularisation
Class”. We went to Mozigiao Primary School, Chengdu Normal School affiliated Primary School, Jiaxiang
Foreign Language School Zigong Campus, and other schools to explain marine knowledge to thousands
of students and share the secrets of the deep ocean with them. Meanwhile, “Dr. Hai Stephen’s
Popularisation Class” was carried out in Kaide Plaza and Jinhua Wanda for science popularisation,
showing the rich diversity of marine creature to tourists and advocating the general public to care for
marine creatures and pay attention to the sustainable development of marine ecosystem.
RENEE S EF A ARRART EFELRERZEIARES - £@EDTRETEFH/ NS - BEBADEEHT B
N EHINEEEREERBREZMERNRES - A L TRASETEFNBRERE  EREMSE
TREREOME - B [BEIHEREJEARKRIRERES  RESZETHESE  AETRRM
BRRTHEFEYVNHEEZHEYE  BETEANRELERSTEY  BISTERRENABERRE -

The scene of “Dr. Stephen’s Social Popularisation Class” activity
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Protection Actions

Haichang Ocean Park has been leveraging on its role
as an aquatic wildlife protection base and actively
involved in the protection of aquatic wildlife. We
were proactive in cooperating with the government
and local competent authorities, and participated in
the “Yangtze River Finless Porpoise Protection Plan”
in 2021, and have been approved by the Aquatic
Wildlife Conservation Association of the Ministry of
Agriculture and Rural Affairs, the Yangtze River Basin
Fisheries Supervision and Administration Office and
other institutions, becoming one of the two Yangtze
finless porpoise relocation sites and popular science
education bases, thus making tangible contributions
to the protection and popular science education of
endangered and rare aquatic wild animals. In the
meantime, we actively participated in the rescue of
stranded, injured and ill aquatic wildlife in 2021,
rescuing more than ten cetaceans and sea turtles in
the waters of Sanya, Taizhou and Ningbo, and rescuing
dozens of Peponocephala electra, Lagenodelphis
hosei, pantropical spotted dolphins, dwarf physeter
macrocephalus, as well as more than ten green sea
turtles, red sea turtles, Eretmochelys imbricata.
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Case: Haichang Ocean Park rescued the injured dolphin

=0 BEBFRERNREEHE

In the evening of 15 June 2021, an injured dolphin stranded on the beach in Haipo Village, Jiusuo Town,
Ledong Li Autonomous County, Hainan Province. Upon receiving the news, Sanya Haichang Biological
Conservation Centre immediately organised a rescue team of more than 10 people to rush to the scene.
They arrived at the scene around 9 pm and were assisted by the local villagers and professional teams.
The stranded dolphin was transferred to Sanya Haichang Biological Conservation Centre for further
treatment. After rescue, the dolphin was in stable condition and was bred together with other dolphins
in the centre.

20216 H15RK - —EXGEREERMERREB AZKNAEEENEE LHZ - ZEERE - =08
EEMREROEEB 10 ANRERKEEHIRS - BRORFIHERY  KEMHERNEMEEEK
WENKE  BHREEREEBE=D8EEMRETVETE—IRE - EHBHBBHMETEE - B L
HEABH—  HEFE -

The scene of rescue of a dolphin in Haipo Village by Sanya Haichang Rescue Team
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4.2 Environmental Management

Haichang Ocean Park has acknowledged the
importance of environmental protection and tried
its best to reduce the impacts of its operations
on environment by adhering to the management
philosophy of “green development”. Also, we
continued to refine our environmental management
measures by formulating relevant regimes, increasing
the effectiveness of energy consumption, and reducing
the emission of pollutants to create a healthy Company
image actively.

Emissions Management

In strict compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations such as the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Environmental Protection and the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Environmental Protection by Solid Wastes, Haichang
Ocean Park has actively reminded the importance of
environmental protection management at the Group
level, guided companies to utilize resources more
cautiously and reduce the production of emissions,
continued to optimize the control and management,
and ensured that solid wastes and wastewater are
passed the review by the environmental protection
sector and fulfilled the requirements of the national
and local environmental standards.
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During the course of the operation of Haichang
Ocean Park, the major sources of solid wastes are
construction wastes and household refuse. We have
formulated the robust procedures and requirements
for the disposal and transportation of wastes,
which are compliant with the relevant national laws
and regulations as well as the requirements of the
administrative authorities for environmental hygiene of
the local governments. We collected and transported
to the designated refuse transfer stations in time
every day to ensure the clearness of the park; divided
the wastes into recyclables and non-recyclables with
the recyclable waste being used for secondary use;
the non-recyclables were loaded into a compactor
for compression; and the compressed non-recyclable
waste was loaded into a special waste removal vehicle
and transported to a government-designated landfill
to be detoxified and landfilled to avoid polluting
environment. During the peak season, we promoted
environmental protection knowledge to tourists in
the park, increased cleaning efforts, and cleaned up
garbage in time to protect the environmental quality
of the park. Other recyclable wastes such as retired
equipment and facilities were dismantled and collected
the recyclable resources by the facilities operation
and repairing department for the purpose of saving
maintenance resources.

Image: Repairing old assets and recycling wastes
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The sources of sewage produced by the Group mainly
included husbandry and domestic consumption. The
water used in husbandry was recirculated and filtered
through the life-support system and then injected in
the sedimentation tank for settlement before emission,
whilst the domestic sewage was collected in the septic
tank and then flew into the corporate sewage pipeline
system. In 2021, the Group produced a total of
2,424,410.6 tons of sewage.

We have been actively advocating the concept of
sustainable development. Regarding the packaging
materials used by the Group in its products such as
plastic and paper, we collected and reused them in
active response to the national call for the purposes of
minimizing the impacts on the environment. In 2021,
the consumptions of plastic and paper by the Group
amounted to 17.04 tons and 70.3 tons respectively.
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Haichang Ocean Park Waste Discharge Data Sheet 2019-2021

BEEFOE2019-2021 FEEYHRBIER

2019 2020 2021
Types of Emissions  Categories Unit Quantity Quantity Quantity
20195 20205 20215
HHmES a8 By E4XE E4E8 E4£E
General Solid Wastes ~ Dead animals Tons
—fREBEEY HTEY WE 3.68 5.00 4.73
Construction wastes Tons
RENR ird 3,478.00 684.00 4,062.00
Administrative wastes Tons
MALIR WE 131.50 123.03 32.18
Household refuse’ Tons
ERCBTRY i 3,088.90 1,684.47 2,936.90
Total volume of food wastes Tons
EENRHE WE 2,387.15 861.83 2,360.56
Total Tons
a3t ird 9,089.23 3,258.33 15,028.87
General solid Tons/RMB
waste intensity ten thousand
—REBEENEE W,/ 8 0.03 0.03 0.06
Hazardous Wastes Medical wastes Tons
BEEEY BEEEY I 0.29 0.559 0.618
Biological solid wastes Tons
[ g i 0.00 0.00 0.00
Waste machine oil Tons
T 8 0.69 0.56 0.66
Waste chemical containers Tons
BErEnta i 1.92 1.92 1.92
Ink boxes Units
28 ] 783 301 326
Toner cartridges Units
i {& 281 220 248
Waste light tubes Units
BT % 56 307 10

The estimation of domestic waste is made in two
methods. Method one: domestic waste is divided food
waste and office waste. Food waste is estimated by the
daily generation of food waste x total number of days.
The part of office waste sold to third party is based
on the weight, and the part not sold to third party is
estimated by the daily generation x total number of
days. Method two: the generation of domestic waste =
total number of staff x domestic waste generation and
emission coefficient of residents x number of days (the
average number of working days per quarter is taken as
65.25), and emission coefficient is calculated according
to the Manual of Urban Domestic Source Production
and Discharge Coefficient (2008).
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Energy Conservation

In strict compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations such as the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Energy Conservation, the Group accordingly
developed a series of internal regimes such as the
Management Regime for Energy Conservation
Initiatives, the Energy Management Regime, the
Management Regime for Electricity Conservation,
Management Regime for Gas Conservation and the
Management Regime for Petroleum Conservation in
order to reduce waste of resources and pollutants
emissions.

Haichang Ocean Park attached great importance to
energy conservation. The Group has set up energy
conservation committees to organise all of the Group's
existing projects. Based on the completion of the
combing of various types of energy consumption flow
networks and metering nodes, and in accordance with
the changes in operational demand combined with
the change of seasons, the Group have formulated
the Energy Consumption Facilities Opening and
Closing Operation Management System in line with
the operational characteristics of each facility and
equipment to achieve energy conservation and energy
efficiency improvement. We have integrated energy
conservation and emission reduction into the enterprise
operation and development goals, established energy
conservation performance management system,
further improved energy use efficiency from energy
use personnel management, energy use equipment
transformation, and systematically implemented energy
conservation and emission reduction.
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To further enhance the effectiveness of energy
consumption and reduce waste and based on
continuously promoting scientific maintenance of
facilities and equipment, we rationally promoted the
control and transformation of energy-consuming
facilities. In terms of lighting efficiency improvement,
by 2021, we had basically completed the unified use
of energy-conservation lighting fixtures such as LED
lights for venues, parks, offices, and dormitories. For
backyard equipment room lighting and front yard night
street lighting, we will optimize the transformation
of lighting control based on ensuring illumination.
At the same time, the renovation work of pipes and
equipment facilities such as boilers, heating and direct
combustion engines was accelerated to save energy
usage to the maximum extent. Meanwhile, each
project company, according to the actual situation of
the decrease in the number of visitors compared to
the same period due to the impact of the pandemic,
we took multiple measures to improve the energy
usage rate and effectively fulfil the environmental
responsibility of energy conservation and consumption

BTE—SERERSIFA
KBDIRE - R ERE
BB ERI B ERENER
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s REAMEERA T E B
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R SEE ARRBEEEFE
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o ZBEWER - RAREIREA
X YBEBITENRERRFENIRIE
BT

reduction.
Shanghai Haichang Polar ° Keep the energy-conservation management running orderly.
Ocean Park Implement energy-conservation publicity, training, and inspection.
o Complete low-NOx combustion upgrading of boilers to reduce
NOx emissions
o Transform street light interval opening and closing control to
optimize night-time lighting
o Install thermal curtains at the entrances and exits of the venues to
reduce energy consumption and electricity losses
EEBERMEF AR o HREERBFET 8 B RIRE R BT

o EHRERAMERENE  RIBREHEIRE
o RREFEMBHEEESZE - BIERERA
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Chengdu Haichang Polar
Ocean Park

RS /8

Dalian Haichang
Discoveryland

REHHRTH

Dalian Laohutan Ocean Park

REZFRBEEFTRE

Tianjin Haichang Polar Ocean
Park

RBIG B F RE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT B « 2R EB®RE

Optimize HVAC system storage and cooling operation to reduce
electricity usage

The revamped cooling tower provided cooling using the outdoor
low temperature in winter

Optimized and renovated old compressed air facilities. Integrate
energy supply and reduced power consumption

Completely renovated the exhibition area lamps and lanterns,
replaced them with LED energy-conservation lamps and lanterns
RBESBZETEL  HIAE
BUER R R MIEN AL ETEIMRRRL
ZERBEERRBE(CBEE - SR
PHBGEREE R - B QLEDEREEA

Installed centralized controller for air conditioning to unify control
and reduce energy consumption

Modified and upgraded the winter boiler system in the flower
room, and partially carried out heat preservation and blocking
treatment to reduce heat loss

Modified the solar energy and pipeline of the dormitory to reduce
the power consumption of hot water in winter and save electricity
LR ETIEGIZE - R REEERE
BEARTEELZFTRERS - BIETRBHEEE - RO RE
BEEEEAGRLER  HMOLFHKKESE @ SER

Modified electrical control system, increased frequency control,
saved electricity

Adjusted HVAC direct combustion engine burner, changed the
combustion source from fuel oil to natural gas, reduced energy
consumption and exhaust gas pollution emission

BUE BRI R AT 0 INB SRS - ETAE R
REBEMEIERAE - MEREMRARAR - MRk - #
1R BERT R BEL

Refrigeration system of Penguin aquarium was modified to reduce
energy loss

New energy-efficient products have been used as the equipment
and lighting in new (revamped) projects

PISEERL RGUE - WA BEIRIERE

1 () 2IE B RAB ASRBHRAMASEER
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Sanya Haichang Fantasy
Town

=nBEELOTER

Yantia Haichang Whale Shark
Aquarium
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Chongging Haichang
Caribbean Water Park

EEM#LLAE

Completed the review of the project operation mode, adjusted
and optimized the structure of the energy-conservation
management committee, and implemented energy-conservation
publicity, training and inspection in an orderly manner.

Optimized the operation plan of outdoor and backyard lighting to
save energy

TRERELSEEREER  HEEZERBRARE(L - 5
B8 - Bl RRERFRT

ZINRIEGRBEITHRE( - BRERE

Retrofitted some areas with natural heat dissipation mesh
windows in summer to reduce air-conditioning cooling demand
and save energy

Cleaned cooling towers, condensers, and plate exchangers in
summer to increase cooling tower cooling capacity and save
energy

Strengthened the power consumption staggered operation,
improved the power factor to improve efficiency and reduce
consumption

EFMoREUSGELSFZEABANE - BAOEFARNLER - HHE
2

BEFRAME  RBEES RIS MBBILEES - BIEERE
R AEHIEET RS EEH - RN

Optimized boiler operation according to changes in passenger
flow and operating hours to reduce energy consumption
Strengthened control of air conditioning use during the peak
season to save electricity

Strengthened the optimal adjustment of water temperature in the
warm bath to reduce boiler energy consumption
BREZRIESRREY  BWMIEET Bk

MR EFEFEREE  HHAE

s RAKOR B FAE - B sRLERERE
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Based on these, Haichang Ocean Park adopted the staggering
and off-peak modes of operation for the high-energy consuming
equipment and systems in aquariums and stadiums and took
advantages of energy storage characteristics of large bodies
of water to optimize storage operation and minimize energy
consumption. In 2021, we further optimized the temperature
range of biological life by conducting demonstration and
experiments on the temperature of each type of biological life,
implemented a staggered electricity consumption plan for the
life support system in the park, and set reasonable opening and
closing control requirements for life support equipment based
on animal habits, the difference in electricity prices between
peak and trough cycles and water conditions. At the same time,
we reasonably regulated the number of air-conditioning units,
running time and temperature according to the big data of visitors
to each venue at different time of the day, so as to save electricity
as much as possible. Haichang Ocean Park had effectively reduced
energy consumption through these initiatives.

In 2021, the integrated energy consumption of the Group
amounted to 29,435.50 tons of standard coal with the energy
consumption intensity being approximately 0.11 ton of standard
coal per ten thousand yuan of revenue. The Group’s greenhouse
gas emissions totalled 135,960.00 tons.
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Haichang Ocean Park Energy Consumption Data Sheet 2019-2021 Volume of Energy
B B8 N E2019-2021 FREFUHERIB &

Consumption Unit 2019 2020 2021
R HER By 20194 20204 20214
Gasoline L
i F+ 200,552.21 104,248.45 50,845.36
Diesel L
geh 7+ 1,256,664.83 836,263.76 57,022.25
Natural Gas m?
RAR, AV 4,797,402.00 3,999,876.68 5,221,431.46
Liquefied Petroleum Gas m?
BICAHER K 21,519.00 13,284.00 13,764.47
Coal Gas m?®
B 3K 15,000.00 - -
Power Consumption in kWh

Operation and Offices
EEMPAAE TR 169,853,390.00 138,435,767.00 180,688,242.90

Integrated Energy

Tons of standard

Consumption? coal
iR BEIRH e AR AR 29,293.75 23,694.28 29,435.50
Integrated Energy Tons of standard
Consumption per Ten coal/10,000
Thousand Yuan of yuan
Revenue
BrelisatiRER WAIEAER BT 0.10 0.20 0.11
2 Energy consumption is calculated by converting various 2 BEREREEIRIE (ARG R

H3mBIGBT2589-2008) & &
BERITIZ R X BT BB -

energy based on the standard coal reference coefficient
according to General Principles of Comprehensive
Energy Consumption Calculation GBT2589-2008.
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Haichang Ocean Park Greenhouse Gas Emission Data Sheet 2019-20213
BEEHENE2019-2021 FRERBHREBERS

Volume of Greenhouse

Gas Emissions Unit 2019 2020 2021
BERBHENRE By 20194 2020 %F 20214
Direct Emissions Tons of CO,e
HEBEMW a2 11,096.71 12,327.12 11,647.17
Indirect Emissions Tons of CO,e
fEEE FE R W —E s 2 150,696.12 122,843.03 124,312.82
Total Tons of CO,e
#agt WE—SEALIRE 2 163,023.23 135,170.14 135,960.00

Greenhouse Emissions Tons of CO,e/
per Ten Thousand Yuan 10,000 yuan

of Revenue

BLEBREREERE W_StkEgE
Bt 0.58 1.16 0.50
3 Scope 1 Greenhouse Gas emissions are calculated 8 #HE—REREHFRESEK
based on the Greenhouse Emission Accounting BCEMITEAEREREH
Methodology and Reporting Guidelines for Other WIZE R ERREREM) B
Industrial Enterprises, converted from gasoline, diesel, U Sl RAR - RIEA
natural gas, LPG, and coal; Scope 2 Greenhouse Gas R MBS #E R
emissions are calculated based on the 2012 China ERBHME T EKIEC2012
Regional Grid Baseline Emission Factors and the SEHK R B e A R A
ESG Environmental Performance Indicator Reporting F) RCHERZFTESGIER B A
Guidelines, converted from purchased electricity. EIZERIES])  AINEEE

BESH -
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Water Resources Conservation

Water is an important resource that supports Haichang Ocean
Park, and the refined and scientific management of it is a key
factor for the Group to achieve sustainable development. The
Group mainly sources water from the tap water supplied by the
municipal utility network and seawater. In order to minimize
water consumption, the Group has taken measures to further
enhance the management of water consumption in venues and
daily office operations by strengthening water patrols, using
water-conservation equipment, and practising recycling and
reuse to improve the use efficiency. In 2021, the Group’s annual
water consumption was 6.05 million tons, with a water intensity
of 22.12 tons/RMB10,000 and an annual water saved of 63,000
tons.

We reasonably control water consumption based on visitor
flows and consultation with relevant competent departments.
We recorded, documented, and compared the readings of all
water sub-meters regularly so as to determine whether water
consumption was within the reasonable scope of usage. If an
unusual issue is identified, the relevant department will be notified
to conduct and follow up on rectifications on a timely basis.
The Group enhanced the inspection of key checkpoints so as to
avoid any occurrence of water running, dripping and leaking, and
identify and address potential issues as early as possible.

K EJEETAT
KEREXEEERFAEN
BEZER  KERNFERER
Bl MBLERASEETR
AFEEERNBEREER - &M
KERH X Z KR AT AL
MBESKMRERK - BTHE
AR AKE - AEERR
mneg AKKE - F A EIKE
& EITKBER AN ASE
B E— SR BEMEE
WNELAKENER &S
KB © 20214 - REE S
FHKEEBBOSEN - KER
FERARER22.1218 /BT -
P FEEIKEC.IEME -

TAPTR IR B R M B AR BE B P 69
BAEESAKE  EHH%
IKDRETHRCE - AR
HETHF HEFEAERHE
EREER - EREEHE
B BISZBEEAERE P ETT
B B M BRERENRIER o
eREAGEE K E - W R
5 OREFRKOHR - HEF
B FRRE
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In addition, we promoted the concept of water conservation all
over the park. We posted the water conservation signs around the
parks to promote the concept of water conservation and remind
staff members, tourists, and visitors of the importance of water
conservation.

o Adopting measures such as strengthening water use
inspection, using water-conservation equipment and
practising recycling and reuse of water to further strengthen
the management of water consumption in venues and daily
office operations and improve water use efficiency.

o Strengthening water quality monitoring and management,
and carrying out regular inspections of water quality in the
pools to ensure that water quality data meets the standards.

o The extracted seawater was mainly used for the feeding of
marine animals in the park, and the wastewater generated
by the use was purified and treated before being discharged
into the deep sea by special pipelines.

o Water conservation measures: we posted the water
conservation signs around the parks to promote the concept
of water conservation and remind staff members, tourists
and visitors of the importance of water conservation.
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4.3 Responses to Climate Change

Addressing climate change represents the general direction
of global green and low-carbon transformation. In order
to achieve the goal of addressing climate change, China
has firmly navigated the headwinds and actively responded
to climate change, thus promoting the country to make
new progress in addressing climate change in practices.
As an outstanding enterprise in the industry, Haichang
Ocean Park actively responded to the national call, and
we have identified the profiles of climate change risks and
opportunities in the context of our own current situation
and incorporated them into our risk management system
to strengthen our ability to respond to climate change
risks and opportunities. In 2021, we conducted research
on climate change-related impacts in accordance with the
recommendations of the TCFD (Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures).

We arrived at a list of climate change risks and opportunities
for Haichang Ocean Park by following the climate change
risk and opportunity identification process and developed
targeted response initiatives.

4.3 EYRIREL

EH RIRZILRKRT 2R
EEREENATH- - BE
BREARRELCER  PED
B L BEREHRREL
HPEFREEREECERD
ETESHTES - BEEFRE
ERTTEEFLEE  BHRER
BxR%AE  RMEEEHHR

BAD THERARRE
BRZE  mtREZ/ERR
M BREEBE S - 2021 4F -
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Climate change risk and opportunity identification process

Information
Collection

ERE

Risk
Identification

2\ Bz e

Data Collection
and Risk
Assessment
SRR R
el

SRR L [ B M B 8 50 B 1B A2

« Preliminary identification of climate-related topics
« Government Planning

- Policy

« Historical records of extreme weather events

* RIREBREN S RE

* BT E

* R

o IR AR AR L AR

- Identification of relevant climate risks and opportunities

- |dentify and determine the climate change-related issues involved at both the physical
risk and transition risk aspects, taking into account industry best practices and the
Group's business

* MR IRER B

s RERERMNBSERBMERT - SETRFERRMASE R WHEEY &2/ &
RIREC AR R R

- Related Climate Risk and Opportunity Assessment

- Assess the Group's climate change risks based on RCP8.5 scenarios using the
following databases and tools

 Generate a list of the Group's climate change risks and opportunities

o HESR IR E R AN IB (5
o FIFALATEIEE R T A - ERNRCP8.535 R A KB R FE AR
o AR B RIEE L EREKEEE
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The List of Climate Change Risks of Haichang Ocean Park

Climate Change Risk
RARE L R b
Transitional Risks

8 L B

BESFABERRE(CER

3 oo

BE

Description of the Risks

2 B 4

Policy and Law

BERAERE

Increase in pricing of GHG
emissions

Government authorization and
supervision on current products
and services

B R PEUE (BRI N

HUIRAERMNIRS BT E

MELE

Some government departments in some
countries (etc. France and Mexico)

has rolled out taxes that encourages
reduction in GHG emission and energy
consumption

Haichang Ocean Park needs to bear
compliance costs, operating costs, and
shoulder the potential responsibilities
as required by laws and requirements
in respect of environment, health, and
safety such as fines due to the lack of
relevant permits.
—UEHRROBARHFIEREEEZBA
AR AR E R BB BE MR R R R TR
(WEBRMEBFEE)
BEBFLAEFTAERLHZFIERE - &
BMZ 2 HERERZRNERKA
BEXATEEERME - 0 - BRAOAEBRT
EEE GO
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The List of Climate Change Risks of Haichang Ocean Park
BEFLAERERESCREBSTE

Climate Change Risk

KIFBCRMR

Transitional Risks Description of the Risks

3B EL R JEB B 4 3t

Market Changes in Customer Haichang Ocean Park needs to respond

Behaviours to changing market demand given the
increasing knowledge on environment
protection of the public and as the
public and stakeholders are concerned
about the Company’s carbon footprint.
For example, theme parks need to
live up to the international admission
of green building, including energy
conservation, water conservation and
pollution reducing.

ik BF1TRENE R SRIRIR FN 38 B 1R 71 B R SR AN 25 4 R
FHRRRALRETNET - BEGF
NEFRZEEMSEHHNENTLK
m: FELARFGE BB SIBEEERERR
HARBIZEERE - N ERRE - Bk R
REZE S H

Reputation Higher attention from Changes in ownership/management
stakeholders/negative feedback methods, accidents or injury incidents,
natural disasters, crimes, negative
incidents of customers and similar
circumstances may jeopardize the
reputation of Haichang Ocean Park
while relevant adverse publicity may
result in loss of confidence from
our customers. Haichang Ocean
Park needs to show its business
sustainability when encounters the
above material events.
BB A RENRA 8 AR/ ERFAEE FHHES
B3 - BAKE  PLFE - BEANEBEEMH
ERUBRATRE SRR EEBTAEN
BE  HBETNEEHEHERHAR
KEd BEBF AEFERHESN
FEREHRHEEARHEE
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i
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The List of Climate Change Risks of Haichang Ocean Park

BESFABERRE(CER

Climate Change Risk
RIRE{L RS
Transitional Risks

3 oo

BE

Description of the Risks
TR iy 4

Physical Risks

EREAR

Urgent Typhoon
Flood

2 [
ALK

Chronical Changes in rainfall and weather
pattern

(- BEK R AR R L

Typhoons with heightened frequency
and severity will raise the risk of
financial losses (such as facility and
equipment) and cause higher insurance
expenses and even the unavailability
of insurance. In addition, suspended
operation of theme parks may cause
shrinking income in the long term.
Floods with heightened frequency and
severity will raise the risk of financial
losses and cause higher insurance
expenses and even the unavailability
of insurance. In addition, suspended
operation of theme parks may cause
shrinking income in the long term.
FHREMEBESHREMEMFERRK
B R (AR HER %) - WAl AEIE NNAERE
BRI B A RERREIAERS - R
REBAFEABRE R BA

5 SEEON 5B B Y ALK B9 3 A SR N B
EEKReRR - I 0] 825 AR RS R IR R
BRASERREEAES - AR - KEIE
FEXE BEgmABA

Changes in rainfall precipitation will
have an impact on fire incidents and
biodiversity. Continuous rainfall/drought
may disrupt the food supply chain and
further the capability to provide services
to customers.
fERENE R ANKNEDSZHRILE
ERE RRNRANER,EZ2EE
BELRmHtERE  TERTPIRMHRSE
HIBE S
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Climate Change Opportunities and Response Initiatives at Haichang Ocean Park

BESFABRRBRBCHRBREHEE

Climate Change Opportunities Response Initiatives

RSB FES S
Opportunity 1 Resources Transformation into a more efficient building: obtaining
Efficiency internationally/nationally recognised green building-related

certifications and developing and following internal standards for
such certifications. The sustainability/efficiency of a building that
meets the relevant certification standards will continue to effectively
reduce operating costs

Haichang Ocean Park will be able to reduce waste generation
through waste recycling mechanisms, thereby reducing CO2
emissions from landfills and land/water pollution.

HiE1 BIRWE HWARAE SMOREY  BBARER S BERBANGEEEFIEHR
EHIE B EEEERENANIRE - BT HERBRENRE
Y HAIREN SRR AR E A BREEE RN
BBERYVOREERNBES - BEEF BRI ERNIEEMEL
I B R A B IR A A ) AL R BERUER T 3 KIRIFS

Opportunity 2 Source of Setting targets to increase the use of renewable energy and
Resources reducing its dependence on fossil fuels;

Purchasing certified renewable energy sources;
Equipping theme parks with photovoltaic panels, solar thermal
panels, heat and cold recovery units, heat pumps

TRAIR JRMEMAIBERRERE BB FE I ORHAKERR
BERRENA BAERR
REBLRBERENKRER - KAGRGEER - LHOWPEE - 2R

i 2

an>
Ay

Opportunity 3 Products and Innovative low-emission products and services: continuously
Services exploring and using advanced technologies and equipment to
provide innovative solutions, such as providing digital solutions and
management systems to effectively reduce operating costs
R E mARTS « B RR WL A EN R M AR - RIR M
AR 5 - IIRMHBF R T RN ERRGS AR EE

B3 EmM R

my fm

S
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Climate Change Opportunities and Response Initiatives at Haichang Ocean Park

BESFARRBRBCHBREHEE

Climate Change Opportunities Response Initiatives

RiIRBHB PES

Opportunity 4 Market Upgrading strategic cooperation and expanding tourism market:
combining market changes and changes in consumption habits,
Haichang Ocean Park will strengthen the ties between the two
parties based on the existing school-enterprise cooperation, and will
not only restrain the cooperation to the domestic market, but also
launch combined marketing to develop the overseas market and
create economic benefits.

B4 M5 FHRE R SIEMIBRIRETS - SemBECIEBBENEE - §
BEFAEERBREAENER FNREHHBE  SEETER
RER - REBAEHE  FERIITE  BlEKLEKE

Opportunity 5 Adaptability Strengthening infrastructure development: actively integrating climate
change elements into the design, construction, and operation
process of theme parks, especially in operating locations vulnerable
to climate risks, in order to recover quickly from extreme weather
such as floods and hurricanes, to further enhance the stability of the
Company’s operations and avoid loss of economic value
Empowering the value of new products and services: integrating
climate change elements into the product development and service
process to enhance the ability of new products and services to
respond to climate risks, and enhance brand value and operating
revenue through new products and services

IR EMRMEER - BREREFECEERATERCENR - &2

& ERRRE - FHIRESXRRRRTENESHMEN - UWERH
K- BRE S B RIERRRIRE - E—TRAQFTELRTENLE - BR
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FACILITATING GROWTH AND
DEVELOPMENT OF STAFF

Haichang Ocean Park always believes that the shaping and
presentation of employees’ personal values is the core of
the Group's overall value. During the year, we formulated
and implemented employment policies in compliance with
laws and regulations, protected the rights and interests of
employees through various measures, attached importance
to their safety and health, continuously increased the
recrement, reserve and training of key core talents, and
integrated the brand proposition of “Dream, Love, Joy”
into the Group to create a bright future together with our
employees.

5.1 Employment Policy

Haichang Ocean Park has complied with the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labour
Contract Law of the People’'s Republic of China, the
Requirements on the Prohibition of Child Labour
and the local relevant laws and regulations at each
operational sites, advocated the fairness and equality
among staff members of different nationality, race,
gender, religious belief and cultural background,
prohibited and boycotted child labour, and respected
and protected the legal rights and interests of all
employees. Based on these, we have continuously
enhanced the renumeration and benefits regime to
provide a competitive salary to our employees. While
protecting the basic rights and interests of employees
such as housing funds, pension funds, unemployment
insurance, medical insurance, work injury insurance and
pregnancy insurance, we implemented the policy of
strong correlation between performance and incentive,
and piloted the agile incentive model for partners to
drive co-creation of value.
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Case: Qingdao Haichang Polar Ocean Park innovated new mode of school recruitment: -

R - ERBEBHBFAEANRBHER

In 2021, Qingdao Haichang Polar Ocean Park established a long-term cooperation relationship with
three schools, including Qingdao High-tech Vocational School, Jimo District No.1 Vocational Middle
School and Jimo District No.2 Vocational Middle School, and signed an internship agreement. After
communication and coordination, the schools incorporated practical service ideas and concepts in daily
teaching. Before the internship was launched, Qingdao Haichang Polar Ocean Park made sufficient
preparations to attend the Company’s presentation at the school. Through the presentation, we let
more students know about the favourable corporate culture of the Company, accepted students’ on-
site application and consultation, gave priority to the selection and recruitment of high-quality talents,
introduced new workforce into the Company, created a dynamic team, and maintained good personnel
protection.

2216 ERBERMEFAERTESHMBESR ARRE—BETFEURNBRE_BEPE=RE
by TREAGHERE  FBEBSET(Eh=  CRERHAE RACEBFHETRATRAEBRN RS
BRMEDS  ABEERRZA  MERASEGERRBNMAFENE  BBETEAZRELELTHRIR
AINE RN BEERE - WEXBARISHRE LFEH  BEEREASREAT - RAGDEAFEMN
R ITIETE BB eF A BIREE o

Image: School recruitment site of Qingdao Haichang Polar Ocean Park
T 58 E RS AERARS
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Case: Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park Recruitment Fair

6l bsBERFAERES

In response to the national and regional support of the career development of college graduates,
Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park was keen to establish in-depth relationships with over 45 colleges
and universities across the nation. In 2021, corporate briefing sessions were held in 21 undergraduate
and specialist colleges with more than 320 offers having been provided and the nurturing programs for
graduates of higher education provided assistance in solving the graduates’ employment issue. The
Company played an active role in cooperating with the human resources agencies and local authorities
in the places where the projects are located so as to give priority to local labour during the course of
recruitment and employment. The recruitment exercises launched via the WeChat public accounts such
as “Port-surrounding Talents” and “Work in of port-surrounding area” resolved the employment issues of
port-surrounding Area.

FPEBERFARBERERRAR MMEHSREBXEETERENIFE ERAARY 7THE2EZMEA450
BREEIERR - 2021F - 2MT21K - ERGERNEHE - BRoffer3208 5 @ SIAT RRBEAETT
B8 MYRATEERRBENEE - REEBREERMEMNAT EBNE N PIETSE  HEK
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ABOTERERRE -
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Image: Job fair scene of Shanghai Haichang Polar Ocean Park
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During the reporting period, the Group had a total of 4,192 WwWEBHN O EBHEXAFET
employees, 1,820 of whom were female, representing 43% of the 4,192 A o Efp 8 11,820
total number of employees. A EEABE43% ©
Number of Staff by Gender Number of Staff by Age
RUBBSETEHE RERESETHE
261 =

® Male e Female ® Aged 30 and below e Aged 31-50 © Aged 571 and above
EET ZwET 303 AT 31-50%% 51 A E

Number of Staff by Position
Level
RERETETHE

106131\

@ Senior management e Mid-level management « Staff
BREEAE hEEEAE TRET
Figure: The number of employees in 2021
C2021FEIEBAH
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With a view to enhancing employment management, we are also

concerned about the loss of talents. We compiled statistics and

further analysed the turnover data and phenomenon, summarised

the causes of turnover, and concluded rectification measures to

effectively retain talents. As of the end of 2021, the Group had

1,369 employees of departures, with a turnover ratio of 24.62%.

LIS ERERALEE &
MR EAA RARBE « &
HRmABBAMBE R EITHTL
E—ToW  BRARKERRA -
BERWER  BRRA
F o HE2021F K - A&EH
BTRAIAE1,360A BT
KL 124.62% ©

Table: The Group’s employment turnover in the Year of 2021
R2021FAEKEBEETRABER

Number of
Class departures Turnover rate
E kil MmEANE pi AL
By gender Male 7 24.67%
Female 592 24.54%
RIERIE D S8T 777 24.67%
Z8T 592 24.54%
By region Mainland 1,368 24.62%
Hong Kong, Macau, Taiwan 1 20.00%
Region and Overseas
i = & 5 B K B 1,368 24.62%
BIRE MEIMD R 1 20.00%
By age 30 and below 811 33.36%
31-50 517 18.28%
51 and above 41 13.58%
RFWREEE D B0mMIA T 811 33.36%
31-50%% 517 18.28%
B1mRMIA L 41 13.58%
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5.2 Training and Development

Under internal management systems such as the
Management Regime for Staff Promotion, the
Job Rotation Management Measures (Trial), the
Professional Sequence Management Regime,
the Measures for the Implementation of Mentor
Mechanism and the Training Management Regime,
Haichang Ocean Park is committed to cultivating all-
around, multi-dimensional and professional talents.
The Company improves the talent training system,
and standardises the promotion system with a view
to facilitating employees’ development efficiently.
In 2021, with a focus on empowerment, the Group
carried out a series of targeted orientation trainings on
our internal development.

In 2021, the Group provided training for 34,379
employees in total with the total length of training
time being over 108,000 hours and the training
coverage rate reaching 100%.

5.2 1ZIIEE

BEBFRAEKEC(EIEH
EEHE) (mEEREIE (A
TIVCEEFINERSIE) (IE
BASIEEDE) (B THEI
EREHE)FRNHERSE -
BORBERZFM - ZHE -
BEMOAT BMESA
THEEBBRESR  HOESHE
% BHBEImMKEK - 2021
F - ASEERGABRE - FH
BT —ZFINBEEEERNTERE
B E REH) o

20214 » ANEBE B THEIIBA
OER|34,379 AR 0 ARSI B
RiBiB10.88/ N\ @ HIIEE
KE100% °

Proportion of

employees Total

Category trained (%) training hours
=Rl SHEBLHI(%) SHEEE (N
By gender Male 56.37% 58,665.80
Female 43.63% 50,302.20

£ 5] BET 56.37% 58,665.80
ZET 43.63% 50,302.20

By employee category Management 2.24% 2,380.70
Mid-level staff 7.16% 9,134.20

General staff 90.60% 97,453.10

BB EIRE 2.24% 2,380.70
L] hEET 7.16% 9,134.20
TwmET 90.60% 97,453.10
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In 2021, Haichang Ocean Park introduced new online training
program for employees based on offsite training under its policy
of combining the internal and offsite training. Meanwhile, each
department recruited a group of new internal trainer candidates
and selected a team of outstanding internal trainers by various
departments and different management levels of the Company.
This initiative managed to vitalise the Group and replenish with
new internal trainers in an attempt to create a loop system
comprising of excellent talent resources.

BEREANE2021 FNARE
AR SNIEEERH T
EFEITHNE IR A AR
TR EE - B
EEBPIEE T # — B FI R R
BA BEHBPARRFEELR
EH—HESAIE - AR
FEMEBCEAFE S - WA
HmR - AEBREFERAE

3B o

Case: Offsite training at Sanya Haichang Fantasy Town

£ ZEBEBDAREIEIEI

Sanya Haichang Fantasy Town established a good cooperation relationship with the Haitang District
Visitor Service Centre, through which we carried out in-house trainings such as free regular etiquette
training, tea ceremony training and training on other related topics. The Group has carried out
two sessions of in-house customer service etiquette training, and will continue to maintain a good
cooperative relationship in 2022. As we are active in conducting internal and external training, we
have carried out 12 sessions of training related to customer service quality enhancement during low
season and achieved simultaneous online and offline training by way of live stream. Our employees also
participated in external training related to management capabilities, English-speaking service capabilities
in cultural tourism etc.
ZDEEEAITRMEERER NIRRT LK RIFEE - RBRHEHEEEI - RBEIISHARE
RER - EREMRBRBEEAI - 2022F FRHBERFERFSIEBF - BERARAIMNE - EREAS
R mERTAEB12HBEEE - BERK| LR TRIZER - 2EINBERE S - XROFINEZRTEE

HIER

Image: Foreigner-targeted service capability training scene at Sanya Haichang Fantasy Town
=B E BN PBISINRIE s D IEFIER S
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Case: Law-specific training at Zhengzhou Haichang Polar Ocean Park

6| - BMNE E R EF A BEEEERE

Amid the pandemic in 2021, Zhengzhou Haichang Polar Ocean Park reduced on-site training and
increased the frequency of online training in order to avoid crowd gathering. During the year, the team
organised and participated in training activities on Working Hours Expense for Special Period, Law-
specific Training on “Civil Code — Construction Projects”, Law-specific Training on “Intellectual Property
Rights Legal Practice”, Law-specific Training on “Civil Litigation Process Practice “, Law-specific Training
on “Civil Code - Liability in Tort “, Law-specific Training on “Civil Code — General Provisions”, Law-
specific Training on “Civil Code — Contract Law” and Law-specific Training on “Civil Procedure Law —
Preservation and Enforcement”. A total number of 182 participants took part in the training, with the
total number of training hours of 364 and employee satisfaction score of above 90.
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Image: Law-related training scene for employees at Zhengzhou Haichang Polar Ocean Park
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In conjunction with the training results, Haichang
Ocean Park has in place a multi-form incentive regime
to enhance the expertise of employees and the Group's
overall operating capacities. The regime aims to fully
stimulate the potential of our talents and motivate
rapid growth of employees, while ensuring that
employees are fairly rewarded for their hard work.

The position-specific skills competitions

Each department was required to formulate and
report their plans for the annual skills competition
at the beginning of the year. Such competitions
were mainly carried out within the departments
and the corresponding rules of game were set up
according to the differences in nature and profile of
the positions of the departments for the purpose of
enhancing position-specific skills to the maximum
extent by promoting learning through competition.
The competition shall be reasonably scheduled during
the business hours without increasing the pressure on
employees. The human resources department would
finally report the competition results and the rewards.

The incentive card regime

The incentive card regime was a crucial part of training
feedback measures. For the purpose of reviewing
the training effects, the cards were issued to the
management members, trainers and visitors to collect
their feedback on the performance of employees. In
addition, in the process of integrating and analysing
the feedbacks, reasonable suggestions were collected
as reference for improvement of training. Through the
integration and supplement of “training- motivation
— activities” under the regime, employees are fully
recognized in which way the Group can achieve
heightened cohesion.
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5.3 Occupational Health

Haichang Ocean Park regards the occupational
health and safety of employees as the top priority of
business management. We strictly complied with the
requirements of the Work Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Technical Specification for
Occupational Health Surveillance (GBZ 188-2014) and
other laws and regulations, regularly improved and
revised the relevant rules and regulations in connection
with the Group’s occupational health and safety
management and maintained daily supervision and
inspection to ensure that all systems were operated
effectively. All employees were required to undergo
physical examinations and obtain the certificates
of good health so as to guarantee their health. We
created a warm cultural atmosphere, enhanced
employees’ good awareness of safety and health, and
made our talent team more dynamic and cohesive.

The Group encourages the work-life balance among
employees, fully guarantees timely communication
with employees and continuously pays attention to
employees’ living conditions and physical and mental
health. A series of measures were rolled out to
heighten their sense of belonging:

o Health management system

In 2021, the headquarters of the Group launched
an annual physical examination for employees,
and made more refined management actions
compared with the physical examination of
employees in 2020. On the supplier management
front, for the purpose of improving the
accuracy and service experience of employees’
physical examination, we requested the
physical examination suppliers to meet higher
requirements in terms of the accuracy of
physical examination results and service quality,
optimise the physical examination package, make
physical examination more person-specific, and
comprehensively cover the key issues.
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Occupational health protection measures

Regular health care and decompression therapy
are offered every year for the staff working in the
water of the animal trainer position. The outdoor
staff were provided with warming equipment
in Winter, and watermelons were offered to
employees to cool down and the heatstroke
prevention and high temperature allowances
were paid according to regulations in Summer.
The Group maintained commercial insurance
and obtained the certificates of good health for
employees to protect their vital interests.

Pandemic prevention measures

Since the outbreak of the pandemic, the on-the-
job employees have been distributed a mask every
day, and protective clothing and other protective
kit have been provided based on the needs of
special positions. In order to continue to prevent
and control the pandemic, the on-duty staff will
check the temperature of all employees on shift
and employees in the dormitory twice a day and
kept the record thereof.

Provision of personal protective supplies

Every month, we organised the purchase and
distribution of personal protective supplies
including protective suits, shoes, gloves and
cleaning supplies, and made every effort to
ensure the safety of employees; we strengthened
safety and health education and improved
self-protection awareness and capability of all
employees.

Haichang Ocean Park highly cares the physical
and the mental health of employees. During the
year, the Group carried out a series of Master
Talks activities to break down inter-department
barriers, and create an efficient and comfortable
workplace atmosphere and enhance the cohesion
of employees. The Group endeavoured to embed
the core proposition of “Dream, Love, and Joy”
into all aspects of employees’ life and work.
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Case: “Master Talks “series of activities

=6 - (895 | R5ED

Master Talks Creation and Sharing Workshop
BIEAES

Since the outbreak of the pandemic, the work and life of every employee have been shadowed to a more

or less extent. During off-duty time, we organised sharing activities such as handicrafts, creative work, life

skills, disease prevention, parenting experience, psychological counselling and insurance management to

enhance employees’ life skills, relieve their stress and alleviate their psychological burden.

BREBEREUR  SUEIHNIIE £ RPESE—ERY - LI TIEFRHEEABREFIE - 8

fj’jﬁ%ﬁ%?iﬁ&%ﬁfcﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ B R DBEEHA RREMESZHED - ERB T H)ERRE  BHE
CRELNE B IE o

- —

Image: The scene of the creation and sharing workshop
HEERS

Master Talks Association

T iHhE

During the special pandemic period, the management of health and emotions of staff became more important.
The Group successively set up various sport associations in respect of, among others, yoga, running,
basketball, football and badminton for the purpose of spreading the spiritual energy featuring health, enthusiasm
and positivity. In this way, we can help staff to maintain good health and also be more energetic at work.
ERBEHRER STRENBEEEEENEES - REBTRKEEX Z2ERM - By &3 BIK P
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Image: The scene of our staff doing sports
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5.4 Caring for employees

Haichang Ocean Park insists on implementing a
people-oriented philosophy and is mindful of the
physical and mental health of its staff by continuing
to provide warm and considerate care measures for its
staff. Through various measures such as physical and
mental health care, care for special workers, support
for staff in difficulty, cultural and sports activities, etc.,
it conveys its care to its staff in practice and enhances
their sense of belonging and happiness.

o In 2021, the Group conducted a questionnaire
survey about staff satisfaction to collect their
comments and suggestions in all aspects of the
human resources and administration Department.
In 2021, a total of 3,656 employees of the Group
participated in the satisfaction survey with the
overall satisfaction scores of the Group and all
companies under it being above 4.5 (out of
5), representing a relatively large increase as
compared with the previous two years.
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During the holidays and festivals, benefits were
provided to staff, such as cakes made by the
Company’s catering department, fresh flowers
and a "Queen’s Meal” in the canteen, a cake
benefit scheme in the form of greeting cards,
and training seminars on women's make-
up. We distributed lollipops to our staff on
June 1 Children’s Day, made greeting cards
and doughnuts for our staff’'s kids, and mailed
thematic gifts for their kids in other places.
Zongzi and mooncakes were distributed to the
staff on the Dragon Boat Festival and Mid-
Autumn Festival. Supermarket gift cards were
given to staff. Halloween-themed lollipops were
given to staff on Halloween. Christmas gifts
were distributed to staff by the management on
Christmas Day.

We organised birthday parties to celebrate our
staff’s birthdays, with a view to enhancing all
employees’ sense of belonging and strengthen
their affection connection with the Company.
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Image: Birthday parties held for employees
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Case: Makeup Training Seminar on 8 March Women’s Day

RO 3.8 L EIF AL I8

With “8 March Day” coming, Haichang Ocean organised a training activity on “seminar on female make-
up”, which not only provided an opportunity for female workers to exchange and improve their skills in
daily make-up, but also taught them how to discover and show their beauty. In addition, it encouraged
female to enrich their personal qualities and enhance women's virtues. All of these helped to lay a good
foundation for further diversifying the cultural life of the staff and improving their quality of life.
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Image: The scene of makeup training seminar
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Case: Christmas gift distribution

RO BREKBEY

Haichang Ocean Park has always believed that an enterprise’s festive activities can indirectly reflect
its corporate culture. In order to promote the building-up of corporate culture within the Group, create
good centripetal force and cohesion, better stimulate the work enthusiasm of the staff and show the
Company’s care for the staff, the Group holds Christmas activities every year, and the management
distributes Christmas gifts to the staff and has fun with them.
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Image: Christmas-themed activity scene
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ACTIVELY ENGAGING IN COMMUNITY
SERVICES AND PUBLIC WELFARE

In addition to its rapid development, Haichang Ocean Park
is committed to social development, actively fulfilling its
social responsibility and the obligations of a citizen. We
actively engaged in various public charity and welfare
activities and made contribution to the society by supporting
the underprivileged, promoting community building and
fighting against pandemic. In 2021, Haichang Ocean Park
contributed a total of RMB14.571 million to public charity
and welfare initiatives.
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Awards Received for Contribution to Public Charity and Welfare Activities in 2021
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Serial
No. Name of Award Honoured by Certificate/Trophy Picture
FiR BREE TEERE ®/ikERE N
1 The 5th “CTCAS Pioneer Tripvivid

Award”: Annual Culture and ~ #&

Tourism Group with Special

Contribution to “Pandemic

Prevention”
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2 2021 Culture and Tourism NEW LVJIE

Top Businesses Leaders R AR

Award: The Model Culture
and Tourism Corporate on
Social Responsibility in 2021
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6.1 Contributing to the community

Focusing on community development, Haichang Ocean
Park has actively carried out public welfare activities
such as “Haichang Little Explorers — Creative Green DIY
Crafts and Runway Show”, “Pirate Drama Festival —
Waste Sorting Challenge”, “One Million Children from
One Hundred Cities Gathering in the Caribbean to
Practise Chinese Martial Arts”, “Haichang Exploration
Academy Activities”, etc. to serve the public and pass
on love and responsibility, thus contributing to the
harmonious development of society.
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Case: Haichang Little Explorers - Creative Green DIY Crafts and Runway Show
P BENPRITRBIZRRDIYRTAS

Chongging Haichang Caribbean Water Park held the Little Explorers charity-oriented branding event.
The Little Explorers designed and recreated their own DIY crafts to “Turn Trash into Treasure”. They
used waste materials such as plastic pockets, discarded paper, spray painted ads and other materials
to make creative designs and then display the designed items for on-site contest, aiming to call on
children to care for the environment, save resources and turn trash into treasure.
EEBENPLEKERBI/NPNRTRARDEIED - B/IVNRITRFISREERT) - #E1TZERE DY
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Image: Haichang Little Explorers — Creative Green DIY Crafts and Runway Show
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Case: “Haichang Exploration Academy” by Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park
Rf: EBBEBFLAREIBERRER ED

From June 2021 to September 2021, Shanghai Haichang Ocean Park held popular science activities
at Wanda Plazas in Jinshan, Jianggiao, Baoshan and Hopson One in Wujiaochang with the IP image of
Dr. Stephen of Haichang Exploration Academy, jointly with retailer brands such as Kidswant, attracting
the parent customer groups by guiding their attention and offering small gifts. In this way, the Group
enhanced the diversity of public welfare by means of science popularisation and increased the influence
of the brand. In the future, the Group will continue to launch popular science activities for social welfare
purpose.
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Image: The scene of “Haichang Exploration Academy”
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6.2 Caring for the underprivileged

Haichang Ocean Park shows its commitment to
national cultural tourism brands with real actions.
We continue to focus on autistic children and have
established every April as the “Theme Month for
Caring for Autistic Children”. The event has been
successfully held for six years since 2015. In 2021,
Haichang Ocean Park established the cross-organisation
partnership with the China Disabled Persons’
Federation and the China Association of Persons with
Psychiatric Disability and their Relatives to organise
the seventh session of Haichang Public Welfare Month
event. For the first time, the Group extended the care
from the autistic children to the whole families with
autistic children, which exerted certain influence on
social charity. By organising related public charity
activities, we called on the community to care for
families of autistic children, spread the spirit of
public charity together, and we aimed to enhance
the strength of our brand on fulfilling our corporate
responsibility in the path of development.
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Case: Autism awareness activity themed “Shining with Stars, Embracing All with Love™ -

=f BENBEREERPNKRAZERMAITEED

In 2021, Haichang Ocean Park joined hands with China Association of Persons with Psychiatric Disability
and their Relatives and China Association of Persons with Intellectual Disability and their Relatives to
raise their voices and invite 1,000 industry leaders, KOLs or influencers and 700 blue V enterprises
certified by social media to call for more attention to the autism group.

We created a hot topic with 100 million views to expand the impact of the campaign, call on the society
and bring into play of our social role in the capacity of sponsor of autism-related public service activities.
Haichang Ocean Park’s 10 theme parks offered free admission for families with autistic children (each
person with autism and 1 or 2 immediate family members) worldwide through April 2021.

On 2 April, 160 people (50 children + 50 parents + 50 volunteers + 10 staff members) took part in a
public service ground event targeted at families with autistic children. The event included outdoor hiking,
collecting spring water from Nanshan Mountain, collecting plants for specimens, popularising autism-
related science, family games, releasing blue planes, etc.
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Image: the scene of autism awareness public welfare activities

HAENBE R EBRE

2021 FEHRE BEHFAREZERBRAT

137



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT R3% - H 8 RERBE

Case: “Blue Dolphin Action” by Chengdu Haichang Polar Ocean Park
=6l : BB EBEFABEEEHTE

In April 2021, Chengdu Haichang Polar Ocean Park launched the “Blue Dolphin Action”. In addition to
free admission for families with autistic children, it once again escalated and expanded its impact of
public welfare, and invited more enterprises, institutions and public welfare organisations with a strong
sense of social responsibility to join in and work together for public welfare. During the event, Chengdu
Haichang Polar Ocean Park received more than 1,000 families with autistic children free of charge, and
provided “dolphin therapy” for dozens of such families to help their children with autism contact the
outside world, relieve their condition, and try more cure solutions.
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Image: the scene of “Blue Dolphin Action”
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Case: “Movie Viewing Activity for Embracing Children with Autism” by Chongging Haichang Caribbean Water Park -
Rpl EEREMBL B RBEENBEERERT S

Acting for Love, charity sustains. We call on more kind-hearted people to join the charity activities
and care for autistic persons and to light up the stars in the dark sky for them. Chongging Haichang
Caribbean Water Park, together with Haichang Jinyi Cinema and CAPPDR Chongaging Office, jointly
organised a film viewing activity for embracing children with autism. 60 family members of the autistic
children were invited to the cinema to watch the film “Raya and The Last Dragon”, to have the joy of
watching the film and have a relaxing and happy leisure time together.
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Image: Children of the Stars “Movie Viewing Activity for Embracing Children with Autism”
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6.3 Fighting the pandemic together

In 2021, amidst the treacherous evolving COVID-19
pandemic, all entities under Haichang Ocean Park
calmly tackled the test and strengthened their
fulfilment of mission. We consciously undertook
the mission of a listed enterprise and a Chinese
national brand, coordinated with the government
according to the status of the pandemic, implemented
prevention and control measures in a timely manner,
actively fulfilled our social responsibility, built a new
consumption scenario of “cultural tourism + health”,
and raised the awareness of prevention and control
among all employees for the purpose of winning the
war against pandemic with smoke of gunpower as
soon as possible.
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Case: Haichang Ocean Park and Qianxi Robotics Group created a new model of intelligent scenic spot

RO BEBF L EMFTERASIARESSEMNHAH

In May 2021, Haichang Ocean Park kicked off the “Science and Technology Food and Trends Festival”.
This year, in cooperation with the Qianxi Robotics Group of Country Garden, the event upheld the
keynote of “technology, intelligence, food and trends”, created the concept of “delicacy +”, and
presented multiple highlights of trends, live stream and technology. It managed to show the diversity and
creativity of the theme park’s culinary culture amid the pandemic in a holistic way, thus bringing visitors
a unique and novel experience from the perspectives of taste, sight, hearing and touch.

In the post-pandemic period, in order to enhance the innovative development and application of “all-
for-one tourism”, Haichang Ocean Park and Qianxi Robotics Group further cooperated to launch the
first “contactless service” in the catering area of the park. In addition, Haichang is also the first cultural
tourism company in the industry to introduce catering robots on a large scale. Due to the strong
recovery of the tourism market during the May Day and Dragon Boat Festival holidays, catering robot
equipment operated in Haichang Scenic Area gained over a million exposure and served hundreds of
thousands of visitors with touch-free catering services.
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Image: Haichang Ocean Park’s “contactless service” exhibit
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Case: Haichang Ocean Park joined hands with partners such as Winner to jointly build a new consumption scenario of “cultural tourism + health™ -

ROl BERFAERFREBESSEBHARBEI XK+ REDHEHRSS

In December 2021, Haichang Ocean Park joined hands with Winner, JD Health and JD Travel to install
dolphin-shaped automatic disinfection handsets in Haichang’s parks in Shanghai and Sanya, with the
aim of building China’s first health station “in an ocean park” and at the same time educating visitors
about health knowledge. In the future, we will also jointly launch joint branded cultural and creative
pandemic protective products themed Haichang’s original IP “Seven Guardians” to jointly build a new
“cultural tourism + health” consumption scenario.

Relying on this cooperation, the health protection of visitors has been upgraded again: the first health
station “in the Ocean Park” was successfully opened in the Park’s marketplace in order to protect the
health of visitors on their travels and to improve the level of pandemic prevention in the park. The station
is deeply integrated with the marine theme of the scenic area, and it also provides visitors with health
education on topics such as safety and emergency, pandemic prevention and control and environmental
protection, as well as pandemic preventive products with “double escort” for visitors during their trip to
Haichang.
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Image: health station open”in Ocean Park”
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Since the outbreak of the pandemic, Haichang Ocean
Park has been hard hit in the cultural tourism industry,
but our commitment to social responsibility has not
ceased. Combining the advantages of its own marine
resources and park scenes, Haichang has done its best
to fulfil its corporate social responsibility, and has
achieved high social benefits and social impact through
its public welfare actions amid the headwinds, thus
winning a number of awards in respect of the anti-
pandemic efforts in cultural tourism industry and social
responsibility.

o On 20 January 20 2021, Haichang Ocean Park
was awarded the 5th “CTCAS Pioneer Award”-
Annual Culture and Tourism Group with Special
Contribution to “Pandemic Prevention”.

o On 21 May 2021, Haichang Ocean Park was
awarded the "Excellent Enterprise Case of
Fulfilling Social Responsibility in China’s Cultural
Tourism Industry” by the China Association of
Amusement Parks and Attractions.

o On 11 January 2022, Haichang Ocean Park
was awarded the “The Model Cultural Tourism
Corporate on Social Responsibility in 2021" in the
Cultural Tourism Top Business Leaders Award.
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AN OVERVIEW OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Board currently consists of nine Directors, three of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. The Directors were
appointed by the Board. According to the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), not less than one-
third of the Directors must retire from office by rotation at an
annual general meeting provided that every Director is subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any
Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the Board will hold office until the next following
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment.

The Board is responsible and has general powers for the
management and conduct of the Company’s business. The
following table sets out certain information concerning the
Directors as at the date of this annual report:

Date of
Name Age appointment(s)
mE Fig EZETHH

EENSREEENE

EEeRRBRNRES  HP =524
BUWTES - ZSEFHARAEFTEZ
F-REBEARAZEBERRMA ([ER
AR PR =D 2 —EFARER
BEXRg LWERT EEREFHA
B=FRIBERE KR MEEES
RENEHBREERAIER/FMEESS
FENENESZEHEEHERER
ARFBITTF—RBRRAGRIE

EZTREARAEBZEERAR
WL EBZEEN - TREIINAEF
BAMBHEEFENETER

Other Position/title, job responsibilities and
relationship with other Directors

HMmM B BEREAGESWER

Executive Directors #11T &%

Chief Executive Officer, Chairman of the Board and chairman of

Primarily responsible for the overall management of the Group

Mainly participates in discussion of corporate development

Qu Naijie 61 5 January 2022
B T7R 202241 A5H the nomination committee
Father of Mr. Qu Cheng
THREH ZEESXFRIREERLZESER
FEREASENEZEEEIE
SR AR
Qu Cheng 33 25 May 2016
iR 20165 H25H

strategies and project investment and other businesses
Son of Mr. Qu Naijie

ITZ2ACEXERERNH  BRAREFITHEK

HIREENTEF

Zhang Jianbin 48
SR X

5 January 2022
20221 H5H
BT

PHEBEAEERLZE
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Executive President

Responsible for the overall operational management of the Group

BTk



Date of
Name Age appointment(s)
mE Fig EZEAH
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Other Position/title, job responsibilities and
relationship with other Directors

HmM B BEREAGESNER

Non-executive Directors #1TEE

Wang Xuguang 53 5 January 2022
FEk 202241 A5H
Li Hao 40 27 August 2018
i 20188 A27H
Yuan Bing 53 24 August 2012
RE 201248 A24H

A member of the remuneration committee

Primarily responsible for overall strategic planning and
overseeing the general corporate, financial and compliance
affairs of the Group

FMEEEKE

TERREREBRIANEBEAER —REE  UBKLARER

Primarily responsible for strategic planning and overseeing
the general corporate, financial and compliance affairs of
the Group

FTEEERMBREINEELREE —RIEE  MBREHEE

Chairman of the risk management and corporate governance
committee

Primarily responsible for strategic planning and overseeing
the general corporate, financial and compliance affairs of
the Group

RiERMERERREST

IZEERBRINEEAEE-REE  UBRAHREE

T
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Date of Other Position/title, job responsibilities and
Name Age appointment(s) relationship with other Directors
A Fir BEZEHEH Httm B BEREHMEENEER

Independent Non-executive Directors B FHITES
Chen Guohui 66 25 January 2017  Chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
ReR [ 8 201791 H25H remuneration, risk management and corporate governance
and independent board committees
Primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to the Board
ERZEGIRLFMN RREERGREGNBIEEFERE®
TEREHEEFERAHRME A

Wang Jun 65 29 December 2019 Chairman of the remuneration and independent board
o) 2019412 A19H committees and a member of the audit and nomination
committees

Primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to the Board
FRBUEERESXIRENERLREEEZEEGNE
FTEREHEEARARRIESZE RAERMEE
Zhang Meng 58 25 January 2017 A member of the audit, nomination, risk management and
RE 201741 H25H corporate governance and independent board committees
Primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to the Board
B IRE EREERGEEARBIUEFEEGKE
TERREEEFES NAHEMBY HIE
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Qu Naijie, aged 61, the founder of the Company who has
over 30 years of experience in corporation management and
operations. He commenced oil trading and marine transportation
businesses in 1992, and set up Dalian Haichang (Group) Co., Ltd.
in 1998. In 1999, the Group tapped into the theme park industry
in China under the leadership of Mr. Qu. In 2002, Mr. Qu led the
construction and operation of Polar Aquarium in Dalian Laohutan
Ocean Park, the first polar aquarium in China. The project was
rated as a national 5A tourist attraction by China National Tourism
Administration (CNTA) in June 2007. Since 2002, Mr. Qu has
further led the construction and operation of 11 different kinds of
cultural tourism projects in various major cities nationwide, which
has promoted the development of theme park industry in China.
In May 2015, Mr. Qu received “China’s Outstanding Contribution
Award for Tourism Industry — Feima Award (b B ffe i B 2 445
BEE(RE 28)”, an award first set up and granted by CNTA.
He was appointed as a member of the Board of the Company in
November 2011 and has acted as the chairman of the Board and
a non-executive Director of the Company since February 2014.

Mr. Qu was appointed as a director of Haichang Holdings (Asia)
Ltd. (“Haichang Asia BVI”) and Haichang Holdings (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Haichang Holdings HK”) in 2011 and became the
chairman of the board of directors of such two companies in
September 2013. Mr. Qu has also been serving as a director of
most of the subsidiaries of the Company, including Haichang
(China) Limited (“Haichang China”) and Haichang (China)
Investment Limited (“Haichang China Investment”).
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Qu Cheng, aged 34, was appointed to the Board and designated
as an executive Director on 25 May 2016. Mr. Qu Cheng is the
son of Mr. Qu Naijie, an executive Director and the chairman of
the Board. Mr. Qu Cheng is the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Qu obtained a bachelor’'s degree in geography
from King’s College, the University of London in July 2010, and
he is proficient in Chinese, English, French and Latin. While in
college, Mr. Qu had internships at a number of internationally
renowned financial institutions. From December 2012 to October
2013, he served at the headquarters of the Global Commercial
and Alternative Investment of Orix Group, mainly responsible
for fund management, fund investment, strategic and financial
investment, project financing and financial consultancy, etc..
From November 2013, he started to familiarise himself with the
business segments of the Company and its subsidiaries, and
mainly participated in discussions about corporate development
strategy and project investment.

Zhang Jianbin, aged 48, has been appointed as the executive
president of the Company since 3 November 2021. Mr. Zhang
is responsible for the operational management of the Group.
Mr. Zhang joined the Group in 2015 and served as the vice
president of Dalian Haichang (Group) Co., Ltd.. Mr. Zhang has
over 20 years of management experience in corporate strategic
management, operation management, investment management,
marketing management and human resource management.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Zhang held numerous management
positions in the field of product marketing and sales management
in Lenovo Group Limited (stock code: 0992), and subsequently
served as the director of post-investment management of Beijing
Hongyi Yuanfang Investment Consulting Co., Ltd. (1t 3.5 i=
HIEBERARZAFT). Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor's degree
in applied chemistry from the Department of Technical Physics,
Peking University in 1997. He is currently studying in the China
Europe International Business School for an Executive Master of
Business Administration (EMBA).
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Xuguang, aged 53. Mr. Wang worked at the Dalian
Branch of China Construction Bank for more than 16 years
until he became the deputy branch manager, during which he
developed his extensive knowledge and experience in real estate
financing. Mr. Wang then joined Haichang Group in February
2007 as a director and the president. He was further appointed
as a director and the general manager of Haichang Corporation
Development in February 2010. From October 2010 to February
2012, he also served as the president of Dalian Haichang Real
Estate Group Co., Ltd.. Mr. Wang was appointed as a director
of Haichang China in October 2011 and was promoted as the
chairman of the board of directors in July 2012 and the chief
executive officer in April 2013. In July 2012, Mr. Wang was also
appointed as a director of Haichang Asia BVI and Haichang
Holdings HK. Mr. Wang is the vice chairman of Dalian Federation
of Industry & Commerce (A& T ZH).

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics and
investment management at Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics (AL KE) in Dalian in July 1990. He was
subsequently awarded a master’s degree in international laws by

Dalian Maritime University (K:&/&%E K2 in April 2002.
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Li Hao, aged 40, was appointed as a non-executive Director on
27 August 2018. He is primarily responsible for strategic planning
and overseeing the general corporate, financial and compliance
affairs of the Group. Mr. Li graduated from the Graduate
School of Finance, Accounting and Law at Waseda University
in Japan with a master’s degree in business administration for
finance. Mr. Li has over ten years of managing experience in
the fields of investment banking and finance. Mr. Li has been
with ORIX Corporation since October 2007. He is currently an
executive director responsible for Greater China Group at ORIX
Corporation, a diversified financial services company and whose
shares are listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange (securities code:
8591) and on the New York Stock Exchange (trading symbol:
IX). He serves as a director and the president of ORIX (China)
Investment Company Limited and ORIX Asia Capital Limited,
respectively, both of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
ORIX Group. According to the latest disclosure of interest form
filed on 28 January 2016 by ORIX Corporation, ORIX Corporation
is a substantial Shareholder of the Group. Mr. Li is also a non-
executive director of Beijing Energy International Holding Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Panda Green Energy Group Limited) (stock
code: 686) and Shoucheng Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited)
(stock code: 697), both companies’ shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Yuan Bing, aged 53, was appointed to the Board on 24 August
2012 and designated as a non-executive Director on 23 February
2014. He is primarily responsible for strategic planning and
overseeing of the general corporate, financial and compliance
affairs of the Group. Mr. Yuan graduated with a bachelor’s degree
in English from Nanjing University (F 5= A&2) in July 1990. In June
1993 and October 1998, Mr. Yuan obtained a master’s degree
in international relations and a doctorate degree in law from Yale
University in the United States, respectively.

Mr. Yuan has extensive experience in corporate finance and
investment banking. Mr. Yuan joined Credit Suisse First Boston
(Hong Kong) Limited in February 2002 as a vice president of
its investment banking division. From April 2004 to June 2006,
Mr. Yuan worked at Morgan Stanley Asia Limited. He rejoined
the company in October 2006 and stayed until February 2009,
where he served as a managing director at the fixed income
division. Mr. Yuan joined the Hong Kong office of Hony Capital
Limited in April 2009 as a director and served as a managing
director from January 2010 to December 2021, mainly in
charge of the company’s equity investment business. He is an
executive director of Goldstream Investment Limited (stock code:
1328), a former non-executive director and a member of the
audit committee of Guangdong — Hong Kong Greater Bay Area
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Hydoo International Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 1396) from July 2011 to October 2019, and
a former non-executive director of Hospital Corporation of China
Limited (stock code: 3869) from December 2015 to May 2017,
all of the foregoing companies’ shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Currently, Mr. Yuan also serves
as a director of Haichang Asia BVI, Haichang Holdings HK and
Haichang China.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chen Guohui, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 25 January 2017. He is mainly responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgment to the
Board. He is a professor and a doctoral supervisor of the School
of Accounting of Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
of China. He is entitled to the special government allowances
of the State Council of China. Prof. Chen has been working in
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics for more than 30
years since he started his career in 1982. He was the deputy
director of the Department of Accounting of Dongbei University of
Finance and Economics from 1988 to 1995, and the director of
the Dean’s Office of the same school from 1995 to 2001. From
2001 to 2013, he successively served as the secretary and the
dean of Kingbridge Business College of Dongbei University of
Finance & Economics. From 2013 to December 2019, he was
the principal of Dalian University of Finance and Economics. Prof.
Chen has long been principally engaged in the teaching and
administration of accounting and made a series of achievements
in teaching and scientific research. He has published more than
100 academic essays on journals such as Accounting Research,
Research on Financial and Economic Issues, and Finance &
Accounting and has published 4 master works. He also published
certain textbooks, led and completed certain research programs
at the provincial level, and participated in and completed three
major programs including National Natural Science Foundation of
China and National Social Science Foundation of China as a main
participant. In recent years, he won certain provincial prizes and
was awarded as the outstanding educator for several times. In
2003, Basic Accountancy, a course launched by Prof. Chen, was
recognised as the first batch of national essential courses by the
Ministry of Education of China, and became a model for a number
of universities and colleges in China.

Wang Jun, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 19 December 2019. Mr. Wang is primarily
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement
to the Board. Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree of economics
in investment economics from Dongbei University of Finance and
Economics in July 1996. He was qualified as a senior economist
of the Dalian Branch of China Construction Bank in December
1992. Mr. Wang served as the chairman of CCB Life Insurance
Company Limited from July 2011 to May 2013. Prior to joining
CCB Life Insurance Company Limited, Mr. Wang successively
served as the president of the Dalian Branch, Shandong Branch,
Liaoning Branch and Beijing Branch of China Construction Bank.
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Zhang Meng, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 25 January 2017. She is mainly responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board.
Prof. Zhang is a doctor, a professor and a doctoral supervisor
of economics, and the dean of the Research Institute of Tourism
Management of the Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics of China. She currently acts as a member of the
Consultative Committee for the Tourism Management Profession
under the Ministry of Education of China, an academic and
technology leader of Sichuan Province of China. Prof. Zhang
obtained a bachelor of science degree from the Physics Faculty
of Southwest China Normal University in 1986 and obtained
a master’'s degree and a doctor’'s degree in economics from
the School of Economics (the Faculty of Economics) of the
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics of China
in 1997 and 2005 respectively. From 1998 to present, she has
been principally engaged in the teaching and research of tourism
management and has produced a series of influential research
results in fields such as the competitiveness of the regional
tourism industry, the behaviours of tourism consumers and
the intercultural comparison of tourism, thereby winning wide
recognition in the domestic academic industry. Currently, she
has completed certain scientific researches such as a (general)
programme of National Natural Science Foundation of China, a
project of the Humanities and Social Sciences Planning Fund
under the Ministry of Education of China, a project of the Soft
Science Fund of the Department of Science of Sichuan of China
and a project of the Fund of Philosophy and Social Sciences of
Sichuan of China. Prof. Zhang is devoted to the construction of
platform for high-level decision-making consultation of tourism
management, including being responsible for the construction
of tourism research bases such as universities and colleges in
Sichuan of China and Sichuan Provincial Department of Culture
and Tourism and their respective teams. She has issued certain
research reports for governmental departments and enterprises
such as the tourism bureaus in the cities in Sichuan of China
and has been actively providing policy recommendations and
decision-making consultations for local governments and
enterprises.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the business. The following table sets out certain

SREEE

SREEERER

AIEBHNATEERE -

TREVEESREEBNETER

information concerning the senior management:

Name Age Position/Title

HE Fie B BT

Li Xin 49 Chief Financial Officer

&3y BEMBE

Liu Jiabin 52 Chief Operation Officer

215, BREZLE

Fang Hongfeng 44 Vice President

Wapz =2 Bl

Zheng Fang 44 Vice President

£ Bl

Tan Guangyuan 49 Senior Director of Operation Support Centre

BRET BERERLOREE

Li Changxia 41 Joint General Manager of Cultural Tourism Business Unit and President of
Haichang Cultural Tourism Institute

FEE SR S BRI AR A IR 308 & R B &

Zhang Xueyi 58 Senior Director of Engineering Centre

REE FREERTOSREE

Li Jun 40 Senior Director of Enterprise Development Centre

FE rEERPLOSHREAE

0T - 48p% ' B2013F4 AR—HERT

Li Xin, aged 48, has served as the financial controller since
April 2013, and was appointed as the chief financial officer
in November 2015. He is primarily responsible for financial
management. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in industrial
economics from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (3
1bBF 4R E2) in Dalian in July 1995. He also obtained a master’s
degree in law from Jilin University (F#K22) in Jilin in July 2003.
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Mr. Li has over 20 years of experience in finance and taxation.
Mr. Li served as an officer in the first investigation bureau of
Dalian Municipal local Taxation Bureau between August 1995
and August 2002, where he was responsible for investigation
and examination works. In June 2002, Mr. Li became the general
manager of the planning and finance department of Haichang
Group Co.. His responsibilities included financial management
system development, budget formation, asset management,
investment and financial reporting and management. In March
2010, Mr. Li was appointed as the general manager of the
planning and finance department of Haichang Corporation
Development, where he also started to serve as the chief financial
officer in December 2010. In April 2013, he was appointed as the
chief financial officer and the general manager of the planning and
finance department of Haichang China.

Liu Jiabin, aged 51, started to serve as the director for project
construction and the general manager of the engineering
management department of the Company since April 2013. Since
November 2015, he has served as the chief operating officer of
the Company, primarily responsible for the daily development,
construction and management of the direct value-added business
of the Company, the operation, security and management
of parks and the operation and management of commercial
properties.

Mr. Liu received a master’'s degree in EMBA from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics and holds the international
certification PMP (project management professional) qualification.
Mr. Liu has over 20 years of experience in the development,
construction and management in properties and theme parks,
and over 10 years of experience in the operation, security and
management of parks and the operation and management of
commercial properties. Mr. Liu joined Haichang Group Co. as
deputy manager of the supplies division in September 2002,
responsible for the establishment of its supply chain management
system. Subsequently, he served as the general manager of
Haichang Jiamusi from June 2004 to May 2006 and the general
manager of Tianjin Haichang Polar Ocean Park from May 2006
to April 2007, responsible for the overall management of the
construction and operation of project companies. In April 2007,
he served as the general manager of the tourism development
and management department of Haichang Group Co., responsible
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for the development, construction and management of tourism
projects. Mr. Liu served as the general manager of Haichang
Chengdu Polar in November 2007, and the general manager of
Haichang Dalian Fishermen’s Wharf from March 2010 to 2012,
responsible for the overall management of the construction
and operation of project companies. Since May 2012, Mr. Liu
has served as the vice president of Haichang Property Group,
responsible for tender procurement, commercial operation and
property operation, maintenance and management.

Fang Hongfeng, aged 43, has been appointed as the vice
president since 3 November 2021. Mr. Fang is responsible for
the overall development, operation and management affairs of
the Group’s management output business. Mr. Fang joined Trip.
com Group Limited (NASDAQ stock symbol: TCOM) in 2005,
and served as the sales director, general manager of branch
office and general manager of business department. Mr. Fang
is also a senior researcher at Institute for Theme Park Studies
of Shanghai Jiao Tong University and has extensive experience,
understandings and resources in the business format of cultural
tourism, destination development, theme parks and urban leisure
and entertainment in the PRC. Mr. Fang enrolled in Peking
University in 1996 with a major in computer software.

Zheng Fang, aged 44, joined Haichang Group in June 2000 as
finance manager of the capital department. In March 2006, she
served as deputy general manager of Dalian Laohutan Ocean
Park Co., Ltd.. In March 2008, she became a director of Dalian
Laohutan. In April 2011, she was promoted as the general
manager of Dalian Laohutan. Subsequently in April 2013 and
onwards, she has taken full charge of the management of the
marketing centre of the Company. She has also assumed the
position of senior director of the derivative consumption centre
since January 2018 and been appointed as the vice president
since 3 November 2021. She is now responsible for the Group
in the areas of strategic brand development, market insight
and consumer research, marketing and sales management,
derivative business development management and IP strategy
planning and implementation, business management and property
management, development of innovative revenue-generating
products and operation management for direct sales platform
on the Internet. Ms. Zheng obtained a bachelor’s degree in
investment economics from Liaoning University (FEZ X)) in July
1999.
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Ms. Zheng has over 20 years of experience in investment
operation, brand management, integrated marketing, channel
development, and management and practices of derivative
operation in cultural tourism industry. She created a marketing
and operating model for polar ocean theme parks in China
together with management team, focusing on the integrated
brand marketing of ocean theme parks in the mobile internet era,
fully realising the establishment of brand management system,
market research system, channel gridding system and internet
sales centre, and also promoting the development of in-park
entertainment, retail, catering, hotel and other business formats.
Ms. Zheng has repeatedly received awards such as the China
Great-Wall Advertising Awards — Brand Innovator for the Year
and |Al International Brand Influencer for the Year. She has been
appointed as a member of Al International Advertising Association
and an executive director of the advertisers’ committee of China
Advertising Association. In addition, Ms. Zheng has acted as a
judge for prestigious awards in the industry for consecutive years
such as Greater China Effie Awards, IAl International Advertising
Awards, TOPdigital Innovative Marketing Awards, Creative Award
for Chinese International Innovation Festival and the Tiger Roar
Award.

Tan Guangyuan, aged 49, served as the technical director from
April 2013 to November 2015 and the senior director of the
operation centre from November 2015 to December 2017. From
December 2017 to April 2020, he served as the senior director of
the animal conservation centre. Since April 2020, he has served
as the senior director of the operation support centre. During his
service of the above positions, he has been primarily responsible
for the management of the Company’s existing project operation,
properties at commercial street, performing arts and animal
rearing, and also the overall management of staff at the centre.

Mr. Tan obtained a bachelor’s degree in thermal turbine from
Dalian University of Technology (Ki#EIE T AEZ) in July 1998,
He later completed a PhD course in law at China University
of Political Science and Law (FEIBUEAZ) in May 2009 and
a research Master in Public Administration (MPA) program at
the Party School of Liaoning Provincial Party Committee of the
Communist Party of China (FFEI3E 24 £ #1R) in December 2009.
In 2006 and 2013, Mr. Tan attended the training courses about
the job duties of a general manager and senior management
organised by CNTA. He was awarded the professional training
certificates by CNTA for both training courses.
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Mr. Tan has over 20 years of experience in the tourism industry.
From 1993 to 1999, Mr. Tan worked as a technician at the Dalian
City Construction and Management Bureau (AGEIm 2R E 2
/&) and from 1999 to 2000, he worked as an office manager of
the reconstruction headquarters at Laohutan Bay in Dalian where
he was responsible for the coordination of all reconstruction-
related works. Mr. Tan joined Hutan Park in January 2000 as an
office manager and was then appointed as the deputy general
manager of Dalian Laohutan as a representative of Hutan Park
in March 2003 to oversee the operation, administration, facilities
engineering and animal management of Dalian Laohutan Polar
Aquarium. Subsequently in March 2008, he was promoted as the
general manager and was responsible for the overall management
of the company. Meanwhile, he also became a director of Dalian
Laohutan and has been involved in making strategic decisions
for the company since then. From 2011 to 2013, Mr. Tan served
as the vice president of Dalian Haichang Travel Group Co., Ltd.
and involved in strategic decision-making and joint management
of human resources administration, strategic planning and
procurement departments. Since April 2013, he has started to
assume the position of senior management of the company. Mr.
Tan became the vice group leader of the aquarium standards
development leading small group of the National Aquatic Wildlife
Conservation Association (2B/K4FH 4 EYF#EDE) in March
2010, the vice president of the same association in April 2011
and a guest member of the European Union of Aquarium Curators
in October 2011.
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Li Changxia, aged 41, has been appointed as a joint general
manager of Haichang Cultural Tourism Business Unit and the
president of Haichang Cultural Tourism Institute with effect
from March 2019. She is mainly responsible for the research
on reconstruction and upgrading strategy of existing projects,
innovative product development, planning and design, cultural
IP product development and licensing of the Company, and also
the development and management of asset-light management
output business of the Group. Ms. Li received a bachelor’s
degree in economic geography from the Urban and Regional
Economics Department of East China Normal University in
2003, and subsequently obtained a master’s degree in human
geography from the Urban and Regional Planning Department
of Peking University in 2006. She won the ASLA International
Award in 2015, the AECOM Annual Design Award in 2009 and
the Youth Award of the Global Academic Conference of Chinese
Geographers. She has published 13 professional papers on the
core journals in China, and jointly published an essay book titled
“Forefront of Theme Park Innovation” in 2019.

Ms. Li joined the Company in February 2016 as the director of
the Institute of Cultural Tourism Studies and has been appointed
as the senior director of the product centre with effect from
November 2016. She has also served as a joint general manager
of Haichang Cultural Tourism Business Unit since 2019. Ms. Li
has over 10 years of work experience in one of the world’s top-
class planning and design consultancy companies, in which she
has participated in and led dozens of urban planning and tourism
development planning consultancy projects. She is proficient
at market analysis and evaluation on economic feasibility,
function and operating status positioning, product design,
finance/profitability of integrated tourist resort and theme park
development projects of different scales, and has accumulated
abundant team management experience.
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Zhang Xueyi, aged 58, has been the design director of the
engineering centre since April 2018 and the senior director of
the engineering centre since December 2018 and is mainly
responsible for the overall management of the engineering centre.
Mr. Zhang obtained a master’s degree in structural engineering
from Dalian University of Technology in December 1987 and
a master’s degree in business administration from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics in June 2003.

Mr. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in real estate
development management. From 1994 to 1999, Mr. Zhang
served as the deputy general manager of Dalian Yuanda
Group Company (KEERAEEQF]), and presided over the
development and construction of Yuanda Building. From 2000 to
2002, he served as deputy general manager of Dalian Haichang
Housing Development Company (KiE/EEREERZE R F), jointly
in charge of engineering, design and cost management, and
participated in the development and construction of Haichang
Xincheng Project (8 & fRILIE B). From 2002 to 2010, he served
as the deputy general manager of Dalian Friendship Hesheng
Real Estate Development Company (KiE& FrEMERZE QD A)),
jointly in charge of engineering, design and cost management,
and participated in the development and construction of the Yipin
Xinghai Project (Ef&Z/8I8E). Since October 2010, Mr. Zhang
has started to serve as the vice president of Dalian Haichang Real
Estate Group Company, jointly in charge of engineering, design
and cost management.
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Li Jun, aged 40, has been appointed as the senior director of
the enterprise development centre since December 2017 and
is mainly responsible for the Company’s project development,
investment and capital markets, legal affairs, investor relations
and overall job management of the internal staff at the centre. Mr.
Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from Dongbei University
of Finance and Economics in 2003 and a master's degree in
business administration from the same university in 2013. Mr. Li
holds a PRC legal professional qualification certificate.

Mr. Li has over 10 years of legal, investment and capital operation
experience. Mr. Li joined Haichang Group as an investment
manager in the investment strategy department in April 2007
and then has been a senior manager in the investment strategy
department of Dalian Haichang Corporation Development Co.,
Ltd. since February 2010. He later served as the deputy general
manager and general manager of the Company’s corporate
development department from April 2013 to 2016. Since
December 2016, Mr. Li has served as the corporate development
director of the Company’s corporate development centre and
presides over the centre’s work. Mr. Li participated in the planning
and implementation of a number of the Company’s significant
project investments, all of its previous major shareholding
restructuring and equity financing and listing exercises.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Kho Polien, aged 39, has been appointed as the company
secretary (the “Company Secretary”) and the authorised
representative of the Company with effect from 30 August 2018.

Ms. Kho has over 10 years of experience in company secretarial
field. She is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators respectively.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in development and operation
of theme parks and ancillary commercial properties in the PRC.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the principal
activities of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development are provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages
6 to 11 and the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages
12 to 37 of this annual report. The financial risk management
objectives and policies of the Group are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s financial performance during the
reporting period using financial key performance indicators is
provided in the Five Years’ Financial Summary on page 5 of this
annual report. A discussion on the Company’s environmental
policies and performance is set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report on pages 38 to 143 of this annual report.
A discussion on the Company’s compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 179 to 207 of this annual report.

The discussions referred to above form part of this Directors’
Report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page
218 of this annual report.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out in the section
headed “Five Years’ Financial Summary” in this annual report.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The net proceeds from the Listing (the “Listing”) of the shares
of the Company (the “Shares”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong limited (the “Stock Exchange”), after deducting
underwriting fees and related expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$2,374.4 million, which were applied in the
manner as disclosed in the prospectus (the “Prospectus”) of the
Company for the Listing. The net proceeds were fully utilised in
the manner as stated in the Prospectus during the financial year
ended 31 December 2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the percentage of
purchases attributable to the Group’s major suppliers were as
follows:

- the largest supplier: 2.22%

- the five largest suppliers in aggregate: 5.93%

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the percentages
of sales attributable to the Group’s major customers were as
follows:

- the largest customer: 7.25%

- the five largest customers in aggregate: 15.92%

As far as the Company is aware, none of the Directors nor his
connected persons and none of the shareholders possessing over

5% of the interest in the capital of the Company possessed any
interest in the abovementioned suppliers and customers.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
note 12 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of this annual
report and in note 34 and note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2021, calculated under the Companies law, amounted to
RMB2,754,102,000 representing share premium and capital
reserves of RMB2,800,122,000, setting off by accumulated
losses of RMB46,020,000.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as
at 31 December 2021 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

DONATION

Details of the charitable and other donations made by the Group
are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
on pages 38 to 143 of this annual report.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the financial year and up to the date
of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Qu Naijie* (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Qu Cheng
Zhang Jianbin** (Executive President)

*k Kk

Gao Jie

Non-executive Directors

Wang Xuguang***
Li Hao
Yuan Bing

Independent non-executive Directors

Chen Guohui
Wang Jun
Zhang Meng

*

redesignated as an executive Director from a non-executive Director
and appointed as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 5 January
2022

appointed on 5 January 2022

***  resigned on 23 December 2021 due to his personal commitment

*kkk

>k

redesignated as a non-executive Director from an executive Director
and resigned as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 5 January
2022

In accordance with article 16.2 of the Articles of Association,
the Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall
hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
Mr. Zhang Jianbin will hold office only until the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 10 June 2022.
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In accordance with article 16.18 of the Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible to
offer themselves for re-election. Mr. Qu Cheng, Mr. Li Hao and
Mr. Wang Jun will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 10 June 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 144 to 161 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received the annual confirmation of each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his or her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has any unexpired service contracts which
is not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference
to his/her experience, qualifications, duties and responsibilities
in the Company, Details of the emoluments of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, or its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent companies were a party and in which
a Director or his/her connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, Mr. Qu Cheng
and Haichang Group limited (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”) or any of its subsidiaries do not have any
contract of significance (i) between the Company, or one of its
subsidiary companies; or (i) for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2021.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

Save as described in the Prospectus and this annual report,

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

during the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
or their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest
in any business which competes or is likely to compete with the
businesses of the Group and which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him or
her as a Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgment is given in his or her favour, or in
which he or she is acquitted, and against any loss in respect of
his or her personal liability for the payment of any sum primarily
due from the Company.

The Company has arranged liability insurance for the Directors
and senior management of the Company to protect them from
any possible litigations.

DIRECTORS RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
year ended 31 December 2021 was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable
the Directors or chief executives or any of their spouse or
children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of Shares or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO, which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”), were as follows:
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Approximate
Percentage of
Total Issued Shares

(Note 2)
HERITRG
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of Shares HE A
EEnE Bin REME g =] Aot (HEE2)
Mr. Qu Cheng (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporations 1,8386,677,524 (L) 45.92%

#A2 S A& (FHEE1) XA E R
Beneficial owner 63,585,063 (L) 1.59%

EmEAA

Mr. Wang Xuguang Beneficial owner 8,000,000 (L) 0.20%

FrEYe et ERmBBEA

(L) denotes a long position in the Shares
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Notes:
1. These 1,836,677,524 Shares comprise:

(a) 1,708,921,5624 Shares beneficially held by Haichang Group
limited, representing approximately 42.72% of the total issued
share capital of the Company; and

(b) 127,756,000 Shares beneficially held by Speedy Journey
Investment limited, representing approximately 3.19% of the
total issued share capital of the Company.

The entire issued share capital of Haichang Group Limited and
Speedy Journey Investment Limited are wholly-owned by Mr.
Qu Cheng. Therefore, Mr. Qu Cheng is deemed to be interested
in 1,836,677,524 Shares as disclosed above, representing
approximately 45.92% of the total issued share capital of the
Company.

2. This percentage has been computed based on 4,000,000,000
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations, within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO, which (a) were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein, or (c) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme by
the written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company on
23 February 2014 (the “Share Option Scheme”). Pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may, at its absolute
discretion, invite any eligible person, including any (a) employee;
(b) non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors); (c) supplier of goods or services; (d) customer; (e)
person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support; (f) shareholder; (g) advisor or consultant;
(h) other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth,
to take up options to subscribe for Shares subject to the terms
and conditions of the Share Option Scheme. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Company.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in issue from
time to time.
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The total number of the Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose,
options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Company) to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 2% of the Shares in issue on the date of the Listing, being
80,000,000 Shares (the “General Scheme Limit”).

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon the exercise of the options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company (including both exercised or outstanding options)
to each grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company for the time being (the
“Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of
the Individual limit in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant must be separately approved by
the shareholders in general meeting of the Company with such
grantee and his/her close associates (or his/her associates if he/
she is a connected person) abstaining from voting.

The subscription price for the Shares Option Scheme shall be a
price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for trade in one or more board
lots of the Shares on the date of the offer for the grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of the offer for
the grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.
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The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Share Option
Scheme is adopted.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days
from the date of the offer of grant of the option. An option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified
by the Directors to each grantee, which period may commence
from the date of the offer for the grant of options is made, but
shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the option subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof. Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated
in the offer for the grant of options to a grantee, there is no
minimum period required under the Share Option Scheme for
the holding of an option before it can be exercised. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the grant
of an option.

No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31 December
2021 and no expenses were recognised by the Group for 2021
(2020: nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by or subsisted in the Company, and
there was no provision to enter into any agreement which will or
may result in the Company issuing shares during or subsisted at
the end of the year ended 31 December 2021.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to the Directors

or chief executive of the Company, the following persons (not

being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests

or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRNKRMD RABERDA
BENKR

202112 A31H » iEEX AR A&
BITRABRA  BARBREFSR R
HEEHIE336IKATFEMNZLRMATRE
8 UTAT (WFEEHARRIZEIT
BAB) RRMOSEBRNDPHEB R

S
RE

Approximate
Percentage of

Total Issued
Shares (Note 2)
HERTR®D
Name Nature of Interest Number of Shares HEHBN
218 BRME RHEE Bt (EE2)
Haichang Group Limited Interest in controlled 1,708,921,524 (L) 42.72%
BEEEARAR corporations
X EEER
ORIX Corporation (Note 1) Interest in controlled 598,384,000 (L) 14.83%
Bk git () corporations 200,000,000 (S) 5.00%
X EEER
ORIX (China) Investment Company Limited (Note 1) Interest in a controlled 393,384,000 (L) 9.83%
BT (PB)REBRATR (1) corporation
X EE R
Mountain Tai Apollo Investment Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 393,384,000 (L) 9.83%
RINREREBR AR (K1) EnEAA
ORIX Asia Capital Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 200,000,000 (L) 5.00%
BMAOLtEMERRRLR (1) BEREAA 200,000,000 (S) 5.00%
(L)  denotes a long position in the Shares L RERGEE
(S)  denotes a short position in the Shares (8) RERMKAE
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Notes:

1. The number of Shares disclosed was based on the latest disclosure
of interest form filed on 28 January 2016 (the date of relevant event
be 26 January 2016) received from ORIX Corporation. According to
the filed notice:

(a) Mountain Tai Apollo Investment Limited holds 393,384,000
Shares. Mountain Tai Apollo Investment Limited is wholly-
owned by ORIX (China) Investment Company Limited, which
is in turn wholly-owned by ORIX Corporation.

(b)  ORIX Asia Capital Limited is wholly owned by ORIX
Corporation. ORIX Asia Capital Limited was granted a put
option to require Haichang Group Limited to purchase from
it and granted a call option to purchase from it 200,000,000
Shares, representing approximately 5.00% of the total issued
share capital of the Company, which had been lapsed on 1
February 2017.

Accordingly, ORIX Corporation is deemed to be interested in the
393,384,000 Shares held by Mountain Tai Apollo Investment Limited
and the call option and put option in relation to 200,000,000 Shares
of ORIX Asia Capital Limited.

2. This percentage has been computed based on 4,000,000,000
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2021.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the
Directors had not been notified by any person (not being the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

EE23 4% DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FTEEMNRNEE HREEE I LEE
WHL A 201641 A28 (B EH B A
201651 A26H ) RR Z &M B REER K
1% o IRBATIRRAM R

@ FTLREREERQIAAFA
393,384,000 %1 ° FILKERE
ERAFBABRNL (FER)ZEGR
AEIZEME  MEEABROIE
E2EHE -

) BATHMERERRABEHRNLT
SE2EME B AOTEMERE
BRARERRLHERTEREES
[E B BR 2 &) M A fE B 200,000,000 %
B MEERERETREES
200,000,000 8% A& 17 (15 22 &) 2 &
BEITIRAA5.00%) © S H#E
BR2017F2 A1 BKLRK -

At BROTEERBEARERILRER
& B R AR FTH 5 393,384,000 B A% 17 &
BEAMBAOTEMNERERARAEFHE
200,000,000 % i& 7 #) 52 5 HA & K& 3204 BA
1 o

ZEDLTIRENR2021F12A31BZE
#£174,000,000,000 AL D EHE -

B T EES - R2021F 12 A 31
B ZEMEENSEIMAL (LIS

EHARBRSTHRAL) EREES K&
HIE R F 336 IF A THFENE M AT
%2 Bt SARRA R D P A R SRR o

2021 EWRE BEELBERERAT

175



176

DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE&#i4%

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION FROM THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

On 27 February 2014, Mr. Qu Naijie and Haichang Group
Limited, entered into a deed of non-competition (the
“Original Deed of Non-competition”) in favour of the
Company in order to mitigate any potential conflict of
interest with the Group. Details of the Original Deed of
Non-competition were disclosed in the prospectus (the
“Prospectus”) of the Company dated 28 February 2014
under the section headed “Relationship with our Controlling
Shareholders”.

On 14 January 2020, upon becoming the controlling
shareholders of the Group, Mr. Qu Cheng, Haichang
Group Limited and Speedy Journey Investment Limited
(the “Controlling Shareholders”) entered into a deed
of non-competition (together with the Original Deed of
Non-competition, the “Deeds of Non-competition”) in
favour of the Company, pursuant to which the Controlling
Shareholders shall not, and shall procure his/its close
associates and/or the persons and companies controlled
by him/it, not to, among other things, carry on, participate
in, acquire or hold any right or interest or otherwise be
interested, involved or engaged in or connected with,
directly or indirectly, any business which is in any respect in
competition with or similar to or is likely to be in competition
with, or provide support in any form to persons or entities
other than the Group to engage in business that constitutes
or may constitute direct or indirect competition with, the
business in which any member of the Group is engaged or
is otherwise involved in its principal business from time to
time.

An independent board committee of the Company (the
“Independent Board Committee”) consisting exclusively of
independent non-executive Directors was set up to monitor
the execution and the performance of obligations of the
Deeds of Non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders
and Mr. Qu Naijie. The Independent Board Committee
has reviewed the status of compliance, and none of the
Controlling Shareholders and Mr. Qu Naijie, nor any of
its subsidiaries or associates were found by the Group
contravening the relevant non-competition undertakings
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 is contained
in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report. The Directors consider that those related party
transactions did not fall under the definition of “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” (as the case
may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required to
comply with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The continuing connected transactions subsist during the
year ended 31 December 2021 had ceased to be continuing
connected transactions since Mr. Qu Naijie, the then controlling
shareholder of the Company and non-executive Director disposed
the relevant connected parties to independent third party before
the beginning of the year ended 31 December 2021.

No connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
(defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules had been entered
into by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands that would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and within the
knowledge of the Directors, during the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company had
maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

A summary of the major events in relation to the Company that
have occurred since the balance sheet date are set out in note 45
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this annual report, the audit committee
(the “Audit Committee”) of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Guohui,
Mr. Wang Jun and Ms. Zhang Meng. Mr. Chen Guohui was the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed together with the Directors
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021 have been audited by Ernst &
Young, the auditor of the Company.

During the preceding three years, there has been no change in
the Company’s auditor.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Qu Naijie

Executive Director, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer

25 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and to enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company
has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
corporate governance.

The Company has been in compliance with the code provisions
of the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021
except as disclosed below.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code (which has been
renumbered as code provision C.1.6 of the CG Code with
effect from 1 January 2022), all non-executive Directors are
recommended to attend general meetings of the Company.
Save that Mr. Qu Naijie and Mr. Li Hao who were non-executive
Directors did not attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 10 June 2021 (the “AGM”) due to pre-arranged
business commitments, all the other Directors attended the AGM.

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code (which has been
renumbered as code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code with effect
from 1 January 2022), the chairman of the Board should attend
annual general meetings of the Company and should also invite
the chairmen of the audit committee, remuneration committee,
nomination committee and any other committees (as appropriate)
of the Company to attend. Mr. Qu Naijie who was the chairman
of the Board and the chairman of the nomination committee
of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) was absent
from the AGM due to pre-arranged business commitments. Mr.
Wang Xuguang who was an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer was elected as the chairman of the AGM. Mr.
Qu Cheng who was an executive Director was also appointed
as the representative of the chairman of the Board to attend the
AGM. Mr. Wang Xuguang, Mr. Qu Cheng and the chairmen of the
Audit Committee, remuneration committee of the Company (the
‘Remuneration Committee”), risk management and corporate
governance committee of the Company (the “Risk Management
and Corporate Governance Committee”) and Independent
Board Committee and other members of the Nomination
Committee were available to answer questions at the AGM.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Company is in deviation
from the following code provisions of the CG Code (version with
effect from 1 January 2022):

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

As required by code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code (which has
been renumbered as code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code with
effect from 1 January 2022), the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals. The Company considers that it is appropriate to
deviate from the code provision as taking the roles of both
chairman and chief executive by the same individual helps
enhance the efficiency of the formulation and implementation of
the Company’s strategies and allow the Group to grasp business
opportunities in an efficient and timely manner. The Company
is of the view that under the supervision of the Board and the
independent non-executive Directors, a balancing mechanism
exists so that the interests of the Shareholders are adequately
and fairly represented.

The chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company is responsible for overall strategic planning and
overseeing the general corporate, financial and compliance
affairs of the Group, and the strategic decision making and the
management of the Group.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are outlined later in this annual report.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group.

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established five Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Risk Management and Corporate Governance
Committee and the Independent Board Committee (together, the
“‘Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.
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Board composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised nine
members, consisted of three executive Directors, three non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors, whose information is set out in the following table.

Name of Director Other Position/Title

EEfA HApB{r B

EEEEM

Date of first
appointment

BEREZRERANY

RAFHRBEY EFgh LK EMA
K BR-FZMNTESE  —RFNTE
EN=Z2BIUIFNITESE - TREIE
EENER -

Date of last re-election
as Director

RIRERREEANY

Executive Directors #{TZ =

Qu Naijie Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

#h AR FREFITIER

Qu Cheng

fhiz

Zhang Jianbin Executive President

R R BMATHRE

Non-executive Directors JE#{TESE

Wang Xuguang Authorised representative
FrBKk RERE

Li Hao

&

Yuan Bing

s

Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTESE

Chen Guohui
ek [

Wang Jun
=

Zhang Meng
RE

21 November 2011

2011411 H21H

25 May 2016
2016F5H25H

5 January 2022
202241 H5H

19 July 2012
201247 A19H

27 August 2018
20188 H27H

24 August 2012
201248 A24H

25 January 2017
20171 H25H

19 December 2019
201912 A19H

25 January 2017
20171 H25H

10 June 2021

20216 H10H

6 June 2019
201946 A6H

30 June 2020
202046 A30H

6 June 2019
20196 A6 H

30 June 2020
202046 A30H

10 June 2021
20216 H10H

30 June 2020
2020% 6 A30H

10 June 2021
202146 A10H
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The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages
144 to 161 of this annual report. The relationships between the
members of the Board are also disclosed under that section.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. Independent
non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Risk Management and Corporate Governance
Committee and the Independent Board Committee.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code (which has
been renumbered as code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code with
effect from 1 January 2022), all directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

The Directors have been provided with the relevant training to
ensure that they have a proper understanding of the business
and operations of the Group and that they are fully aware of their
responsibilities and obligations as a director of a listed company
as well as the compliance practice under the Listing Rules. The
Company from time to time updates and provides written training
materials to the Directors, and organises seminars on the latest
development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to directors’ duties and responsibilities. The
Directors may request the Company, pursuant to the policy for
Directors to seek independent professional advice, to provide
independent professional advice at the expense of the Company
to discharge their respective duties to the Company.
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According to records provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors relating to the business,
directors’ duties and responsibilities and regulatory updates
during the year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

RIEEFIRENGCE  EFNIA2021F
12A31BAINFEESHER - EF
BENEIMAGRHEEEEABEIN
FCERINT

Attending seminars/

conferences/forums Reading
HEWESE S materials

Name of Director BEEES 8F wiE MEER
Executive Directors HITES
Qu Naijie* B v v
Qu Cheng g2 v v
Zhang Jianbin** S = v v/
Gao Jie*** ISP v v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Wang Xuguang**** T B A v v
Li Hao b v v
Yuan Bing RE v/ v
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Chen Guohui PeR [ 2 v/ v/
Wang Jun % v v
Zhang Meng R v/ v
* re-designated as an executive Director from a non-executive * #2022F1 A6 HREARFFATEFHER

Director and appointed as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 5

January 2022

> appointed on 5 January 2022
bl resigned on 23 December 2021

***  re-designated as a non-executive Director from an executive
Director and resigned as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 5

January 2022

MITESUEZERITHRAEE

o JA2022%1 A5 HES (T

= 2021412 F23HEHE

e jA2022F 1 ASHEMRMITESHETAIE
WITEBWEHRITBAT BTG
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS - TERM OF
APPOINTMENT

None of the non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term of longer than three years. None of the Directors has any
unexpired service contracts which is not determinable by the
Company or its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended
31 December 2021, the Company was in compliance with the
requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company was also
in compliance with the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors on his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has any service agreement
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The rules and procedures governing the appointment, retirement,
re-election and removal of Directors are set out in the Articles
of Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing the Board structure, size and composition and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT, RETIREMENT
AND RE-ELECTION

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at least one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not less
than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation and shall be
eligible for re-election and re-appointment at every annual general
meeting provided that each Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and any new Director
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the
next general meeting after appointment.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board intends to hold Board meetings regularly at least
four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals which are
normally scheduled in the fourth quarter of the preceding year.
Notices of not less than fourteen days will be given for all regular
Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for regular Board
meetings. The Board will also hold meeting on other occasions
when a board-level decision on a particular matter is required.
Reasonable notice will generally be given.
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Details of Directors’ attendance at Board, Board Committee and
general meeting(s) held during the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the table below:

EENEE2021FE12 A31 B IFEE 1T
MEESSH BEFLETEIN—K
ERAESNEFLENT

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend

b/ AERLRERNE
Corporate
Governance
and Risk  Independent
Audit Remuneration Nomination ~ Management Board
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General
Name of Directors ESfE Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BRERR
bEER BuEs
BZSEE EVZESEE FWZSSSE REZE9e3 Z8E83 ZEBE8EF  RRAS
Executive Directors YhES
Qu Naije iJTO 4/4 - 11 - - 01
Qu Cheng Hiz 44 - - - - - 11
Zhang Jianbin™ FRIR - - - - - - -
Geo Jie™ B 44 - - - - - 10
Non-executive Directors HrEs
Wang Xuguang*** i 44 - 11 - - - 11
Li Hao E 4/4 - - - - - 01
Yuan Bing RE 44 - - - 22 - 11
Independent Non-executive Directors  BUFHTES
Chen Guohui fREE 44 44 11 - 22 22 1
Wang Jun 15 44 44 1 1 - 22 1
Zhang Meng 2 44 44 - 171 22 22 111

re-designated as an executive Director from a non-executive
Director and appointed as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 5
January 2022

appointed on 5 January 2022

resigned on 23 December 2021

re-designated as a non-executive Director from an executive

>k

*kkk

Director and resigned as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 5
January 2022
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that the
Directors had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. Directors could have recourse to independent
professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s
expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Board delegated the corporate governance
duties to the Board Committees as disclosed under the following
sections.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 23 February
2014. The Nomination Committee comprises the chairman of
the Board and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Qu Naijie (Chairman), Mr. Wang Jun and Ms. Zhang Meng.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment and removal
of Directors.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting of
the Nomination Committee was held in March 2021 and the
attendance record of each member is shown in the table
presented above.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

° to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and to make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board
due to the implementation of the corporate strategies of the
Company;

° to identify individual who has the suitable qualifications to
become a Director and to nominate such person to act as
a Director or to provide recommendation to the Board in
relation to this;

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and the succession plan
of Directors (particularly, the chairman of the Board and
the President of the Group/chief executive officer of the
Company); and

° to formulate a policy concerning the diversity of Board
members and to disclose such policy or a summary of such
in the corporate governance report.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee

are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company believes that the increasing diversity at the Board
level is one of the essential elements in supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development.
Therefore, the Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the requirement
set out in the CG Code. Diversity of Board members can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity,
in addition to educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The following chart shows the diversity profile of the Board as at
the date of this report:
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the criteria and process in selecting
candidate(s) for possible inclusion in the Board. The Nomination
Policy could assist the Company to achieve board diversity in
the Company and enhance the effectiveness of the Board and its
corporate governance standard.

The Nomination Policy sets out the criteria in evaluation and
selection of any candidate for directorship of the Company,
including but not limited to, his/her qualifications, experience,
skill, diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy, potential
contributions to the Board, ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board, and in case of the
nomination of independent non-executive Directors, meeting the
independence requirements with reference to the guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules.

In addition, the nomination processes with regard to the
appointment of new Director and the re-election of Director at the
general meeting of the Company are set out in the Nomination
Policy. Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-
elect a candidate as Director at the general meeting, relevant
information of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular to
the shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying
the notice of the relevant general meeting in accordance with the
Listing Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.

The Nomination Committee may use any process it deems
appropriate for the purpose of evaluating candidates including
personal interviews, background checks, written submission by
the candidates and third party references.

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review
of the Nomination Policy and, where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Nomination Policy to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
business needs.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 February
2014. The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive Directors and one non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Wang Jun (Chairman), Mr. Chen Guohui and Mr. Wang
Xuguang.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting of the
Remuneration Committee were held in March 2021, to review
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and
the attendance record of each member is shown in the table
presented above.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
following:

° to consult the chairman and/or chief executive officer for
the remuneration proposals for other executive Directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
should have access to independent professional advice if
necessary;

° to make recommendation to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for remuneration of all Directors and
senior management (including grant of share options to
employees pursuant to the Share option Scheme) and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing the remuneration policy;

° to review and approve the remuneration proposals for senior
management with reference to the corporate goals and
objectives established by the Board;

° to determine, when the Board delegates its responsibilities,
the remuneration packages for a particular executive
Director and senior management, including non-pecuniary
benefits, pension rights and amount of compensation
(including compensation payable for loss or termination of
office or appointment);
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° to make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
of the non-executive Directors;

° to consider the salaries paid by and the time commitment
and responsibilities requested by companies of similar
nature and the employment criteria for other positions of the
Group;

° to review and approve the compensation payable to the
executive Directors and senior management for loss or
termination of office or appointment such that it is consistent
with the contractual terms or is otherwise fair, reasonable
and not excessive;

° to review and approve the compensation arrangements in
relation to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct
such that they are consistent with the contractual terms or
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

° to ensure that no Director or any of his associates shall be
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 23 February 2014. The
Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chen Guohui (Chairman), Mr. Wang Jun
and Ms. Zhang Meng. The chairman of the Audit Committee
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, four meetings of the
Audit Committee were held in January, March, July and August
2021 respectively, to review interim and annual financial results
and reports, consider significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, and appoint external auditor. The attendance record of
each member is shown in the table presented above.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee include:

Relationship with the external auditor

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor, and to deal with any issues of its
resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the independence and objectivity
of the external auditor and the effectiveness of the audit
process in accordance with applicable standards. The Audit
Committee shall discuss with the external auditor the nature
and scope of the audit and reporting obligations before the
audit process commences;

to monitor the compliance of the Company’s policy on the
engagement of the external auditor for the performance of
non-audit services and the hiring of employees or former
employees of the external auditor;

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
relationship between the Company and the external auditor;

Financial information for public disclosure

to monitor the completeness of the Company’s interim
and annual reports and financial statements, and review
significant financial reporting judgments contained in the
reports and statements before recommending them to the
Board for approval, with particular emphasis on:

° any changes in the accounting policies and practice of
the Group;

o major judgmental areas (including those in the
representation letter from the Company to the external
auditor);

° significant account adjustments resulting from the
audit process;
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° the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

° compliance with accounting and auditing standards;

o compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

to consider any significant or unusual items that are, or
should be, reflected in the reports and financial statements
and give due consideration to any matters and reservations
that have been raised by the staff of the Company who
are responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
functions, the chief compliance officer of the Group and
internal and external auditors;

Monitoring of the financial reporting system and
internal control procedures

to review the Company’s financial control, internal control
and risk management systems;

to discuss the internal control system with the management
to ensure that the management has performed its duty
to establish an effective internal control system. Such
discussion should include the adequacy of resources,
employees’ qualifications and experience in accounting and
financial reporting functions, and training programmes for
employees and its budget;

to consider major investigation findings on internal
control matters and the management’s response to these
findings, either on its own initiative or at the request of the
management;

to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company
and to review and monitor its effectiveness (including the
internal audit plans and procedures);
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to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practice;

to review the external auditor’s letter to the management,
any material queries raised by the auditor to the
management with respect to accounting records, financial
accounts or control systems and the management’s
response to such queries;

to ensure that the Board shall provide a timely response
to the issues raised in the external auditor’s letter to the
management;

Corporate governance functions

to monitor the Company’s corporate governance and to
report to the Board on the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code;

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practice
on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practice
on compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
business ethics for the directors and employees of the
Company;

General

to consider other matters, as defined by the Board.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are

available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Risk Management and Corporate Governance Committee
was established on 23 February 2014. The Risk Management and
Corporate Governance Committee comprises one non-executive
Director and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Yuan Bing (Chairman), Mr. Chen Guohui and Ms. Zhang

Meng.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, two meetings of the
Risk Management and Corporate Governance Committee were
held in March and August 2021 respectively, to review the risk
management policies and standards, compliance reports and
risk assessment reports and to review the compliance of the CG
Code by the Company. The attendance record of each member is
shown in the table presented above.

The primary duties of the Risk Management and Corporate
Governance Committee include, but are not limited to, the
following:

° to review the Company’s risk management policies and
standards, as well as the fundamental concepts and scope
of compliance management;

° to review and provide comments on the overall target and
basic policy of the compliance and risk management;

° to supervise and monitor the development of risk and
compliance management system of the Company;

° to formulate the Company’s corporate governance policies
and conventional rules, to monitor its implementation and to
make recommendations to the Board;

o to review and provide comment on the organisational

structure and responsibilities of the Company’s compliance
and risk management;
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° to review the Company’s compliance reports and risk
assessment reports that need to be reviewed by the
Board, and to make proposals on the improvement of the
Company’s compliance and risk management;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
conventional rules regarding compliance with laws and
regulatory rules as well as with its implementation;

° to formulate, review and monitor the Professional Practice
Code and Compliance Manual (if applicable) of the
employees and Directors;

° to monitor the Company’s compliance with the CG Code,
together with the disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report;

° to monitor the effective implementation of the risk
and compliance management by the management of
the Company and to evaluate the performance of the
responsible senior management;

o to evaluate and opine on the risk of major decision making
and solutions to the major risks of the Company that need
to be reviewed by the Board; and

° other matters as authorised by the Board.
The written terms of reference of the Risk Management and

Corporate Governance Committee are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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INDEPENDENT BOARD COMMITTEE

The Independent Board Committee was established on 23
February 2014. The Independent Board Committee comprises all
the independent non-executive Director, namely Mr. Wang Jun
(Chairman), Mr. Chen Guohui and Ms. Zhang Meng.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, two meetings of the
Independent Board Committee were held in March and August
2021 respectively, to review the compliance and enforcement of
the Deeds of non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders
and Mr. Qu Naijie. The attendance record of each member is
shown in the table presented above.

The primary duties of the Independent Board Committee include:

General undertakings

° According to the Deeds of Non-competition, the Controlling
Shareholders and Mr. Qu Naijie have, jointly and severally,
undertaken to the Company that, among others, they would
not, and that their close associates or associated companies
controlled by them would not directly or indirectly carry on,
participate, or be interested or engaged in or acquire or
hold any business or theme-park related projects in the PRC
which is or may be in competition with the existing business
of the Group.

° The Independent Board Committee shall annually review and

confirm the status of compliance of the above undertakings
in the annual reports.
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Undertakings in relation to the development of
properties

When Haichang Group Limited and Mr. Qu Naijie, in
accordance with the Original Deed of Non-competition,
refer to the Group any opportunity to develop, operate,
participate and/or otherwise hold any right or interest
in any business relating to any properties (the “New
Opportunity”), the Independent Board Committee shall
consider the New Opportunity in accordance with the terms
of the Original Deed of Non-competition.

If the Independent Board Committee considers that the
pursuit of the New Opportunity would be in the best
interests of the Group, the Independent Board Committee
shall consent to the pursuit of the New Opportunity by the
Group.

If the Independent Board Committee is of the view that
the pursuit of the New Opportunity by Haichang Group
Limited and Mr. Qu Naijie will not constitute potential
competition with the business of the Group or pursuit of the
New Opportunity is not in the interests of our Group, the
Independent Board Committee shall consent to the pursuit
of the New Opportunity by Haichang Group Limited and Mr.
Qu Naijie and it shall have the power to impose conditions
and restrictions on the development of the properties by
Haichang Group Limited and Mr. Qu Naijie in order to
prevent any form of potential competition.

The Independent Board Committee shall disclose the
consideration factors and its conclusion in relation to the
New Opportunity in the annual report or interim report of the
Company.
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Undertakings in relation to the sale schedules of
residential properties

According to the Original Deed of Non-competition, in any
city or region where the Group has developed any serviced
apartment projects for sale, Haichang Group Limited,
Mr. Qu Naijie, their subsidiaries or associates shall, in
the event that they have plans to launch the sale of any
residential projects in the same city or region (the “Sale of
Residential Properties”), notify the Group the detailed
sale terms and all relevant information in writing and the
Independent Board Committee shall have the right to veto
the Sale of Residential Properties if it considers that the Sale
of Residential Properties would compete against the sale
schedule of any projects of the Group.

If the Group decides to launch its sale of serviced apartment
projects in the relevant city or region, the Group shall notify
Haichang Group Limited and Mr. Qu Naijie in writing and
Haichang Group Limited, Mr. Qu Naijie or their subsidiaries
or associates can only launch the Sale of Residential
Properties after a time gap of six months (the “Time Gap”)
from the date on which the Group launches its sale of
serviced apartment projects in the same city or region.

If the Independent Board Committee is of the view that a
longer period of time is necessary for the Group to complete
the sale of a significant portion of its serviced apartments
before Haichang Group Limited, Mr. Qu Naijie or their
subsidiaries or associates launch the Sale of Residential
Properties, the Independent Board Committee shall have the
power to extend the Time Gap.

The Independent Board Committee shall disclose the
consideration and its conclusion in relation to the above in
the annual report or interim report of the Company.
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Option to purchase and/or operate and manage
excluded business

According to the Original Deed of Non-competition, if the
Independent Board Committee considers that the properties
developed, operated or owned by Haichang Group Limited,
Mr. Qu Naijie or their subsidiaries or associates (the
“Excluded Business”) or any part of their new businesses
will constitute competition against the Group, the Group
shall be entitled to (1) an option to purchase any equity
interests, assets or other interests which forms part of
such business and/or (2) an exclusive right to operate and
manage such business.

The Independent Board Committee shall review, consider
and decide whether the Group should exercise the option
to purchase and/or operate and manage the Excluded
Business or the new business.

If the Independent Board Committee decides to exercise the
option, it shall have the power to impose conditions and/or
restrictions in order to ensure that the exercise of the option
is in line with the Group’s business strategy and business
model.

The Independent Board Committee shall disclose the
consideration and its conclusion to exercise or not to
exercise the above rights in the annual report or interim
report of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Functions

For corporate governance, the Independent Board Committee
shall, on an annual basis:

° review the compliance with and enforcement of the Deeds
of Non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders and Mr.
Qu Naijie. The Independent Board Committee shall disclose
the results of its review in the annual report of the Company
or by way of announcement to the public; and

° review all of its decisions made pursuant the Deeds of
Non-competition in such year. The Independent Board
Committee shall disclose its decisions and the basis for
them in the annual report of the Company or by way of
announcement to the public.

The written terms of reference of the Independent Board
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, in
accordance with the basis of preparation set out in note 2.1
and the significant accounting policies set out in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Under code provision C.1.3 of the CG Code (which has been
renumbered as code provision D.1.3 of the CG Code with effect
from 1 January 2022), where the directors are aware of material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the issuer’s ability to continue as a going
concern, they should be clearly and prominently disclosed and
discussed at length in the Corporate Governance Report.
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The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval.

The Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on the Company’s performance, positions and
prospects.

DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against its Directors. The insurance covers
them against costs, charges, expenses and liabilities incurred
arising out of the corporate activities.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company and considers that the
internal control system is effective and adequate.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The fee charged by all of the Group’s external auditors in respect
of all audit and non-audit services to the Group during the year is
summarised as below:
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Fees paid/payable

(RMB)
e ENER
(AR#)
2021 2020
Services rendered SRR 20214 20204
Audit services: BEITRTE : 11,060,000 9,753,000
Non-audit services: FETRE - 210,000 200,000
Total #ct 11,270,000 9,953,000
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Kho Polien, the Company Secretary and authorised
representative of the Company, is responsible for advising the
Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring that Board
policy and procedures and applicable laws, rules and regulations
were followed.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Kho Polien
have participated in relevant professional training for not less
than 15 hours during the year ended 31 December 2021. The
Company engages an external professional company secretarial
services provider to provide compliance and full range of
company secretarial services to the Company. Mr. Li Jun, senior
director of enterprise development centre, is the primary point of
contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration of Directors and the five highest paid
employees required to be disclosed under Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules have been set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”). Any declaration and payment of dividends shall be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to all
applicable requirements (including without limitation restrictions
on dividend declaration and payment) under the Companies Act
of Cayman lIslands and the Articles of Association.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into
account, inter alia:

° the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

° the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the
relevant financial covenants;

° the Group’s expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans;

° general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; and

° any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/
or modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company in respect of its future dividend and/or the obligation
of the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to
time.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders and investors is essential for enhancing investor
relations and understanding of the Group’s business, performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of timely and non-selective disclosure of information, which will
enable shareholders and investors to make informed investment
decisions.

To promote effective communication with its shareholders
and encourage their participation in general meetings, and to
promote effective communication with investors, the Company
has established a shareholders’ communication policy and
maintains a website at www.haichangoceanpark.com, where up-
to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments are available. The Company has also set up an IR
email address at investor@haichangoceanpark.com to collect and
answer shareholders’ and investors’ enquiries and questions.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Company intends to avoid bundling of resolutions at general
meetings such that a separate resolution shall be proposed for
each substantially separate issue at general meetings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
in a timely manner after each shareholders’ meeting.
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CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one or more
shareholders of the Company may convene an extraordinary
general meeting provided that they deposit a written requisition
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong and such
requisitioning shareholders hold as at the date of deposit of
such requisition not less than 10% of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries voting rights at general meetings of the
Company.

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a
general meeting in accordance with the Companies law of the
Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong. The
Company will respond to all enquiries on a timely and proper
basis.

CONTACT DETAILS

Email: investor@haichangoceanpark.com

Postal address: Room 804, 8/F., K11 Atelier, Victoria Dockside,
18 Salisbury Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change to the restated memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2021.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBERE

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

EY:

To the shareholders of Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Tel: +852 2846 9888
Fax: +852 2868 4432
WWWw.ey.com

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 218 to 391, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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EY:

To the shareholders of Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (the “IAASB”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 BE RS

EY:

To the shareholders of Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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EY:

To the shareholders of Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd. BEESFABRIEREREATZRE

(REEHELMA L ERL )

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matter

HRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ARERSHREFRTNEESE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, and right

VxE  BERREAREHESERE

-of-use assets

The Group is an operator of theme parks in the
People’s Republic of China and has a material
operational asset base which may be vulnerable
to impairment when the performance is below
expectations. It is normal that the tourism industry
suffers losses during the first couple of years since
the commencement of operations. The carrying
values of these assets are reviewed annually by
management for indicators of impairment. For assets
where such indicators exist, management performs
detailed impairment tests based on assumptions
including revenue forecasts, gross and operating
margins and the discount rates, which involve
significant judgement.
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Our audit procedures included, among others, the
evaluation of the Group’s policies and procedures
to identify impairment indicators for underperforming
theme parks, and the review of management’s
impairment tests for those underperforming theme
parks with impairment indicators. Besides, we
assessed the assumptions used by management
including the discount rates and long-term growth
rates with reference to those of the Group’s other
operating parks and industry peers. We compared
cash flow forecasts to internal budgets and long-
term strategic plans that were approved by senior
management as well as the historical trend analysis.
We assessed the reasonableness of the projected
sales growth by analysing the accuracy of historical
forecasts and their consistency with other information
such as the expected life of each theme park and the
market in which it is located.
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EY:

To the shareholders of Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd. EBESFEFAEERERATZRE

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

(REEHELMA L ERL )

Key audit matter

HRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HRELSHREFRTNEESE

Based on the outcome of the impairment tests, the
Group recognised impairment of RMB571,336,000
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2021. The impairment test was important to our audit
due to the magnitude of the carrying amount of the
assets for operation (54.06% of the total assets as
at 31 December 2021) and the judgement involved
in determining key assumptions such as future
sales growth, profit margins and discount rates, in
particular for certain theme parks with an aggregate
carrying amount of RMB5,077,747,000 as at 31
December 2021 which were incurring losses.
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Relevant disclosures are included in notes 4 and 12
to the consolidated financial statements.
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EY:

To the shareholders of Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB R E

HBESFLAEAZERARQIAETRR
(REEHELMA L ERL )

Key audit matter

HRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ARERSHREFRTNEESE

Valuation of investment properties

REYEIG1E

The valuation of the investment properties is
important to our audit due to the significance of
the investment properties’ carrying value (6.85%
of the total assets at 31 December 2021) and the
judgement involved in determining key assumptions
such as estimated rental revenues, term yields and
market yields.
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Relevant disclosures are included in notes 4 and 13
to the consolidated financial statements.

HERRESHN A ERERME4R13 -

We reviewed and checked the objectivity,
independence and competence of the external
valuers. We furthermore checked the accuracy of
the property-related information and involved our
valuation specialists to assist us in reviewing the
work and methodologies of the external valuers
and assessing the underlying assumptions, such as
comparing them to external market rents and vyields.
We also evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures
on the valuation of investment properties.

BEFOHALERIIEBEEMNERE  BYMER
BiEHE -  EENE-PREVEARERNNER
- WHEBESNEEERHYE SR INEBEE
B &Y TR R 73R A R eF (A AR RE IR AR - a0 1 5 B2 )
MHSES MBS RETHL - BSNREHRE
MEGENREER N EREELRG
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 BE RS

EY:

To the shareholders of Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

INCLUDED IN THE

information. The other information comprises the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 12 to 37, which we obtained
prior to the date of this audit report, and the other sections of the
Annual Report not including the consolidated financial statements
and the auditor’s report thereon (“the Other Sections”), which are
expected to be made available after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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EY:

To the shareholders of Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B2 BE RS

EY:

To the shareholders of Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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EY:

To the shareholders of Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Cheung.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

PN = 32
Year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BIEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AREFIT AREFIT
REVENUE PN 6 2,460,200 1,168,222
Cost of sales THER AR (1,738,935)  (1,297,477)
Gross profit/(loss) ER,(18) 721,265 (129,255)
Other income and gains E g A M UrES 6 2,672,145 251,700
Selling and marketing expenses HERMSHERERY (225,372) (168,957)
Administrative expenses THER (1,147,568) (676,160)
Impairment losses on financial TREENEENRERSE
and contract assets, net pEi-E 7 (19,444) (23,769)
Other expenses HmE A (233,147) (173,720)
Finance costs B 7 X AR 8 (489,871) (598,725)
Share of (loss)/profit of an associate FEfE— B AR A (B518),/
il (80,839) 1,361
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX RRESATRR(B518) 7 1,197,169  (1,517,525)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTiSfi (), #H& 10 (362,931) 39,071
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FERERN (FHE) 834,238  (1,478,454)
Attributable to: EERN
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZZPN 844,851 (1,451,637)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR = (10,613) (26,817)
834,238  (1,478,454)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BAREBRESEAENL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BRERN (&E)
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 11
Basic and diluted AR KRS
— For profit/(loss) for the year — FEREF S (E8E)
(RMB cents) (ANREED) 21.12 (36.29)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SftEERER

Year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BIEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFIT
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FREA(EE) 834,238  (1,478,454)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Htt2mEkzE (BR)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income that may be REIZ BB A EFHEEIBE R
reclassified to profit or loss in H 2 mEmias
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINETGHE X5
foreign operations 61,354 197,811
Net other comprehensive income that REAZHBE U EF I EETERTRNWEM
may be reclassified to profit or loss 2 HE R FEE
in subsequent periods 61,354 197,811
Other comprehensive loss that will not REgEEE T ENMoEEERR
be reclassified to profit or loss in Hih2mEESE
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of BMEBINETSRIIE H Z 5
foreign operations (65,448) (197,713)
Net other comprehensive loss RBAHEETEENI BEBEEZRN
that will not be reclassified to Hit 2 HEEEFE
profit or loss in subsequent periods (65,448) (197,713)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ FREM2E (FR) i NBRBE)
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF
TAX (4,094) 98
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FrREEEE (BR) AR
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 830,144 (1,478,356)
Attributable to: BB
Owners of the parent BRAIEER A 840,757  (1,451,539)
Non-controlling interests PR (10,613) (26,817)
830,144  (1,478,356)
2021 ERE BEBFAEEREBRAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B OF B B AR R

31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hist ANRETFT AESTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEIRE 12 4,886,671 7,269,824
Investment properties REME 13 802,800 2,491,400
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14(a) 1,448,228 1,699,295
Intangible assets BREE 15 12,385 14,857
Investment in an associate N—EBE R RNRE 18 = 80,839
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss & iBIBIE A R BENIERD
CREE 16 159,363 141,020
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 17 20,147 36,121
Long-term prepayments and deposits RBBARBERES 24, 40(b) 490,071 452,103
Properties under development BRPYE 20 299,789 465,470
Total non-current assets FRBEERRE 8,119,454 12,650,929
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Completed properties held for sale BEHENE BN 19 44,308 82,788
Properties under development ERAYE 20 - 316,427
Inventories e 22 27,513 36,400
Biological assets EWMEE 25 6,707 =
Trade receivables 2 S WA 23 67,051 167,026
Contract assets ANEE 21 52 237
Prepayments and other receivables TEAS FRIE R HoAth FE WK IE 24 240,609 637,642
Tax recoverables A] Ug [l Fi 18 - 55,732
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss B BIEZFZ A4 BEFIERR
TREE 16 - 200
Pledged deposits BEHEIFER 26 5,000 63,997
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBE2EEY 26 3,206,658 2,408,110
Total current assets REEEAE 3,597,898 3,768,559
CURRENT LIABILITIES TRBAE
Trade payables B 5N FIR 27 598,006 992,657
Other payables and accruals H A R K ERT & A 28 508,370 1,370,283
Advances from customers REABPHIK 29 16,904 19,651
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SERRIT R EMER 30 1,925,907 2,769,547
Lease liabilities HEaE 30 16,520 12,624
Government grants BRI e B 31 21,890 97,268
Deferred revenue WA 32 - 67
Tax payable AR 10 273,086 219,660
Total current liabilities REEEAE 3,360,683 5,481,757
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE (8F)FHE 237,215 (1,713,198)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERABER 8,356,669 10,937,731
continued/: -
B/
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

&P AR R R
31 December 2021
2021F12A31H

2021 2020
202145 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wt AREFTT AREFT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SHRRITREMER 30 3,268,061 6,426,162
Lease liabilities HEBE 30 43,845 41,113
Long-term payables REER A 27, 28 728,495 383,991
Government grants BUT#H Ak 31 414,353 838,366
Deferred revenue B A 32 - 775
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIBEE 17 71,446 246,999
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELAE 4,526,200 7,937,406
Net assets EEFH 3,830,469 3,000,325
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BAREE AEEER
Share capital N 33 2,451 2,451
Reserves G 34 3,764,461 2,923,704
3,766,912 2,926,155
Non-controlling interests eI R R 63,557 74,170
Total equity R 3,830,469 3,000,325
Qu Naijie Zhang Jianbin
37 REENE,
Director Director
EBEF EZ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EOtREREE X
Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARES ARG
Retained
Asset Exchange profits/ Non-
Share Share  Capital revaluation  Statutory fluctuation (accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  resewve  reserve losses) Total interests equity
RE%H/
R&  RMEE EARE BEEMRE iRBE ENRERE (RRER) g FBRER  4RE
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB000  RMBU00  RMB00  RMB'000
ABEFT ARETR ABEFT ARETE AREFT ARETE ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFZ
(note 33) (note 34(z)) (note 34())
(Kit33) (Wit s4pa) (Hietsapb)
At 1 January 2020 20205151 2451 2363685 781,576 37106 292,607 17,025 933045 4377694 100,987 4,478,681
Loss for the year EmER = - - - - - (1451,637) (1451,637)  (26817) (1,478,484)
Other comprehensive EREHIENG :
income for the year.
Exchange differences REBNEHHEL
on translation of £
foreign operations - - - - - % - 9% = 9%
Total comprehensive EnzEk:/(BR)
income/(oss) for the year 4% = = = - - 98 (1451637 (1,451,839  (26817) (1,478,356)
Transfer from retained ERaREET
profits - - - - 4,330 - (4,330) - = =
At 31 December 2020 #2020512A318 2451 2363685  731576* 37,108 296987 17328 (622,922 2,926,155 74170 3,000,325
continued/- -
g/ ..
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EOEREER

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12A31BIEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARER AR
Retained
Asset Exchange (accumulated Non-
Share Share  Capital revaluation  Statutory fluctuation losses)/ controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
REEH/

Rx  RBER AhE% SEEMGE iERE EXRBRRE (RHER) gt FERER  £RE
RMB'000  RMB000  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMBU00  RMBU00  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETE ARETT AREFL ARETL AREFT ARET:E ARETT ARETE ARETT AREF7
(note 33) (note 34(z)) (note 34())

(Hit33) (it s4pa) (it s4ft)

At 1 January 2021 202151 A1H
Profitloss) for the year £l /(B5)
Other comprehensive loss ~ FREMB2EER :

for the year:

Exchange differenceson ~~ AE IS5 EHHIESL
tranglation of foreign =8
operations

2451 2,363,685 731,576 37,105 296,987 17028 (622,922) 2,926,155 14170 3,000,325
844,851 844,851 (10,613) 834,238

(4,094) T

(4,094

Total comprehensive En2EkE/(BR)
income/(oss) for the year

Disposal of subsiciaries  HiEHEAH

Transfer from retained ERaRAET

profits

(4094 844851 840757 (10613 830,144
287,275 - - -

- - - - )

- - - - 112,708 (112,708) - - =

At 31 December 2021 R2021 128318

2451 2,063,685  T731,576*  37,105*  172370* 13,029  446496* 3,766,912 63,557 3,830,469

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of 5 I ERERBEG U BHRARANES
RMB3,764,461,000 (2020: RMB2,923,704,000) in the consolidated B ARYS3,764,461,0007T (20204 :
statement of financial position. AR ¥2,023,704,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHBEERER

Year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BIEFE

2021 2020
2021 2020F
Notes RMB’000 AMB 000
i3 ARETT AREFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RELLEBNRERE
Profit/(loss) before tax BRER /(B8 1,197,169 (1,517,525)
Adjustments for: FUATEBEELAE
Depreciation of items of property, plant and equipment N BERLEEENE 712 412,690 448 602
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 0% - BEREERE 7,12 571,336 231,103
Amortisation of intangible assets BRAEZH 7,15 3,138 4,135
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESENE 7,14(3) 71,536 46,811
(Reversal of provision)/provision for inventories FE (RERE)/ BB 7 (157) 53
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, ~ HENE - BERREER  RENER
investment properties and intangible assets aREENESE 7 55,565 4,641
Loss on revaluation upon transfer from completed properties ~ REREHELENDZRNEENE -
held for sale to property, plant and equipment BRESEMEENERESE 7 - 7,415
Covid-19-related rent concessions from lessors HEARBFEERRSEENELER 140 - (2,542)
Changes in fair value of investment properties REMELLBEE 13 177,616 153,949
Changes in fair value of biological assets EMEEN L BEEE 25 (6,707) -
Government grants recognised B R 6,31 (142,284) (221,955)
Loss on derecognition of leases BRI ERNBE 7 4,301 2,049
Gain on modifications of financial liabilities that do not result £ R BB ATNEHK HREANETH
in derecognition = 6 (17,748) (566)
Impairment of trade receivables B RN IERE 23 15,060 25,394
Reversal of imparment of financial assets included in STABNEUE - KB IER At EE
prepayments, other receivables and other assets MeRAENERE 7 (181) (1,929)
Reversal of impairment of contract assets, net RNEERNERDTE 21 185 516
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of amounts due from FEUERARTERE/ (FERE)
related companies 4,330 (216)
Finance costs BT A 8 489,871 598,725
Foreign exchange loss EREX 7 1,147 238
Share of loss/(profit) of an associate AME—HBENRER /(&) 18 80,839 (1,361)
Interest income FEHA 6 (3,593) (10,218)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARR KR 36 (2,473,804) -
440,359 (232,677)
Increase in properties under development BRTMEEM (39,213) (81,989)
Decrease in contract assets RNEERD - 2,343
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEm) /b (1,716) 10,024
Decrease in trade receivables B ARWHERD 19,734 20,264
Increase in prepayments and other receivables AR E MY (502,818) (135,049)
Decrease/(increase) in frozen or restricted cash BREFZB RS RFTERR D/
and bank balances (&) 58,565 (8,700)
(Decrease)/increase in advances from customers REZFSH (D), (8,007) 13,563
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables BAEMAZERD)/ B0 (7,072) 66,515
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accruals EthEMTOERESER (BD),/ %M (113,143) 267,238
Increase in government grants B 31 56,359 216,552
Decrease in deferred revenue i ON T (80) (567)
Decrease in completed properties held for sales BELEMEEKMERD 286,549 -
Decrease in pledged deposits BEAGTRD 61,556 =
Cash generated from operations RETHELNES 250,983 137,517
Interest received ElFIE 2,516 1,376
Interest paid BRHE (3,113) (3,375)
Tax paid BRHE (29,329) (17,949)
Net cash flows from operating activities BETHELNFHERE 221,057 117,569
continued/:--
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHRERER
Year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BIEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

Wit ARRTR AEETT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERETBNRERE

Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment BENE  BERIBEE (159,102) (194,758)
Decrease/(increase) in long-term prepayments and deposits ~ REEMFELRRERD /(&) 22,946 (15,355)
Increase in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ~ EBEHE AL EEFIRN S REEEMN (18,343) @, 900)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEWAE 15 (1,587) (1,651)
Interest received B I & 9,919 8,842
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant and HENE  BERLEER  RENER

equipment, investment properties and intangiole assets AR EENMEIA 13,703 5,085
Additions of investment properties MERENE 13 (66,432) (10,563)
Increase in other receivables GG (170,000) (200,000)
Disposal of subsidiaries LERBAR 36 3,604,914 -
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities REZHEL /(FA) FRERE 3,236,018 (413,300
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REMETHNRERE
New bank and other loans MERTREMER 928,796 1,926,782
Repayment of bank and other loans BESFTREMER (2,885,010) (1,237,970
Principal portion of lease payments HERFHAL S 37() (12,078) (12,498)
Increase in pledged deposits BEREZEM (3,861) (34,579)
Interest paid BRFIE (622,568) (430,922)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities RETE (FR)/ EERELRE (2,594,721) 210,813
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BERASSEMFEM/ (HD)

CASH EQUIVALENTS 862,354 (84,918)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year E?ﬂﬁ’]?ﬁ&ﬁéﬁ@% 2,345,492 2,430,550
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net R ek (5,241) (140)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR ERNBRERBLEEY 3,202,605 2,345,492
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERBSESBNERIN

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances BeRBiTEH 3,206,658 2,408,110
Cash and cash equivalents as stated n the statement of HBRARPAINR R RREEED

financial position 26 3,206,658 2,408,110
Frozen or restricted cash and bank balances BRREITBHNRE RFTE 26 (4,053) (62,618)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated BeRERPMIINAERALEEY

in the statement of cash flows 26 3,202,605 2,345,492
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT RS RAR M AT

31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Haichang Ocean Park Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 21 November 2011. The registered office of the
Company is located at PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"):

o development, construction and operation of theme
parks

o property development
° investment

o hotel operation

° provision of consultancy and management services

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and
the ultimate holding company of the Company is Haichang
Group Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at the

REAREEE

B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021F12A31H

(&)

BEMNBQRNER
RS AN AA T EBHBAA

date of this report are as follows: HEEMT
Place and date
of incorporation/ Issued ordinary Percentage
registration and share/Registered of equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
HMRL/
RIIEES Y BRALER/
£ REH ZMER AAFEEEREAN TEEK
Direct  Indirect
Ef ik
BE (PE) BRAR PRG/Mainland China RMB4,000,000,000 - 100% Investment holding
(*Haichang China”)*# 11 December 1996
BE (PE) GR AR wmE/RERE  ARE4,000,000,0007 - 100% REBR
(IBEHE]) 4 1996128118
AEBEREEEERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100% Investment holding
(“Dalian Tourism"* 28 January 2010
AEBEREEEERAA ME /HRERH AR10,000,0007 - 100% REER
(TR 201041 A 288
ABEZRERTARERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB240,584,000 - 58.3% Park operation
(‘LHT")* 13 February 2001
AEERESELRERAA E/ FERY AE#240,584,0007 - 583% LEEE
(TRERE]) " 200142 4138
BarABEREBRAR PRG/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Park and hotel operation
(“Yantai Park”)t 15 March 2005
EaRABEREERARA HE /P ERY AR#30,000,0007C - 100% RERBERE
([E&RE])" 2005438158
2021 FERE BEBELABRERERAR



228

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place and date

NEIREBER (&)

B EK B A B EF ()

of incorporation/ Issued ordinary Percentage
registration and share/Registered  of equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
HMRL/
EMREREH BRAEER/
8 REH dMER  ARREEEEEIL TERE
Direct  Indirect
Ef 583
rEBEmEFE RERAT PRC/Mainland China RMB900,000,000 - 100% Park development
(“Shanghai Haichang")* 19 July 2011 and hotel operation
HEEEEMETE RERAR hE /A AR#900,000,0007 - 100% PEERRMAELE
(TEE8a))" 201157 A19R
AEBEERTEIRARARAA PRC/Mainland China USD73,235,294 - 100%  Park and hotel operation,
(“Discoveryland”)* 28 May 2012 property development
and investment
AEHEERTIAIBARARAT e/ RE A 73,285,294 7T - 100% RERBEEE
(#RTHE))" 2012%5A28R NELRRRE
BERBEMELEREREERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB351,291,310 - 100% Park operation,
(“Chongging Caribbean”)* 18 January 2012 property development
and investment
ERBENSLEREERERAA e/ RE A AR¥351,291,3107 - 100% RAEEE - NERERLKE
(TEEMHLE])" 2012%1A18R
COREBNNRBERERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB589,600,000 - 100% Park development
(“Sanya Haichang Dream World"}* 24 December 2013 and operation
ZEEEBOTRHERARLA hE /R, ARH589,600,0007 - 100% PERRREE
([=ZBESOTRM])! 20135 12A24H
HEBEREAAERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100% Tourism consulting,
(“Tourism Consulting”)* 29 June 2015 construction project
design and consulting
LBBEREANGRAR hE/ RER, AE#10,000,0007T - 100% IR
(IieEARe )" 2015564298 LA Rt Rk

HAICHANG OCEAN PARK HOLDINGS LTD.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place and date

B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021F12A31H

of incorporation/ Issued ordinary Percentage
registration and share/Registered  of equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
HMRL/
R &R BRAEER/
8 REH dMER  ARREEEEEIL TEXK
Direct  Indirect
Ef 583
LAEEEEFEMREERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100% Import and export of
(“Shanghai Biotechnology”)* 30 May 2016 goods and technology,
and marine biotechnology
development
HEBEmLEF EMREARAR hEl /hEIR AR100,000,0007 - 100% @ E:RREELONAR
(TEEEmRR])! 201645 A30H AR
LEERRERERRAR PRC/Mainland China RMB170,000,000 - 100%  Finance lease business
(“Changhai Lease")* 7 June 2016
LEERRERERRAA e/ RE R AR#170,000,0007 - 100% RAMERHE
(TE8H8E])" 201656A7H
B gERinEE EBRAR PRC/Mainland China RMB333,330,000 - 100% Park development
(“Zhengzhou Park’)? 6 July 2016 and operation
BMEERET AEARAR El /BRI AR333,330,0007 - 100% PERRREE
(TBMRRE]) 2016%7 A6H
gNEEEEARRBERARAR PRC/Mainland China RMB669,930,000 - 100% Park development
(“Zhengzhou Tourism’”)* 20 June 2017 and operation
BMEE B ARRERRARAR hE /R, AK%669,930,0007C - 100% NEERREE
(TEM iz ]) ¢ 201746 A20H
HEREREEEARAT PRG/Mainland China RMB3,679,600,000 - 100% Investment holding
(“Shanghai Tourism”}* 21 February 2019
HEBEREREARAT B /BN  AR¥S3,679,600,0007 - 100% REBR
(I Eiie]) ¢ 2019%2A21H
2021 EHE BEBFARERERATF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

*

According to the articles of association of LHT, the profit
sharing ratios of LHT are not in proportion to its equity ratios
but are as defined in the articles of association. Pursuant to
the articles of association, the Group and the other equity
holder share the profits of LHT at a 6:4 ratio.

*k

Haichang China is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned
investment enterprise by Haichang Holdings (Hong Kong)
Limited under PRC law. As at 31 December 2021, the
registered capital of Haichang China amounted to RMB4,000
million, of which RMB912 million remained unpaid.

# The subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all International Financial
Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
(“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, biological assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Reform — Phase 2
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021 (early adopted)
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2.2 CHANGES

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are

described below:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when
an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with
an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective
interest rate to be updated without adjusting the
carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining
the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the
interest rate benchmark reform and the new basis for
determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding
the change. In addition, the amendments permit
changes required by the interest rate benchmark
reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge
documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could
arise on transition are dealt with through the normal
requirements of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise
hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide
a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is
designated as a risk component. The relief allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within
the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments
require an entity to disclose additional information to
enable users of financial statements to understand the
effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s
financial instruments and risk management strategy.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be
applied retrospectively, but entities are not required to
restate the comparative information.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021F12A31H

22EMBMRRBENEF

(&)
LIEFTRBR R EERANEE K
SERMINT

(@)

BIPR B TS R 5 RSB 958 « B
R ETAERIE 395, « BB
BHELEBETS - BBRGH
R 45 A2 Bl 25 4 5% K B B B S 3R
HAERIE165 2SR BRIR ST A]
BIIATEEMERENEE
AR R A 2 B fe A1) 2R ([ 4R &
RAE ) R E0 W
EHMEE - ZE BRI IREER
BERE BAREEETS
REENRBEGLBRESREN
EWHNEEER - Mz E 55
EEHENEHEEER  BE
EAABR S RER T ERL
ELEHERBEEZEERMN L
—E# - A ERFNEA]ETH
BRoMEERBEREEET
TOAEF o Lo - RFEE A
AR REENEEREEHIE
NIEE M E B XHRRSIER A
BE  MIAEBIRIEERA
& o A B M A B &= & /Y E 1]
Wy 5 3% B 18 1 1B B B B S R s
EBIFEIFMIEE BREIE -
NETE R ERE BB © %
LRI MEHERR G  BE
Bz 1) 2= 458 48 TE A4 R B 9 AR K
ok BREAFTESAER
WRHEK - ZHAREEER
EEERRAIBESREAE
BHRHENXR  WZERES
IPTEEA 7 R e F R A R e AR
REB D #2248 A Al 7
BEBER - BN RFEFE
KEBEBRELZER  FHK
WMERMEAER TR EREE
HEHZEBNSRTARRE
REERIBNTE « ZFIER]
R2021F1 A1 H 2 BFA
RFEHIR AR - WAEES
KA BEEREOASMLREK
= o

2021 FERE BEHFELARERERAT

o /.

> {8

233



234

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@) (continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings denominated in RMB based on the
China Interbank Offered Rate as at 31 December
2021. If the interest rates of these borrowings are
replaced by RFRs in a future period, the Group will
apply the above-mentioned practical expedient upon
the modification of these instruments provided that the
“economically equivalent” criterion is met. Additional
information about the associated risks is disclosed in
note 43 to the financial statements.

(b)  Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends
the availability of the practical expedient for lessees
to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of
the covid-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly,
the practical expedient applies to rent concessions for
which any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022,
provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met. The amendment is effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at the
beginning of the current accounting period. Earlier
application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1
January 2021. However, the Group has not received
covid-19-related rent concessions and plans to apply
the practical expedient when it becomes applicable
within the allowed period of application.
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23ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®*

Amendments to IFRS 17 Initial Application of IFRS 17
and IFRS 9 — Comparative
Informatior?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-curren?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies®

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transactior?

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16
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Annual Improvements to

IFRS Standards IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
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and IAS 41
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23ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

4 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in
June 2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than

IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS
37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying IFRS
3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of
the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of
first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.
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23ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and
in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify
that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is
subject to the entity complying with specified conditions, the
entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end
of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions
at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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23ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to |IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how
to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-
mandatory, an effective date for these amendments is not
necessary. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of the amendments on the Group’s accounting policy
disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after
the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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23ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
to transactions related to leases and decommissioning
obligations at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively
to transactions other than leases and decommissioning
obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and
did not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences for transactions related to
leases. Upon initial application of these amendments, the
Group will recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred
tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
and recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented.
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23ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items,
in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract
as well as contract management and supervision costs).
General and administrative costs do not relate directly
to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted.
Any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application without restating the
comparative information. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements.
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23ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

° IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of
a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial
liability. These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on
the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on
or after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

° IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
lllustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying IFRS 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of the associate is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associate are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in the
associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of the associate is included as part of
the Group’s investment in the associate.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

HAICHANG OCEAN PARK HOLDINGS LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

SR BEREE

KR ARNRE
BENRAAEEBARAR IR
BERNDR20%M KBz B 1T
FEAFENNER EAXEN
R2EFEHRIERLEBRR
ERES - BIWIEZZHERAIZEH
TR o FE [ 428 il o

AREBREE R RN RERBEES
Gi0A  BAKED N FEER
ERERE - KA HI B R
51| B

AEEDHBERRNPRBRERS
REMEZE WD - DRIFEAGHE
mMAEHEMEEEA o LI
MEERBERREE AR RN
B AEBEREERRNES R
DEPHRTEREDENETAE
B AEEEHEBENFZHANR
ZFTELNRER KR REERTIA
HiH - ARERERNZEZE QBN
BRR - EWMARBERERIHHME
EEELBRBERIRRIN o B
LZRAEENBEFTAR/LKER
BEARMIRE —#D -

MR B S R AR E D B RFHEL
% BIREB BRI 5 3R & £ R FE 55
[FFEL ERIFER B B ER B ILAE
E S IUN



3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower
than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating
unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(i)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third-party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRR

B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021F12A31H

= (&)

EEAL (8)

&

(b)

i@

i
i

\
/
B
k

(il

(iv)

(viii)

2021 FERE

—EEESS—EEEN
BERNFRAERT (K
Sr—EEENE QR -
= NCTE AT ESG - N

al):

_:Hﬁnéﬁ

—AERAE=TTEEN
BERA] Mx—(EEE
REF=ZFTERNBED
al

ZERBRUAEENIAE
EFEERNEE AR R
AR BERL R 12 AT S

ZERX (a)EAHRIA
TSRS

(@) BFTEBIALTHZE
BEE %%ﬁﬁ%?
B(HZERESAR)AK
FEEBREKE K

= Aﬂlfﬂ} i

ZEBRIAXEEMBOE
EEMKEARBAEE
ARENFRARRHEE
ZEBEABRS °

BEBFLABEEZERERAF

249



250

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant
and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is
part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with IFRS
5, as further explained in the accounting policy for “Non-
current assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

2.5% to 5.0%
Building improvements 5.0%
10.0% to 20.0%
10.0% to 25.0%
20.0% to 33.3%

2.5% to 33.3%

Theme parks and other buildings

Machinery

Motor vehicles

Office equipment and furniture
Live animals

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property
for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use
asset up to the date of change in use, and any difference
at that date between the carrying amount and the fair
value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
completed properties held for sale to investment properties,
any difference between the fair value of the property at that
date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)
Software and copyright

Software and copyright are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains
a lease component and non-lease component(s), the Group
adopts the practical expedient not to separate non-lease
component(s) and to account for the lease component
and the associated non-lease component(s) (e.g., property
management services for leases of properties) as a single
lease component.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(@

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Where
applicable, the cost of a right-of-use asset also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
THE T
Buildings

BF

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(@)

®)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in
leasehold land held as properties under development
and completed properties held for sale, they are
subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value in accordance with the Group’s policy
for “properties under development” and “completed
properties held for sale”. When a right-of-use asset
meets the definition of investment property, it is
included in investment properties. The corresponding
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and
subsequently measured at fair value, in accordance
with the Group’s policy for “investment properties”.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(b)  Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings.

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the lease payments
and related payments including the initial direct costs, and
presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease. The finance income on the net
investment in the lease is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
return over the lease terms.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for
sale after completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred
during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond the normal operating cycle. On completion, the
properties are transferred to completed properties held for
sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
estimated by the directors based on the prevailing market
conditions. Cost is determined by an apportionment of the
total costs of land and buildings attributable to the unsold
properties. Any excess of cost over the net realisable value
of an individual item of completed properties for sale is
accounted for as a provision.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS
15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs
if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the
fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third-party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables,
the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, trade payables, or other payables and
accruals as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and in the case of loans and borrowings, amounts due to
related companies and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, amounts due to related companies
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021F12A31H

EXRSTHRUE (&B)

THEE (&)

wAE B

BIFEREBENIE  TRAEEMN
RETETEMT ¢

KGR ENLBEE (BEHARER)

BRMRK  sERERREEER
ABRRF R IR BRI AT E -
FEZETIK ARSI - fi8
RBEARLBERALREEBERNXE
#H - RIRA KRB BN BmRER o

T EEER AR B 5t RERWEET
FHRE  URERMNEAEEH
BRIARA - BERMEEHE AR
BRATIERA -

BEERTREE

SREBENREEETHRE  BUSK
fE s BUH R

WEEERBERS —HAR—F
BEARKMBRILY EKXTRNE
ERTELR - HIRE B ENIRFRAE
&5 - BB BERSERT R AR 1
ERRBERENLRERIAETAE
2o MmERRRENZRENEE
RNTER

2021 FEERE BEELRERERAT

267



268

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Biological assets

Biological assets represent marine animals. They are
measured on initial recognition and at the end of each
reporting period at their fair value less costs to sell. A gain
or loss arising on initial recognition of biological asset at fair
value less costs to sell and from a change in fair value less
costs to sell of a biological asset is included in profit or loss
for the period in which it arises.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
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2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.

(a) Sales of completed properties

For property development and sales contract for which
the control of the property is transferred at a point in
time, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
the physical possession of the completed property and
the Group has the present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

®)

()

(@)

(€

®

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Ticket sales

Ticket sales are sales of tickets and rendering of
services in park for tourists. The revenue is recognised
when the relevant services are rendered and the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Provision of consultancy, management and recreation
services

Revenue from the provision of design services is
recognised at the point in time when the service
is completed. Revenue from the provision of other
consultancy, management and recreation services is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Provision of in-park recreation

Revenue from the provision of in-park recreation is
recognised when the relevant services are rendered
and the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Hotel operation

Revenue from hotel operation is recognised when
the relevant services are rendered and the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment
is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject
to impairment assessment, details of which are included in
the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised
as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@@ The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to
satisfy) performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the asset relates. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC government,
the companies comprising the Group operating in the
PRC (“the PRC group companies”) have participated in a
local municipal government retirement benefit scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the PRC group companies are required
to contribute 18% to 20% of the salaries of their employees
to the Scheme to fund their retirement benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the Scheme is to pay
the ongoing contributions under the Scheme. Contributions
under the Scheme are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021F12A31H

EXRSTHRUE (&B)

BE®N ()

BikEq1 8 (&)

7R % [ IR AR 97 08 ) 1 R TR & 51 & 1
PIRERBENMEREBEEF ]
SRTE MR 98 1 A FE 2 RN R R FT
g ([BEEE ) - HADRE
BEEXRFENRAEEDLIEL -
AR 95 58 A8 < 7T 8 B9 AR R A B
IEERINEG - RS ENEE
EAEEEENH EBUEEN
EePHHA - ERBEDE 8/ H5K
B ARBENEIHFZHEET
&S -

BERAR

WiE BRIEEABEE (AIFE
— BB KR E 7 A E B E B
HENEE) ERBIENEERTS
BREEXR  (ERRSEEMNI DK
RN BEECSKRBAERERENK
HER  AFAEBERZFEERAE
BABER - EBEEBEREARE
B AT E A P RER A B
AEBBRAEARNBERANLRE
FrE R EERAREEHEIE
i EERAHMERERE
SRFTEE M E A AR AS AR EK

2021 FEERE BEELRERERAT

277



278

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”). The Company’s functional currency is United
States dollars (‘USD”). The Group’s presentation currency is
RMB because the Group’s principal operations are carried
out in Mainland China. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of certain subsidiaries are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of certain
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

(i) Property lease classification - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease
term not constituting a major part of the economic
life of the commercial property and the present value
of the minimum lease payments not amounting to
substantially all the fair value of the commercial
property, that it retains substantially all the significant
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the
contracts as operating leases.

HAICHANG OCEAN PARK HOLDINGS LTD. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

E RS HE R AT

RAEAEENTHRKRE - BEE
AL A - fAFRRER - MZF
HE - B RBRRFERSHRE
EHRBA FHX BEERABESHE
REHBEREARIEEENHH
B ZEBRRLAFO I EERE
AREREHARAANBABITZEER
EXAFEZKEE -

F i
BEERAASEN S BRE -
B 1F 0% R ASET A HIET SN - IR R
UTHRHBERERAERCRER
EXRTENHE

() WREEEDE - FEEESL
A
AEEEREREYMERHESF]
UYRENERE - ERNHZRF
L HEZ IR AR (Bl 18
KREENELEEFHERRD
MEES  URTMEEEDE
BRAHDAANBEZRERE
MRz REF)  AEECE
EHRBMSCHBEYERESR
RHBENBRHYERRR K
Bl - WK ZFEE ARG



4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)

(i)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could
be sold separately (or leased out separately under a
finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an
insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services
are so significant that a property does not qualify as
an investment property.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)

(iii) Classification between investment properties and
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and
properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Judgement is made by management in
determining whether a property is designated as an
investment property or a property held for sale. The
Group considers its intention of holding the properties
at the early development stage of the related
properties. During the course of construction, the
related properties under construction are accounted
for as properties under development included in
current assets if the properties are intended for
sale after its completion, whereas, the properties
are accounted for as investment properties under
construction included in non-current assets and are
subject to revaluation at the reporting date if the
properties are intended to be held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Upon completion of the
properties, the properties held for sale are transferred
to completed properties held for sale and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value, while
the properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation are transferred to investment properties
and are subject to revaluation at each reporting date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Judgements (continued)

(iv) Classification between properties held for sale
and owner-occupied properties

The Group develops properties held for sale and held
for self-use. Judgement is made by management in
determining whether a property is designated as a
property held for sale or an owner-occupied property.
The Group considers its intention of holding the
properties at the early development stage of the related
properties. During the course of construction, the
related properties under construction are accounted
for as properties under development included in
current assets if the properties are intended for sale
after its completion, whereas, the properties are
accounted for as construction in progress of property,
plant and equipment included in non-current assets
if the properties are intended to be held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Upon completion of the
properties, the properties held for sale are transferred
to completed properties held for sale and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value, while the
properties held for self-use are transferred to property,
plant and equipment. Whereas, there is evidence for
the change of intention as determined by the Group
for the use of properties between properties held for
sale and properties held for self-use, reclassification
is made and depreciation will cease or commence
according to the accounting policies as stated in
“Completed properties held for sale” or “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” in note 3.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

(i) Valuation of properties under development and
properties held for sale

Properties under development and properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The cost of each unit in each
phase of development is determined by appropriate
apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings
attributable to the properties. The estimated net
realisable value is the estimated selling price less
selling expenses and the estimated cost of completion
(if any), which are estimated based on the best
available information.

(ii) Allocation of construction costs on properties
under development, investment properties and
construction in progress

When developing properties, the Group typically
divides the development projects into phases and
categories. Costs directly related to the development
of a phase and a category are recorded as the cost of
such phase and category. Costs that are common to
each phase and category are allocated to each phase
based on the saleable/usable floor area of each phase
and category as a percentage of the total saleable/
usable floor area of the entire project. The cost of
the unit sold subsequent to the completion of the
properties is determined by the floor area in square
metres sold during the year multiplied by the average
cost per square metre of that particular phase or
category of the project.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland
China. As a result of the fact that certain matters
relating to income taxes have not been confirmed by
the local tax bureau, objective estimate and judgement
based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations
and other related policies are required in determining
the provision for income taxes. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
originally recorded, the differences will impact the
income tax and tax provisions in the period in which
the differences realise.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The amount of unrecognised tax
losses at 31 December 2021 was RMB3,004,482,000
(2020: RMB2,858,639,000). Further details are
contained in note 17 to the financial statements.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market
for similar properties, the Group considers information
from a variety of sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties
of a different nature, condition or location,
adjusted to reflect those differences;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS IRAR P RE

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(v) Estimation of fair value of investment properties

(continued)

(b)

recent prices of similar properties on less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since the
date of the transactions that occurred at those
prices; and discounted cash flow projections
based on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any existing lease and
other contracts and (when possible) by external
evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition,
and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at
31 December 2021 was RMB802,800,000 (2020:
RMB2,491,400,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurements, are set

out in note 13 to the financial statements.

(vi) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators

of impairment for property, plant and equipment

and they are tested for impairment when there are

indicators that the carrying amounts may not be

recoverable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(continued)

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value-in-use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit based on
assumptions including revenue forecasts, gross and
operating margins and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate
ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets.
The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(vii) Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables and contract assets (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical
credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables and
contract assets is disclosed in note 21 and note 23 to
the financial statements, respectively.

(viij) Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing
rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The
IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available
(such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for
example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR
using observable inputs (such as market interest rates)
when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-
alone credit rating).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ix) Provision for completed properties held for sale

(x)

and properties under development

The Group recognised a provision for the completed
properties held for sale and properties under
development when the cost of the properties exceeded
the net realisable value. The assessment of the
provision requires management estimates on the future
selling price and future cost to be incurred of the
properties. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, the
differences will impact the carrying value of properties
and provision charge/write-back of impairment in the
period in which the estimate has been changed.

Fair value of financial assets

The unlisted investments included in the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (2020:
unlisted investments) have been valued based on
a market-based valuation technique as detailed in
note 42 to the financial statements. The valuation
requires the Group to determine the comparable
public companies (peers) and select the price multiple.
In addition, the Group makes estimates about the
discount for illiquidity and size differences. The Group
classifies the fair value of these investments as Level
3. The fair value of the unlisted equity investments
at 31 December 2021 was RMB159,363,000 (2020:
RMB141,220,000). Further details are included in note
16 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(xi) Fair value measurement of marine animals in

biological assets

The Group’s biological assets are valued at fair value
less costs to sell. The fair value of biological assets
is determined based on either the market-determined
prices as at each year end adjusted with reference to
the species, age, growing condition and cost incurred
to reflect differences in characteristics and/or stages
of growth of biological assets; or the present value
of expected net cash flows from the biological assets
discounted at a current market-determined rate,
when market-determined prices are unavailable. Any
changes in the estimates may affect the fair value of
the biological assets significantly. The independent
qualified professional valuer and management review
the assumptions and estimates periodically to identify
any significant change in fair value of biological assets.
Further details are given in note 25 to the financial
statements.

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised to
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a)

the park operation segment engages in the
development, construction and operation of theme
parks, development of commercial and rental
properties surrounding the theme parks, management
of the Group’s developed and operating properties
for rental income, hotel operation and the provision
of services to visitors as well as consultancy,
management and recreation services such as the
provision of technical support service relating to an
aquarium and the operation of a small size playground;
and
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

(b) the property development segment engages in
property development, construction and sales; and

(c) the operation as a service segment engages in the
provision of consultancy, management and recreation
services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax.

Segment assets exclude intangible assets, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, trade receivables, contract
assets, prepayments and other receivables, deferred tax
assets, amounts due from related companies, pledged
deposits and cash and cash equivalents as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

The Group’s liabilities are managed on a group basis.

No further geographical segment information is presented as
over 99% of the Group’s revenue from external customers is
derived from its operation in Mainland China and over 99%
of the Group’s non-current assets are located in Mainland
China.
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OPERATING SEGMENT

(continued)

Operating segments

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

Year ended 31 December 2021

INFORMATION 5. &K&o9ER (8F)

BZE2021F12A31BLFE

Park Operation

Property

operation as a service development Total
NEEE EEHRK MEZR @st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFrr AR¥Fr AR¥EFT AR¥ETFT
Segment revenue (note 6) DEUA (i zE6)
Sales to external customers HE TINBE P
and total revenue eI N 1,824,162 51,810 584,228 2,460,200
Revenue WA 2,460,200
Segment results DEbEE 401,301 22,283 297,681 721,265
Reconciliation K
Unallocated income and L O 6
gains 2,672,145
Unallocated expenses APEFRX (1,625,531)
Share of loss of an associate DE—REE AR N EE (80,839) - - (80,839)
Finance costs BARS R AR (489,871)
Profit before tax B % A A 1,197,169
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021F12A31H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. &K&5IER (E)
(continued)
Operating segments (continued) KL (&)
31 December 2021 2021F12H31H
Park Operation Property
operation as a service development Total
AEEE EEIRE MERRE #@ct
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFrT ARETFT AREFT AR¥ETFR
Segment assets NEEE 7,512,985 101,501 344,097 7,958,583
Reconciliation: HE -
Corporate and other NEIREMARDEEE
unallocated assets 3,758,769
Total assets BEE 11,717,352
Segment liabilities pan-iy=0 129,820 3,503 - 133,323
Reconciliation: #H -
Corporate and other REIREMASEEE
unallocated liabilities 7,753,560
Total liabilities Y=V 7,886,883
Other segment information Hith D E &R
Share of loss of an associate DME—RlE AR
HE 1 (80,839) - - (80,839)
Impairment losses recognised REERRER R FE
in the statement of profit EBEFE
or loss, net 590,626 - - 590,626
Depreciation and amortisation MEREE
Unallocated ool 3,138
Segment 25 480,871 3,355 - 484,226
Investment in an associate R—EEERAINEE - - - -
Capital expenditure* BEARL
Unallocated ROE 1,587
Segment DE 202,588 - - 202,588
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. &R&5IHER (F)
(continued)
Operating segments (continued) KL (&)
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12 A1 HILFE
Park Operation Property
operation  as a service development Total
rEEE  EeikRB MEER et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Segment revenue (note 6) DEUA (i zE6)
Sales to external customers HETINIEP
and total revenue RBIA 1,134,713 33,509 - 1,168,222
Revenue WA 1,168,222
Segment results DEEE (141,275) 12,020 - (129,255)
Reconciliation Easi3
Unallocated income and gains KD EWA R W zm 251,700
Unallocated expenses APEFRX (1,042,606)
Share of profit of an associate o — & A RIRYR A 1,361 - - 1,361
Finance costs A (598,725)
Loss before tax BRI (1,517,525)
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OPERATING SEGMENT

(continued)

Operating segments (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INFORMATION

B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021F12A31H

o

rEDEER (F)

KEDE (&)
3

31 December 2020 2020F12 H31H
Park Operation Property
operation  as a service  development Total
rEEE  E=HkRB MEERE FaE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Segment assets DHEE 11,946,001 137,016 864,685 12,947,702
Reconciliation: #E -
Corporate and other AR REMANBEE
unallocated assets 3,471,786
Total assets BEE 16,419,488
Segment liabilities NEBRE 130,245 2,853 624,038 757,136
Reconciliation: #E -
Corporate and other RRREMRIEEE
unallocated liabilities 12,662,027
Total liabilities BafR 13,419,163
Other segment information HEthnapE R
Share of profit of an associate 5 — & A RK R A 1,361 - - 1,361
Impairment losses recognised RIBRRIER
in the statement of profit RN Ei=VE
or loss, net 254,925 - - 254,925
Depreciation and amortisation TEREE
Unallocated RO 4,135
Segment DE 493,573 2,935 - 496,508
Investment in an associate R —EHE AR E 80,839 - - 80,839
Capital expenditure* BARH
Unallocated ADE 1,651
Segment aRss 218,121 - - 218,121
- Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant * BARARTBIEERANE  BERRK

and equipment, investment properties, intangible assets,
right-of-use assets and long-term prepayments.

e REVE BYEE £HE
BERKBENFE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. &KR&HIER (8F)
(continued)

Information about major customers EREERXEFNER
No information about major customers is presented as WEZINEBEEEFPHER - R
no single customer from whom over 10% or more of HAAWEE -—FFPREZE2021F
the Group’s revenue was derived for the year ended 31 12 A1 B IEFEMAEER AR
December 2021, 10% °
6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WA - HBlR A Kz
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADHTIAT -
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

izt ARETT  AR¥TT

Revenue from contracts with customers FKEEFELIAMA 2,384,228 1,082,315
Revenue from other sources K EE M ANRHTHA
Gross rental income from investment REREMFLEHE
property operating leases: FH S WA B2 - 7
Variable lease payments that do not W IEAR FHE 8k
depend on an index or a rate F =T E A9
A#RERK 383 320
Other lease payments, including fixed HA RS -
payments BREEE R 75,589 85,587
75,972 85,907

2,460,200 1,168,222
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31

BAFEIRAR P RE

December 2021

202112 A31H

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WA -~ Hfblg A Rz (8)
(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEZFEHHEA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) ZBRHEHIRAEZHE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12A31ALFEE
Park Operation Property
Segments V= operation as service development Total
LNEEE EEHRK MEZR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT AEBEFT ARBEFT AREFR
Types of goods or ERSBREES
services
Tickets sales PFIRIHE 1,161,227 - - 1,161,227
Property sales MEHE - - 584,228 584,228
Food and beverage sales Rk miEE 228,146 - - 228,146
Sale of merchandise EmHE 88,737 - - 88,737
In-park recreation income afiz e T ON 163,344 - - 163,344
Income from hotel REBEZENRA
operations 106,736 - - 106,736
Consultancy, il BER
management and iz N
recreation income - 51,810 - 51,810
Total revenue from RERPANMBALBE
contracts with
customers 1,748,190 51,810 584,228 2,384,228
Geographical market 1th & i 35
Mainland China el 1,748,190 51,810 584,228 2,384,228
Timing of revenue BB B9 B
recognition
Goods transferred at R—EREBEIER
a point in time 319,132 - 584,228 903,360
Services transferred R — B R % R ARG
over time 1,429,058 51,810 - 1,480,868
Total revenue from contracts R E R F A XH)
with customers WA %8 1,748,190 51,810 584,228 2,384,228
2021 FEERE BEELRERERAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WA - Hblg A Rz (&)
(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers REFFSHHWA ()
(continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) ESBEBIWNEHE ()
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F 12 831 HILEE
Park Operation Property
Segments o operation  as a service  development Total
NEEE B2 A RS MEER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Types of goods or EnSREESE
services
Tickets sales PFIZEHE 635,264 = - 635,264
Food and beverage sales BEmkAmEE 163,071 - - 163,071
Sale of merchandise EmiEE 58,570 - - 58,570
In-park recreation income  EAZELIEIKA 99,721 - - 99,721
Income from hotel KEBEELENBA
operations 92,180 - - 92,180
Consultancy, management & » EER
and recreation income i I GN = 33,509 = 33,509
Total revenue from contracts R EEF A 415
with customers ONt 1,048,806 33,509 - 1,082,315
Geographical market hEmE
Mainland China HEAH 1,048,806 33,509 - 1,082,315
Timing of revenue AL ON: oL
recognition
Goods transferred at R—EREB R E R
a point in time 223,890 = = 223,890
Services transferred R—EB BB R R
over time 824,916 33,509 - 858,425
Total revenue from contracts K EEFA K
with customers WA B35 1,048,806 33,509 - 1,082,315
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021F12A31H

6. WA - HMRARWKE (&)
KEFFEHHBA (&)

(i) ALK EZHR (E)
TREATRKAREHANER
SFAREHRAGRENENEE
AT ABEHEREBEOET

MmiERHIMA %8
2021 2020
2021 %F 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARETT

Revenue recognised that was included R HAFI AR AT A

in contract liabilities at the beginning EHBBERNNEER

of the reporting period: WA -
Properties sales YIEHE 584,228 =
Tickets sales FIRHE 129,510 92,198
Income from hotel operations REBEEERBRA 735 182
Consultancy, management and BE BRI A

recreation income 2,853 3,546

717,326 95,926

(ii) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
is summarised below:

Property sales

The performance obligation is satisfied upon obtaining
the physical possession of the completed property
by the customer and payment in advance is normally
required.

(i) BHEM
ERASENRBHNRETERM
M

YEHE
EEPRBERXRMENEL
BEHERER  BRRBENEL
—MRBTRSEAK

2021 FEERE BEELRERERAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(ii) Performance obligations (continued)
Sales of merchandise

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the goods and payment by the customer
simultaneously is normally required. There is no right
of return or volume rebate which gives rise to variable
consideration.

Ticket sales

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment in advance is
normally required, except for tickets sold through travel
agencies, where payment is generally due within 30 to
90 days from the delivery of tickets.

Provision of consultancy, management and recreation
services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time
as services are rendered and short-term advances
are normally required before rendering the services.
Management service contracts are for periods of one
year or less, and are billed based on the milestone
according to contract terms.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:

6.

WA~ AR WS (48)

REFFEHHBA (&)

(i)

BRI E A ()

EmiH&

ERXNEMBEERL —RARK
e - B ENEME - X
EEFESIHRETENER
S RFEEFIRER] o

FIR#HE

JB #) B (EBE & B2 AR 75 B0 B ]
R —RZATESENK - 1R
BIRITHEENPIREI - H
MR —BRZXNFIREIOE
Q0 R FIHf -

TR - B RELIRE

J& #) & 1E B8 E 1R AR 75 1O s )
mE o RERE A —RBEN
FEEARE - BERE AR
—EFFUT - TRIES KGR
BERESHARE -

M12A31BRREHRTELD
EECRmRSEIBDRmT)

RSERREWT :
2021 2020
2021 £ 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT

Amounts expected to be TEE SR ABRARN SR ¢
recognised as revenue:
Within one year —FR

133,323 757,136
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(ii) Performance obligations (continued)

Provision of consultancy, management and recreation
services (continued)

All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated
to the remaining performance obligations are expected
to be recognised as revenue within one year. The
amounts disclosed above do not include variable
consideration which is constrained.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021F12A31H

6. WA - HMRARWKE (&)
KEFFEHHBA (&)

(i) BRIEME (&)
JEHEH - EHEREFERY
(%)
FMEEPEREHTROEER
RERSEEHAFTR —FNA
ERAWA - A EMBENE
B EIEXZRBIE ] 2KE -

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

i3 AREFRT  ARETT

Other income Hr A
Government grants T B 31 142,284 221,955
Interest income FEMKA 3,593 10,218
Income from insurance claims RERBRRENRA 21,291 11,257
Others Hth 13,425 7,704
180,593 251,134
Gains Wz
Gain on modifications of financial SRBEEENEYR
liabilities that do not result in RIFERNEE
derecognition Eoligas 17,748 566
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB A R M= 2,473,804 =
2,491,552 566
2,672,145 251,700
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7. BRELANEF S (E51E)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after REEMBRBEIDEF /(EE) 70
charging/(crediting): B (GEA) AT IEBIZER
2021 2020
Notes 20215 2020%F
Hrat RMB’000 RMB'000
Cost of properties sold EEMEKA 286,547 =
Cost of merchandise sold E &M A 47,773 31,769
Cost of services provided* TRt PR P A 568,982 430,938
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BEREHENE 12 412,690 448,602
Amortisation of intangible assets EEESH 15 3,138 4,135
Direct operating expenses arising on rental FREVE 2 AR 34
earning properties EREERY 4,511 8,542
Impairment of financial and contract assets, net: SRRENEERETE
Impairment of trade receivables, net B ENFIEREFE 28 15,060 25,394
Impairment of contract assets, net BRNEERMETE 21 185 516
Reversal of provision for impairment of financial FTABMFERE A ER
assets included in prepayments and other HEARNEREERE
receivables BERD (131) (1,925)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of amounts MR ERE 1 RIFURRIE
due from related companies (RfERR) 4,330 (216)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 71,536 46,811
Lease payments not included in the measurement ~ FAAAHE A B EFRH
of lease liabilities HERK 14(c) 3,429 254
Auditors’ remuneration ZEENE 9,060 9,753
Employee benefit expense (excluding directors EERAAY (TEFEESE
and chief executive’s remuneration)*: KBgEMe)
Wages and salaries TERF® 373,321 305,801
Bonuses 14T 91,787 39,346
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RINEFIFTEI R 45,111 32,478
510,219 377,625
Foreign exchange differences, net X EFE 1,147 238
(Reversal of provision)/provision for impairment FERE (BERR),/
of inventories BB (157) 53
Impairment of property, plant and equipment mE - BEREERE 12 571,336 231,103
Loss on revaluation upon transfer from completed FEE R AR EIL ERE B
properties held for sale to property, plant and MEZNE - BER&HE
equipment MEERNEMHER - 7,415
Loss on derecognition of leases BIFEREENER 4,301 2,049
Changes in fair value of investment properties BREMENREEE 13 177,616 153,949
Changes in fair value of biological assets EMEERRBEED 25 6,707 =
Rental income He A 6 (75,972) (85,907)
Interest income FIEMA 6 (3,593) (10,218)
Government grants recognised** B R 5 B 31 (142,284) (221,955)
Income from insurance claims RERBRENKA 6 (21,291) (11,257)
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant HENE  BEREEEE
and equipment B8 55,565 4,641
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021F12A31H

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued) 7. B%fr wHL(EE) (&)
Certain amounts of depreciation of property, plant and %% BB K& 1E A K & B 18 | 5
equipment and employee benefit expense are included in cost SHETE B ARERBSAK A
of services provided. ZH e

**  Various government grants have been received for park x> EREFEAMENAEES R EE
construction and operation in Mainland China. Government BHMEZIEHTREE o mARAERE
grants received for which related expenditure has not yet F 2 89 B U ER KT A Bh BT A B S AR
been undertaken are included in deferred income in the SR AELE WA R o I E I F
statement of financial position. There are no unfulfilled BB R BT AEIE -

conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.

FINANCE COSTS 8. WA
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as RELCEEBNYBKA DTN
follows: N
2021 2020
202145 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT

Interest on bank loans and RITEREEMERTOFE
other loans 486,758 581,585
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENFE 3,113 3,375

Total interest expenses on financial I IFBEBIBFZ AR BETIE
liabilities not at fair value through BWemaEn SR A%E

profit or loss 489,871 584,960
Less: Interest capitalised W BRMEF A - 2,498
489,871 582,462
Other finance costs: H A B RS
Increase in discounted amounts ARHBEMELESRARE
of financial liabilities arising BEITIR SRR AN
from the passage of time - 16,263
489,871 598,725
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for 2021
and 2020, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

EERITHESMER TS
R 1= % i R S AV EN <=

BERITEHAFEN2021F %2020
FHMNESREBEBIMEBS LTH
AT EmRA]) - BEBERHERME
383(1)(a) * (b) * (c) (HiEkra) (#
BRESM=ER) RAIE2HH TN
™

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ARETFTT

Fees e 2,040 2,040
Other emoluments: Efe :
Salaries, allowances and benefits ~ #& - 2By R EWiEF
in kind 2,548 2,501
Retirement benefit scheme RRAEFIET B R
contributions 129 24
2,677 2,525
4,717 4,565
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (continued)
(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021F12A31H

9. EERTHAZEMERAE
e ESHNME (&)

(a) BMUFAITES
FAXMFBILIFMTESN
WEMT :

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FiT AREFT

Professor Chen Guohui BR B 0% 100 100
Professor Zhang Meng SREBHE 100 100
Mr. Wang Jun FEEA 100 100

300 300

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2020: Nil).

FAYERMNBIIFNTES
B ECAD B & (20204F : f&) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (continued)

9. EERITHARMER TS
e ES RIS (&)

(b) The chief executive, executive directors (b) THHER - HITESERIKE
and non-executive directors HITES
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration
‘ e AL BAEA
e REWEF HE [ ame
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT
Year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021F12 31 AILEE
Chief executive: THEE -
Mr Wang Xuguang Tt LsE 400 662 57 1,119
Executive directors: Y1ES:
Mr Qu Cheng %&ﬁi 400 924 16 1,340
Mr Gao Jie* AL 400 962 57 1,419
800 1,886 73 2,759
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. Qu Naijie BAEE 180 - - 180
Mr Yuan Bing RESAE 180 - - 180
Mr Li Hao ks 180 - - 180
540 - - 540
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE2020F12A31BILEE
Chief executive: THEE -
Mr. Wang Xuguang THRxEE 400 1,163 4 1,567
Executive directors: HES:
Mr Qu Cheng il 400 517 16 933
Mr Gao Jie RAEE 400 821 4 1,225
800 1,338 20 2,158
Non-executive directors: FHTEE:
Mr Qu Naijie A LE 180 - - 180
Mr Yuan Bing RESAE 180 - - 180
Mr Li Hao BERE 180 - - 180
540 L X 540

*

Mr. Gao Jie resigned as an executive director of the

Group with effect from 23 December 2021.
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) The chief executive, executive directors
and non-executive directors (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.

(c) Five highest paid employees
The five highest paid employees during the year
included one director including the chief executive
(2020: two directors including the chief executive),
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9(b)
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining four (2020: three) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021F12A31H

9. EERTHRAZMERAE
&= E SN S (&)

(b) THAH HITESRHE
HITES (&)
FAY BT ERESTHEX
RIBMEEAMES L -

c) EEEEFTFMES
FAREERRTHNEERE—
ZEE (BIETHER) (2020
F-MBEZT(BEITHRE
) HENMESFBREN L
X HIEE9(b) - 82 T IH% (2020
F:ZR)WIIARTBES
FITHEENESTHEERRN

Company are as follows: FAMEFBET -
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFT ARETFTT
Salaries, allowances and e EMREYET
benefits in kinds 3,877 2,540
Retirement benefit scheme RIREFETEIE TR
contributions 221 12
4,098 2,552

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within
the following band is as follows:

WIHEBFFTRARNRS
FMEENME N FIATEHE
FRABIAT

Number of employees

EEAH
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$1,000,001 to 1,000,001 7 7t = 1,500,000/ 7T
HK$1,500,000 4 3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX

Provision for PRC corporate income tax has been provided
at the applicable income tax rate of 25% for the year ended
31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: 25%) on the
assessable profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in
the financial statements as no assessable profit was derived
from Hong Kong during the years.

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on Land Appreciation Tax (the “LAT”) effective
from 1 January 1994, and the Detailed Implementation Rules
on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT effective
from 27 January 1995, all income from the sale or transfer
of state-owned leasehold interests on land, buildings and
their attached facilities in Mainland China is subject to
LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the
appreciation value, with an exemption provided for property
sales of ordinary residential properties if their appreciation
values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the total deductible
items.

The Group has estimated, made and included in tax
provision for LAT according to the requirements set forth
in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The actual
LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax
authorities upon completion of the property development
projects and the tax authorities might disagree with the
basis on which the provision for LAT is calculated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021F12A31H

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FTS% (48)
Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss REFEBEERANEHRA
represents:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB 000
AREFT AEETFIT
Current — Mainland China: BVER — AR B AT
Charge for the year FRLZH 350,778 15,232
Underprovision in prior years BEFEREEBTR 4,064 -
LAT IR ET 67,263 -
422,105 15,232
Deferred tax (note 17) EIERE IR (FIFE17) (59,174) (54,303)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FRBEH ~(3K%) £5E 362,931 (39,071)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax using the statutory rate to the tax expense at the

156 PR TE Bt 3R 5t 58 A R BR A A A
?lJEU$RIEﬁaﬂSEEﬁiikE%TR+qu§E’J

effective rate is as follows: IR RN T
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥MFIT AREFTT
Profit/(loss) before tax BB A= T, (E18) 1,197,169  (1,517,525)
Tax at the statutory income tax rate IRATEFIEH KT ERFIE 299,292 (379,381)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% A& B A BB A A Al 20K i
on the distributable profits of the HI5% TE T &) 52 &
Group’s PRC subsidiaries 22,256 (16,618)
Effect of withholding tax on the HEWBARMENRNZE
disposal of subsidiaries 158,514 -
Adjustments in respect of current FBEFER BB IAE L TR
tax of prior years 4,064 -
Income not subject to tax BAERTUA (616,492) (8,484)
Expenses not deductible for tax I3 20,405 8,271
Tax losses utilised from previous FRAFREEE
periods - (296)
Tax losses not recognised RIER AT IEEE 247,188 357,437
Temporary difference not recognised MR H) E BF = &8 177,257 -
Provision for LAT T b 38 (A B B A 67,263 -
Tax effect on LAT THIEER RS E (16,816) r
Tax charge/(credit) for the year BERBEGTENFERNTIA
at the effective rate i (ER) 362,931 (39,071)

2021 FEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S RE AR B o

31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FS% (48)
Tax payables in the consolidated statement of financial & BB B AR R R A FE S 0 18
position represent: =2

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
20215 20204
12H31H 12H831H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T ABWETF T

PRC corporate income tax B (b E TSR 273,086 196,464
LAT T IR E R - 23,196
273,086 219,660

11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 11. BRAREEREESEAENL

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY BRER (EER)
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount BREARF (BB) HESAQ
is based on the profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity AEERESEAEBGERN (&
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of 8)  URFADET S MR INE
ordinary shares of 4,000,000,000 (2020: 4,000,000,000) in SE19%14,000,000,000 i % 7 (2020
issue during the year. £ : 4,000,000,000 %A% 7 ) 5+ & o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021F12A31H

11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 11. BRAREERESEAEN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY SREF (EE) (&)
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (continued)

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amount BREAAF (EE) £BIRE
is based on: N TBUEETE -
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T ABR®TF T

Earnings/(loss) a¥(&EE)
Profit/(loss) attributable to FETESREARET,/ (EE)
ordinary equity holders of ZERFIEBREREA
the parent, used in the 1= F] (EE)
basic earnings/(loss) per
share calculation 844,851 (1,451,637)
Number of ordinary shares
EEREAE
2021 2020
20215 20204
Shares 4)
Weighted average number of BETEERELRREF /(Ei8)
ordinary shares in issue during ZEABETTRRE
the year used in the basic TIN5 2
earnings/(loss) per share
calculation 4,000,000,000 4,000,000,000
There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue FAWESBETHAEETEINE
during the year and therefore the diluted earnings per share AR AERESERNeEES
amount was the same as the basic earnings per share IR EARZF R o
amount.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. 9% - BEK&E

Office
Theme parks equipment
and other Building Motor and Construction
buildings  improvements  Machinery vehicles furniture  Live animals  in progress Total
IELR BATRE
REfES BERE BE hE REGA FEHN FEIR a3t
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ABETR ABBTT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFL AREFR AREFR
Cost A
At 1 January 2020 1202051 A1H 6,549,915 269,981 2,007,327 37,887 415,360 563,053 393,718 10,227,241
Additions R 12,219 - 10,123 752 31475 19,465 75,983 150,077
Transfer from investment properties ERaRENE (1)
fote 13 \ 3,000 . - - C - 3 3000
Transfer from completed properties ERARENENEER
held for sale hx 12,778 - - - - - - 12,778
Transfer to investment properties ERERENE (52,452) - - - - - - (52452)
Transfers g2 28,089 . 20,169 - 26% 300 (53,890 -
Disposdls ve 150 : (1.755) (1255) BYY 258 S ooy
At 31 December 2020 and R020F12A31BR
1 January 2021 021E181H 6,953,029 269,981 2,035,864 37,384 445,537 552,939 415,811 10,310,545
Additions 5 26,023 - 3,144 639 20,518 886 81,731 132,941
Transfer from investment properties ERaganz (HH3)
fnote 13 10103 - - . - . - 40,103
Disposelof subsdaies 1ote 3] HERBAT (Kitap) (192328 S TRk BO9 99 (264 B3 (2501423
Transfers 42 37,358 - 10870 - 8143 1300 (5767 -
Disposels te (27,829 - e 1254 (188 (438 (06 (103764
At 31 December 2021 20215128318 4,705,406 269,981 1,600,893 21,120 399,437 438,587 436,378 7,878,402
Accumulated depreciation ZRITE
At 1 Jenuary 2020 Ro00E1 A1 (1,028,481 (1389 ©072) Qg8 (16153 (162359) - BT
Depreciation for the year ERfE (180,217) (14,230) (163,066) 2.916) (68,333) 29,840) - (448,602)
Transfer to investment properties BRBRENE (HH13)
fote 13 3407 - - . - - - 3407
Disposals HE 1,045 - 2,874 1,203 1,996 13,205 - 20,373
At 31 December 2020 and R2020E12A318 R
1 January 2021 021E1A1H (1,204,246) (28,123) (1,140,913 (29,519) (027,879) (178,944) - 2,809,618)
Depreciation for e year ERE (178574 6465 (136663 PR ) (4E%) - (H26%)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HERBAR (H:H36) 498,847 3405 372,09 8,153 40617 61,180 - 984,298
Disposals i - - 5,982 1,120 4,849 36,767 - 48718
At 31 December 2021 o112 831A (683973 B1163 (89498 (2070 (46138  (1055%0) - 189290
Impairment HE
At 31 December 2020 and R020E12A31B R
1 denvary 2021 RIETRIR (196,717) - 9 925 6119 (1,207 6069 (231,109
impaiment HE (456,697) - M) (1082 87%) 190 @04 57130
At 31 December 2021 1021 %E12A318 (653,414) - (70,887) (1,987) (6,851) (3,287) (66,013) (802,439)
Net carrying amount REFE
At 31 December 2021 H2021E12 8318 3,168,019 238,798 630,508 2,763 146,448 329,770 310,365 4,886,671
At 31 December 2020 2020128318 5,162,066 241,858 868,975 6,940 214,545 372,698 412,742 7,269,824
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The Group’s parcels of land in Mainland China where the
hotel buildings, parks and other buildings are situated are
held under medium-term leases.

Included in the property, plant and equipment were certain
buildings with a carrying value of RMB1,221,638,000 (2020:
RMB2,181,581,000), of which the property certificates have
not been obtained as at 31 December 2021.

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s
theme parks and other buildings and construction in
progress with net carrying amounts of approximately
RMB1,698,578,000 (2020: RMB2,756,379,000) and nil
(2020: RMB343,726,000), respectively were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
30).

The Group had conducted an impairment test on property,
plant and equipment of certain loss-making subsidiaries.
The carrying amount of two cash-generating units, which
included these property, plant and equipment, was in excess
of their recoverable amount of RMB264,551,000 as a result
of management strategic transformation considering under
performance of two parks and the impact after the outbreak
of covid-19. Accordingly, a provision for impairment of
approximately RMB571,336,000 (2020: RMB231,103,000)
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2021. The estimated recoverable amount as at
31 December 2021 was determined based on their value-
in-use amount estimated by using a discount rate of 11.0%
(2020: 10.3%).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021F12A31H

12. Y% - MEKRE (8)

AEBRFEAMABEDE R
B R EMMEMRENZ 8L iz $
HIHERSA -

M BELREBERES THREE
B ANR¥A1,221,638,0007T (2020
F: AR¥2,181,581,0007T) K&
F o R2021F12 A31H » Z%1E
FRANGEER °

B2021F12A31H @ A&E@H
TR AEBEREMEFRAER
ITR(EAFESNNAARK
1,698,578,0007T (20204 : AR
¥2,756,379,0007L) RARKET
70 (20204 : AR%343,726,000
JL)) B P - AEES AN E B ER
B — AR EIRITELE (FI7E30) ©

AEBERHETHSEEENHRBA
AWM - BB MR EEITRE R
Ao -BREREZRIMEAER
FEXREMETHRBMEER KT
FEMARBEENEE WA
FALLEME  BERZBENR
CEABUMNEEERREAR
264,551,000 CHY AT KBl & K8 ©
it - EREZE2021412A318
EFENBRTRAREREOA
R#571,336,0007T (20204 : A
R#231,1038,0007T) ° 20214
12 A31 B EE T RESEIIIR
BEHEA11.0%HE (2020F :
10.3%) HEFSEMNEAEERRE

==

JE °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. REYHE

RMB’000
AR¥FT
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R2020F 12 H31H X
20211 H1H 2,491,400
Additions R 66,432
Disposal s (13,857)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEN B AR (K5E36) (1,525,400)
Reclassification from completed properties for sale BENMOBEAFLENEEK
(note 19) 2 (FIEE19) 10,449
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 12) BEREYE - HE MR
(Mt3E12) (40,103)
Transfer to right-of-use assets (note 14) EREGAEEE (fE14) (8,505)
Net loss from fair value adjustments (note 7) AR EEAZENFERE (M5E7) (177,616)
At 31 December 2021 202112 A31H 802,800
RMB 000
AREFr
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 K2019F12 H31 H X
20201 A1H 2,585,900
Additions IR 10,563
Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 12) EEBEYWE - HE K&
(M$5E12) 49,045
Transfer from right-of-use assets (note 14) EERARAESE (E14) 2,950
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 12) HEEME - BB MK
(Kg5E12) (3,000)
Transfer to right-of-use assets (note 14) EERAFRESE (E14) (109)
Net loss from fair value adjustments (note 7) AR EBEARNFEE (M&E7) (153,949)
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31 H 2,491,400

AEENREMERL/UNTE
N EAYE - RAREFCH#E
EERBEVENEE  BEK
R - FAEREMEDRERYE -

The Group’s investment properties are all commercial
properties in Mainland China. The directors of the Company
have determined that all the investment properties are
commercial properties, based on the nature, characteristics
and risks of each property.
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 December 2021 based on valuations performed by
Cushman & Wakefield Limited — Beijing Branch (“CWK”), an
independent firm of professionally qualified valuers, using
the income approach. Bi-annually, the Group’s property
manager and the chief financial officer decide to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained. The fair
value represents the amount of market value at which the
assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable,
willing buyer and a knowledgeable, willing seller in an arm’s
length transaction at the date of valuation. The Group’s
property manager and the chief financial officer have
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is
performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, the summary details of which are included
in note 14 to the financial statements.

Investment properties of approximately RMB802,800,000
(31 December 2020: RMB2,491,400,000) as at 31
December 2021 are located in Mainland China under
medium-term leases.

Included in the investment properties were certain
buildings with a carrying value of RMB68,065,000 (2020:
RMB71,139,000), of which the property certificates have not
been obtained as at 31 December 2021.

The Group’s investment properties with a carrying value of
RMB504,800,000 (2020: RMB2,158,977,000) were pledged
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group as
at 31 December 2021 (note 30).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021F12A31H

13. REW= ()

REBENRENFENR2021F12 A
STARBHERITARAR — kR
AT BRERITD (B—REXES
BB HERT) AR ERTE
WEEmMER  NEENYELR
R i 1B R T R HESNER L (ERD &
EHAEENYFETINBEE
BEMR - -@WmEEABEMSHAN
HoBE CBUMKRETHFAEE
B AREBEEENGEEBHRA
BMEERSIMNEBE A Z2HER
FHEEANR P BEEEFHME
DR ARERNMELERTBE
EenRMPBHRFEMEREET
HER  EEEMTHEERR

HMELER  BFMKX -

REMERBLKEHELHETE=
7 A ERBENTBREN T
14 o

R2021F12A31AHARE
802,800,0007t (20204 12 A 31
B : AR¥2,491,400,0007T) H#%
B Y EE TH R P B A b 30 AR B AR HR
HEFFE -

AAREVEREEAEAARKE
68,065,0007T (20204 : AR
71,139,0007T) K& THEFH 2021
F12A31 B ABREEEERE -

R2021F12A31H » AEEER®@
BEA AR¥504,800,0007T (2020
F: AR¥2,158,977,0007T) H#%
BEWED RS LWERRTASE
B & —ARRITRE (BFEE30) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REWZE (1)
Fair value hierarchy NREBEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRIAAEENREMEN DR
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: BEFTEEN

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2021 using

FERAUTEER2021F12A31 BETHAREBENE

Quoted
prices in  Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WERME EATHE EXFTTHE
HIRE BASE PN ¢
(F—%&) (F=&) (B=4R) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT

Recurring fair value mEM AR EE
measurement for: e
commercial properties IR ES - - 802,800 802,800
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2020 using
AU TEIER2020F12 A31 BETH AR EEFTE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERMSE BEAUEE BEATHEHR
HRE i ABUR i ABUE
(B—%) (F=/) (F=M) wEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Recurring fair value REERAER
measurement for: iTE
commercial properties iRz ES - - 2,491,400 2,491,400
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 REZE2020F 12 A31 B %2021 F
December 2021, there were no transfers of fair value 12A31HLEFE  F—REE_H
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no NABEFESH 2B EEE
transfers into or out of Level 3. MEEERERE = -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021F12A31H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13.
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

BREY= (1)
ARBEER ()
SPEARBEEREZRANA
R EE B OLR

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
202145 20204
12A31H 12 H31H
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥FT AREFT
Carrying amount at 1 January R A1ERNEREE 2,491,400 2,585,900
Additions R 66,432 10,563
Disposal HE (13,857) =
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEME QR (KiFE36) (1,525,400) =
Reclassification from completed BN EEFEENEEK
properties for sale (note 19) Wz (FisE19) 10,449 =
Transfer from property, plant and EE A - BB R
equipment (note 12) (FzE12) - 49,045
Transfer from right-of-use assets EE A AEEE (Misk14)
(note 14) - 2,950
Transfer to property, plant and BRI - BE MEE
equipment (note 12) (FtzE12) (40,103) (3,000)
Transfer to right-of-use assets EREFAEEE (MH5E14)
(note 14) (8,505) (109)
Net loss from fair value adjustments B 5 89 E 0B L FE R
recognised in other expenses in KA BEFAEERFE
profit or loss (177,616) (153,949)
Carrying amount at 31 December ®12 A31 HWEEE 802,800 2,491,400

2021 FERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the

13. REW= ()

AREBEESL (E)

UTNBREMREEMANMEET

key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: ERFEGABBIME -
Valuation Significant unobservable Range or
technique inputs weighted average
RER % EATUHEGEAHIE HENMEFIIH
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
Commercial properties Income method Market monthly rental
(RMB/sg.m. or RMB/space) 26-396 25-393
[EhiikZES WK mEg AR (ARET,
EHKIARET HEE)
Term yield 2.5%-6.0% 2.5%-6.0%
HAR U 5
Market yield 3.0%-6.5%  3.0%-6.5%
e TG

Under the income method, fair value is estimated using
assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal
value. This method involves the projection of a series of
cash flows on a property interest. A market-derived discount
rate is applied to the projected cash flow in order to
establish the present value of the income stream associated
with the asset.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment
or refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by
market behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of
property. The periodic cash flow is estimated as income
less non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease
incentives, maintenance costs, agent and commission costs
and other operating and management expenses. The series
of periodic net operating income, along with an estimate of
the terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection
period, is then discounted.

A significant increase (decrease) in the market monthly rental
in isolation would result in a significant increase (decrease)
in the fair value of the investment properties. A significant
increase (decrease) in the discount rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of
the investment properties.
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14. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land,
buildings and other equipment used in its operations. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased
land from the owners with lease periods of 40 to 50 years,
and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of
these land leases. Leases of buildings generally have lease
terms between 2 and 10 years. Other equipment generally
has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually of
low value. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning
and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021F12A31H

14. HE

AEBIEAEEA
AEERSZEREEEFANL
o EBFREMZETERES
4o AEBEBEMN—SBHREMHE
BWERE L - HEHA40E50
FoBRBEHELHBESHER &
TERELINFE EFHENH
EHH—RE2E10F - EMRER
FEH—RAE12EAATRE, %
EARBEEE - —KRMs  AEE
AoJAAEBUIIATEEZRSH
HEEE -

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) RFELZE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use NEBEGFEREESENEEENL
assets and the movements during the year are as FEREFHINT
follows:
Leasehold
Buildings land Total
BT HELH Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARMFT ABHFT
As at 1 January 2020 202051 H1H 58,724 1,687,966 1,746,690
Additions R 16,279 - 16,279
Transfer from investment properties & & B R EME (fii:13)

(note 13) - 109 109
Transfer to investment properties ~ EEZREME (Mi:E13)

(note 13) - (2,950) (2,950
Depreciation charge HEMRE (14,495) (33,411) (47,908)
Revision of a lease term arising from EH—IBH & #) 7 o] HiE 2R

a change in the non-cancellable MRS TS EH

period of a lease (12,927) - (12,927)
As at 31 December 2020 and 2020612 A31 B &

1 January 2021 202141418 47,581 1,651,714 1,699,295
Additions B 18,706 - 18,706
Transfer from investment properties R BREME (F:13)

(note 13) - 8,505 8,505
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36)  H&EMBA A (Hi:36) - (202,441) (202,441)
Depreciation charge NERY (14,577) (56,959) (71,536)
Revision of a lease term arising from @R —BHAEH e HEHR

a change in the non-cancellable HEREHUATEITHESD

period of a lease - (4,301) (4,301)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021412 A31H 51,710 1,396,518 1,448,228
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

14. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(a) Right-of-use assets (continued)

Certain of the Group’s right-of-use assets with a
carrying value of RMB814,204,000 were pledged
to secure bank loans granted to the Group at 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB918,387,000) (note 30).

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the

14. FHE (&)
REBEAEBA (B)
(a) (EARELE (&)

(b)

B2021%F12A31H &
EEETEEEARARY
814,204,0007C (20204 : A
R #918,387,0007T) H{F A
BEECRASEEERARIT
BT LA IR (BFEE30) ©

HESRE
HEAE(MAGRBITRE
KA D) WERAENRFA

movements during the year are as follows:

HEIT

31 December

31 December

2021 2020

2021% 2020%F

12831H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARBFIT

Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1 BREREE 53,737 63,376

New leases FIEEE 18,706 16,279
Accretion of interest recognised F AR A S AN

during the year 3,113 8,378
Covid-19-related rent i AE AR R AR AR

concessions from lessors mERRANES R - (2,542)

Payments (N (15,191) (15,879)
Revision of a lease term arising BN —EEE/NT
from a change in the non- 18 [0 HABR 3R & B)

cancellable period of a lease LABERTHH & 28 - (10,878)

Carrying amount at 31 December ®12 A31 BRYERME(E 60,365 53,737

Analysed into: DA
Current portion mENER D 16,520 12,624
Non-current portion JEmEN D 43,845 41,113

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in

note 43 to the financial statements.
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14. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities (continued)

(c)

(d)

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021F12A31H

14. HE (8)

AEEEREBA ()
(b) HEAME ()
AEEERAEBMHES AR

eligible rent concessions granted by the lessors for BERNEHEARE FHELEK
leases of certain plant and equipment during the year. EHEMGE TR EEERMAE
i%/m
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) PETHEIEEEFHENS
leases are as follows: ZEANR :
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB 000
AREFIT AREFIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEEERNE 3,113 3,375
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FAEEENTERS
assets 71,536 47,906
Expense relating to short-term HEHHER AR
leases (included in cost of sales and (FFASHER AR
administrative expenses) THEAA) 3,429 226
Expense relating to leases of low-value HRIEKEEEZEREEAHN
assets (included in administrative MY (GFATTHRERA)
expenses) - 28
Covid-19-related rent concessions HHEAREFEERAS
from lessors HEENHESER - (2,542)
Total amount recognised in RIE % R R B 48
profit or loss 78,078 48,993
The total cash outflow for leases and future cash (d) TEERIE SRR &R

outflows relating to leases that have not yet
commenced are disclosed in notes 37(c) and 39,
respectively, to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13)
consisting of commercial properties in Mainland China under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised
by the Group during the year was RMB75,972,000 (2020:
RMB85,907,000), details of which are included in note 6 to

the financial statements.

FIEMHEEEBNARIRE R
02 RIS B S R M 7E37(c) &
391K FE o

REBEE/EHEA

AEBBREBEEEHETHHEEER
REA 2 A EAKNIREY
¥ (K13E13) - ZEHEM KR —K
BRERPYNRES KFTHAAURE
ERMNTATHEESEHAE -
AEBRFARAERHBSKABA
R#75,972,0007T (20204 : AR

#85,907,0007T) * BEFHEIHRN
SRR MIEEG o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

14. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments

receivable by the Group in future periods

under non-

cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

14. & (1)
AEBEAHBEA (B)

MR2021F12 A31H - KEEIRE
HMEMAF AN TR FHELERE
RARREAEEW A AR ITIRAE R

N
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥FIT AREFTT
Within one year —FA 13,866 60,553
After one year but within two years —FREMEA 13,488 60,994
After two years but within three years MEZB=FA 12,549 58,381
After three years but within four years —FBRENFR 9,844 58,853
After four years but within five years MERERFA 5,636 53,534
After five years h & 7,277 172,891
62,660 465,206
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021F12A31H

15. B EE

Intangible assets comprise computer software and copyright B EERENFERFHASERE
with useful lives of 5 to 10 years. The movements in 10FWMBERRMERRE - BEEE
intangible assets are analysed as follows: BB OHTAT -
2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT

Software and copyright B {5 R hi

At 1 January: ®n1A1H
Cost B# 39,540 37,889
Accumulated amortisation RIEH (24,683) (20,548)
Net carrying amount R FE 14,857 17,341

Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated

A1 A1 ERERA

amortisation kg 2IE#E 5 14,857 17,341

Additions IR 1,587 1,651

Amortisation provided during the year FNEE IR (3,138) (4,135)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEKE AR (FiFEs6) (556) -

Disposall k= (365) =
At 31 December, net of accumulated K12 8318 - Mk RFEEH

amortisation 12,385 14,857
At 31 December: M12H31H :

Cost %N 39,347 39,540

Accumulated amortisation RIEHEE (26,962) (24,683)

Net carrying amount BREFE 12,385 14,857
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 16. EBEZEAAEBEIEERD

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS TRIEE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20215 20204
128318 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AR TFT

Financial assets at fair value through ZEBEZELALBEIKE

profit or loss WEerEE
Current Vi
Bank structured product, at fair value RITEBEESR  BAA
BE - 200
The balance represents principal-protected structured EHRAIBHEHE —FRANRALERS
products with maturity within one year. MHEm e
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
202145 20204
12A31H 12HA31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFIT
Non-current FETRED
Unlisted investments, at fair value FEMRE - BRAREE 159,363 141,020
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16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

The above investments at 31 December 2021 were
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss as the Group has not elected to recognise the fair value
gain or loss through other comprehensive income.

The Group held a 9% equity interest in an unlisted
company ' K #EEREE ZEHBR AR (“Zhongjie Property”) in
Mainland China with registered capital of RMB213,000,000.
The principal business of Zhongjie Property is the
development and sale of properties.

The Group invested RMB76,120,000 in an unlisted unit trust
fund which has no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

The Group held a 5% equity interest in an unlisted
company * NiEBERNEXERABMR AT (“Jiayue Property
Development”) in Mainland China with registered capital of
RMB10,000,000. The principal business of Jiayue Property
Development is the development and management of
properties.

The Group held a 10% equity interest in AR EE (LRI
P AR AT (‘Betop Culture Technology”), a company listed
on the New Over-the-Counter Market in Mainland China.
The principal business of Betop Culture Technology is the
provision of comprehensive solutions for high-tech cultural
tourism projects.

The Group held a 5% equity interest in an unlisted
company ' _E/ESME FEEFR A F(“Gangchang Property”) in
Mainland China with registered capital of RMB400,000,000.
The principal business of Gangchang Property is the
development and management of properties.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R FR R M
31 December 2021
2021F12A31H

16. ZEPREBERZ A ABEIIERMN

TREE (&)

LA ERR2021F12 A31 BMIEE D
HAEABRIR A‘METE@JHEE’J%
MEE  RERAEE BES
BEMPEEKEERD { EM&(
S fEiE o

AEERBEFEANMHNIELTA
KEEREEXBERAR([BEE
) Wo% i  ZARIMNEMHME
NAANRE213,000,0007T ° B
BEXNTIEXEBRERRKIEEME

AEEERSEEERHHENER
REEIEETEMEEESKREA
K #76,120,0007T °

AEBERETFEAMBIELT R
AIREBERNHEFERAR
RE(EHEXER]) MW5% K
B ZAFNEMERABARE
10,000,0007T ° iR EXERMNE
EXBRERNEEDE -

AEEFHXEFF R B
BRAR ([EHEXERR]) #910%
BtE - AR R EAME T =R
B - BEXERENEERHBR
A= B IR B R B AR Ty

ER

AEERBEHRERMHIELETAR
FEBRBEEZEERAR([EBKRE
) B5%HE - ZARNEME
KA AR 400,000,0007T i
BEXNTIEXBRAERRKEEME

2021 FEERE BEELRERERAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R FR R M

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets are as

17.

3E RIE,\?/EJE

follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE
Fair value
adjustments
of financial
assets at Depreciation
fair value Depreciation allowancein ~ Change in
through Rental allowance of  excess of fair value of
profitor ~ Withholding Interest income investment related  investment
loss tax capitalised recognised  properties depreciation  properties Total
ERRHR
MMEESER
NEREEN RENF fERR EUES
MEERE AR EAGAS ERIMSUA NWERE RBLABAE AAREZD Eh
RMB000 RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ABRTFE  ARBTL ARETL  ARKFr  ARETT  AREFrn  ARETL  AREFZ
Asat 1 January 2020 5202051 A1H 2,707 81,727 28,961 9,167 94,619 11,962 225,062 454,206
Charged/(credited)  FMEZ R
fothe statement B /(:FA)
of profit or loss - (16,618) (2,089) 59 15,197 (447) (38,487) (42,355)
Asat 31 December 12020
2020 and 12A318%
1 January 2021 2021451818 2,107 65,109 26,902 9,226 109,816 11,615 186,575 411,850
Charged/(crecited) ~ RERR®
fothe statement B /(:FA)
of profit or loss = (60,680) (668) (6,405) 294 44 (4,987) (11,652)
Disposal of HENBAF
subsidiaries = = (24,515) (2,47) (67,805) (12,259) (152,217) (259,267)
Asat 31 December 720215
2021 12R318 2,707 4,429 1,819 